STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2014 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE BILL. MADDOX
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
BILL SJOVANGEN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER _ CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for September 16, 2014

CONSENT AGENDA
(Al matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

4. For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 08/29/14 for $347,107.97. Accounts Payable
date 8/25/14 for $624,706.62 and 9/05/14 for $167,982.47 and $3,414.94.

5. For possible action approval of Treasurer report for August 2014

6. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
a. INTELLISOURCE, LLC - General / 3200 USA Parkway (HR for Zulily) TRI
b. AMERICAN EAGLE ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 1055 Industrial Way #6 ~ Sparks
(Elect Cont)
JOHNCO ENTERPRISES - Contractor / 2875 N Escondido Court ~ Reno (Contractor)
. FRAZIER MASONRY CORP - Contractor / 747 East Ave 1.8 ~ Lancaster, CA {(Contractor)

oo

1




e. COMSTOCK PAINTING & HANDYMAN -~ Contractor / 4450 Lousetown ~ VCH
(Contractor)
f. TCR CONSTRUCTION, LLC - Contractor / 3976 Kentwood Court ~ Reno (Contractor)

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

7. DISCUSSION (No Action ~ No Public Comment): Committee /Staff Reports

8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action -~ No Public Comment)

9. DISCUSSION ONLY {No Action): Presentation from Mike Kazmierski, President and CEO of
Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN), on recent economic
development matters pertaining to Storey County and Northern Nevada.

10. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Provide as overview of the State of Nevada Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program for the upcoming 2015 grant application cycle.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Whether to amend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax
plan of projects by adding a sunset date of 10 years and whether to approve the expenditure of
the infrastructure tax funds on the following plan projects: Five Mile Reservoir restoration,
Gallagher-Clark lot purchase and renovation, increasing the renovation cost to $750,000, and
considering any additional projects on the plan ready for funding.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve resolution 14-408 for a one-year moratorium to
prohibit Medical Marijuana Establishments (MMEs) in Storey County, and providing for other
properly related matters.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve a Lease with an Option to Purchase the
courthouse parking lot and surrounding area from THE BUCKET OF BLOOD SALLON, INC.
(APN 001-081-01, APN 001-081-02 and APN 001-081-05) $4,500 per quarter until July 2017
whereupon Storey County can purchase the property on terms set forth,

14. DISCUSSTON/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agreement for Allocation of Catalyst Funds
between the State of Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development and Storey County with
respect to a $630,000 grant to Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc.

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Catalyst Fund Reimbursement Agreement
between Ardagh Metal Packaging USA Inc; the Economic Development Authority of Western
Nevada and Storey County.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit Extension & Amendment 2012-014-A-
1-2014. By Robert MacLachlan on behalf of Vista Towers, for a property located at 21485
Saddleback Road, Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 003-101-66). The
applicant requests an amendment to Special Use Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a condition
of the existing permit requiring a contract with one or more cellular carries before construction of




the “mom-pine” wireless communications tower may commence. The Applicant is also
requesting an extension to Special Use Permit 2012-014 which, due to inactivity, will expire.

17. DSICUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Special Use Permit 2014-016. By jim Minar on behalf of
Supergraphics located at 1 South C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada at a business
commonly known as the Bucket of Blood Saloon (APN: 001-085-11). The applicant requests a
Special Use Permit for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion of the building.

18. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. AGGREGATE RESOURCE DRILLING, LLC - Contractor / 4080 Commercial Ave ~
Springfield, OR (rock driller)

b. BW CABINETS & DOORS, INC. - Contractor / 52 Miles Road ~ Carson City (cabinet
sales/installer)

¢. PAUL BROOKS GENERAL CONTRACTOR - Contractor / 199 East Winnie Lane ~
Carson City, NV (Contractor)

d. TFG CONSULTING, LLC ~ General / 1273 Lariat Court ~ Minden (Consultant)

e. WINDAK, INC. - Contractor / 1254 26 Street ~ Hickory, NC (servicing equipment in
County)

f. DAVE'S HANDYMAN SERVICES - General / 1647 Clover Leaf Drive ~ Sparks
(Handyman) _

g ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg)TRI

h. A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC - General /1215 Alexandria (welding fab) TRI

I. ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG - General /1215 Alexandria (manufacturing)

19. CORRESPONDENCE
a. Letter from Waste Management regarding the Bureau of Labor Statistics consumer price
index for garbage and trash collection.

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
21. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE: :

* Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

* Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

» ltems may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

» Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

» Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.




Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, SW., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and
lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before September 9, 2014; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

By

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 16,2014 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required { }

1. Title: For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date 08/29/14 for $347,107.97.
Accounts Payable date 8/25/14 for $624,706.62 and 9/05/14 for $167,982.47 and
$3,414.94.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted as part of the Consent Agenda

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims

5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA _ NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
~NA District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
L P |

Agenda Item No.




HIENSTIRL

JATIOULAWOD
HANOISSTIWWOD HIANOISSIWWOO NVWEIYHD
FEISUCTEETWNGS JO pavog Ajuno) Asio3s sys Aq pasoaddy
LETLOT'LYE tpasInNgsTd TEIOL
59°02€°L iI030Npaq O3 JA9JBURLL IS8 TRIOL
0073962 ¢ P2TTd daqg ITa uo pIsIX Eped a2Aordwd Tejol
16" Z¥E 952 tatsodag joaITd ssfoyduy Tv3clL
S9'BEF'T tayasyn ssAotdum Tesol
66°6EZE'S PEYJAY) I03oNpad TRICL
LL'6LY'E9 8didE 0] X8IBURII, ISB[ TeIOL
Junowy osieg §# pea % Qg
/4 dug  /ypsud
g8 L % S ¥ ¢ g 1 ‘gsdnoxn r1roaided
¥1/%2/80 !ajeq pus-porIad ¥T/6T/80 93Rd AD8UD zernbay :adAl 11oaded
AUVNINITING I3I8THBIY yoeup TEILS 60 ¥TI/LZ/80C iunyg
S abeg WILSAS TIOUAYd ALNNOD ATHQLS YOTS0¥d :aday




HANOISEIWHOD

HANOISSIWKHOD
NYWHIYHS
HEANSYILL
HETIORLAWCD
Atk DY LTI
ILvd NOLIVZTHOHLOY ONY MEIATY J0 INIWIDATTMONADT
Z29°90L°'%2Z9 TYLIOL SADAHD JIJEL
PI/SE/8 Z9°90L'%E9 YIANSYAYL 0D LS Lgpoe
AYAX XYL STOZ-$T10Z XYL XAILYEdOMd IMIL Rv¥d 29°90L°'FE9 82LT sT102
NOTLdTY253a #ADIOANT Ji¥d TYLOL LNNOWY IWYN HOANHA #O¥O0DHY dWEA  dEgHAN
ADEHD  MDEHD T¥OSId ADIRD
YHLSIDEY SADEHD QEJAL vI/SZ/8C @ ®3BQ uny

abeq AINNOD AE¥OLS 06£19d tON zoday




T

gy LEE

€07 48071

gg-ozz
0Z'esb

EL7OFE

00- 02t

00" S¥¥

007985871
00 8L
00" €9
T5'019

PET96T

00" %8
666
00" 00T

S8 RET

TELOL
ADEHD

sbeq

EF LEE

ST'Te8
60°8LE'T
LLLST'E

og'oge
02 65%

¥e'IL
Ls'L

-LET WY
26°1¢
Zgrzel
SE'EE
86'0T
-BL'SC
€8°'C¢
08'1TT
9T LT
$0°86
-g5°79

00"0ge
o00'8¢
00" Z6€E
00" TE
00 %
00"9€8'T
00" 8L
00°¢9
157012

00°¥e1
veen

00 %8
E6° 6

00T O0T
QT Le
EL'TY
62°89¢
Z5'0T
LL'8

287 €T

LHOOKWY

BSEOL

£¥E0L
EPEOL
E¥EQL

CPEOL
GBEOL

gvElL
gvelL
8FEQL
8FEQL
sveoL
8FEGL
B¥EQL
8¥TOL
9FE0L
are0l
g8veoL
8%E0L
sbeoL

obeoL
aDgoL
S0E0L
SOEQL
S0€04
LEEQL
0LEOL
P0E0L
SLe0L

LEEOL
S8Z04

FSEOL
€oeoL
Z0EOL
TPE0L
T¥Pe0L
T¥E0L
¥820L

¥8zoLl
v8e0L

¥SNVIL

v1/50/6

¥1/50/6
$L/50/6
¥1/50/6

YL/50/6
¥I/S0/6

¥1/50/6
F1/50/6
¥1/S0/6
F1/50/6
¥1/80/6
BL/50/6
PT/S0/6
¥1/50/6
PT/50/6
$1/50/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/S0/6

¥1/50/6
¥1/50/86
¥1/50/6
$1/50/6
¥I1/50/8
YI/G0/6
¥T/S0/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6

¥I/S0/6
¥T/50/8

¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6
PL/50/6
¥T/50/6
¥I/80/6
PT/S0/6
¥1/50/6

$1/50/6
$1/50/6

aiva

¥L/50/6

qISEANGSTJ LNEHHS INUYD

THSAIT d¥Id oA
FIE53Id ¥ "N -Md
TESEIA ¥ "INO-Md

SNSIS d0LS DA
dC ' NOSYHANY OQuWOIX

TIO-ADQLS

d¥D UEHIYANE S8¥FS9Md
U HATH

INIVd 8%H5SMd
SYALTIA ADOLS

T¥ES AVED 89¥SaMd
SN 8vPSSMd

d> 108¥%ve

JALTIA £¥8T5UA

SHTIE L6TTedd

JALTIA €9819dd

qINTd NYIL ‘TIIC E¥8TGHS
LIAEHD d¥Id

SYEAAET A¥INIT /O¥Ed SOLT

PLOZ "LZ-%T LSOOOV

NOLLYITYLSNI HuYMIAVH
SMO0d uvH

PT0Z ‘LZ-%T ISNOOW

0§ FACD -ANYI DIIJAS

SEETHIIM T5d ESOOHLANOD
LENGEINL ¥4 LS

SEXMEL

WETENOL DA

¥I02/%2/8 NOILVANASHE
HD

dOHS

dOHS

AMQNNYT PL IS

ANONOYT ZL LS
AYANQRT] Te LS

NOIILATYDSEA FIIOANI

YEISIDEE MDEHD
XZLNOGCD AFI0LS

dIHSYEENLIYd COEIa0

NOHAFTEL ALNNOD TIIHDUNHD

QNI O TIO AETIVA NOSEWD
ONI XIK AJYEA NOSU¥D

SYALIOITT TOLIAYD

SI¥Yd OXAY ALID TYLIAWD

EIVS ¥ SSWID ‘MDP0T M ¥ D

SIMET 11008 ‘rT1Eddnd
SASTUAUIING X¥yAd
O YAVAEN J0 Suvd
N5 AONYN “dEave

ILVHEYED ¥ SI¥HENNd NWOLAY

OTT II ALITIGOW I2LIY
STANTTIM ONY HIIYEH D¥vY
d7T ENYE0¥d SYOIYIWY

YAYAAN 20 SO¥Y-HWY

JNI CDS8TY
HOQNEA

Y1/€C/60
STETE]

¥0108

£01T08

20108
T0T08

coT08

66008

86008

L6008
96008
S6008
veaoe

£6008

26008
16008
C6008

68008

88008

HASEWNON

HDIHD
io2aRg unyg
o 33odey



00" €9 88204 ¥1/50/6 SEIT44NS SHA

~10°6 8BZOL ¥T/S0/6 LIa=yD
-9£° 8¢ 88Z0L PT/S0/6 LIGEED
NIFHDS XYNAH £2108
007092 0059 LBEOL ¥1/50/6 TOUINOD L8H3d ¥L LS
00°'59 LBEOL ¥1/50/6 TOYINOD ISEd 5L 18
00° 59 LBEDL $1/50/6 TOUINGD LS8Ed TL LS
009 LBEOL FL/50/6 TOHINOD 1SHd 24 1§
Sdd ¥ ZLIWYE]L NISVE Lvaud ZZT08
00" 00871 00°008'T POBOL ¥T/50/6 MHIM HOVYA SHH 0Z
WOL ‘X9EgSNvID 12108
ST L62'T L9864 £9€04 PT/S0/6 ONIHOLYE ¥0d DA
8% 96% £9€0L ¥1/50/6 HIL¥E avod DA
02 NOILOMYISNOD ILINVESD 02108
0T T4 08 0% Z9E0L ¥T/S50/86 AI0LS-E4YL NOILINYD
0% 0¢ TIEOL PL/50/8 OMIHSNE-N¥Ed SOLT
YIDONIVED £TT08
z9 8LY z9°8Lb 65E0L ¥T/50/6 AAS¥NES IO LNFWHS INEYD
QLT NEEY ¥ HTAYD 81708
00'zi6'T §6°GZT'T ZSE0L ¥T/50/6 9dY ¥ T1SQ- M1
ST 98L Z5E0L ¥1/50/6 0Hy ¥ IST-M1
OTT ASWANE SYFATA LITOB
0L"GE 0L SE TSEOL F1/50/6 INTWED DNTId YHAAH
ONI SHETNA¥ILINT NOSODURY 9TT08
7606 Z6'06 LSEOL ¥1/90/6 SEIYALLYE
ANYAWOD TYNILSYI STT108
£6° 55 £5°5% 2€€0L ¥T/S0/6 YIND HOINES AMADT -FIIL0D
0D 50¥g ¥IAWBVA PITO8
00°008°LE 00°00§°LE 8ZE0L PT/S50/6 INIWETNOY SID "I¥DOTHEINI
ALNOOD SY¥TI9000 £ITC8
00°002 007002 £EE0L ¥1/S0/6 HANA/JEEA
EDIA0 JATHAHS OD SYIOHN0OQ ZIT08
007052 00052 TBZOL $1/50/6
HLLANNY ‘STIINVA 11108
06795 S6'0¢ E8E0L YT/S0/6 qALYM TL LS
5652 §9€0L ¥1/50/6
ONI ¥SN SHOIVA 01TO8
0L BTT OL 61T 80E0L ¥1/50/6 YITIUYdYSIYS $ISVD ¢
ONI SHEOVHIAIS NMOED GO0TOE
00°2ST 00" 0ET LOEOL ¥1/50/6
00 zE LOECL PEL/50/6 FICE 'LZ-PT LSNONY
¥V OIAYLIDC 'YISHHED 80108
00" 50T 00" 8% 90€0L ¥T/S0/6 FI0Z ‘LZ-PT LSNONv
006 90€0L $T/50/6
00" 8% 90€0L ¥1/50/6
OTT TIIH 41709 HOOLSWOD LOTO®
2T 81T ZT LE 6Z£04, ¥1/50/6 SSINKWOD Td IDILON HITdNd
00°18 LEZOL ¥1/50/¢ NOILIAZ ST S0Y
{DA) ATIDINOWHD ADOLSWOD 90708
00°91%'S 00°9T%#’S 00E0L ¥1/50/6 SHILIATLOY HINOX
ONI LSEHD ALINOWHOD S0T08
£2°LO¥ Z0°'§ DBEDL PI/S0/6 CIVOYIY TO0000-S600CTELE
%Z'9¢ SEEDL ¥1/50/6 YIVG Ovdal
0 0% 9BEDL B1/50/6 avdl LdEd FEId
0°0% SYEOL F1/S0/6 ay¥dl 143d II
§5°S8¢C 08€0L  FI/S0/6 av¥dI T0000-Z909€TTLL
Y101 LNOOWY #SNTUL qLea # 0/a NOILEY¥OSHEd TOIOANI HOANFA AZHWNN
AJFHD MIEHD
PT/S0/6 WILSIOEL ADTHO ?T/€0/60 s3edg uny

4 abeq ALNAOD AZMOLS STETHd :oN 3Iodayd




€

00°S81° ¢
00°005‘2
0zZ7881
FPL'6T
00’ 5g

00 ELE

[A: A4

0Z°€29'€

0D'al
8’88

25 956°T

00" L0T

g0 00T

66 T¥Y

TYLOL
ADHEHD

sbea

00'S81'¢
00°00%'2
gz g8t
FPL6T
0052
00’ LER
05 zge
Q098
Q0" %S
[hl

29928

-6T'9%

Lzt

~6E£79L

9T 9T

“9T° %1

YE 496
¥6°TS8'E
659
00"0T

00 8L
Te'ge
¥5'8%E
§5' 56

E9TEBR
8 03

-T2 TI9t

SZ'89
#1762
L8788
0% 0871
LE P2
L6669
L6 69

00'9%
00" L¥T
00°9T
00" 8e

00" 00T
BEZ'6T
$0°LBE
002

LNOOKWY

LZEOL
eTeoL
£8E0L
T8ZOL
6BZOL

T1EQL
TTECL
TIEGL
TTE0L
TTE0L

S6€0L
S6T0L
S6E04
SGEOL
S6E0L
S6E0L

ool
FPYEDL
¥¥eodl
PEE0L

SFEoL
goe0L

LIEOL
L9t0L
L9¢0L
L9EOL
L9E0L
LIE0L
Loe0L
LOEOL
LIEQL
L9g0L
L9LOL
L9EOL

60€0L
60C0L
s0EDL
&0E0L

OTECL
88LOL
88Z0L
8820L

H#SNVHL

¥1/50/6
¥I/S0/6
$I/S0/6
YI/50/6
YI/50/6

¥T/S0/6
¥I/50/8
¥1/90/6
¥T/50/6
PT/S0/6

¥T1/50/6
PI/50/6
PT/50/6
¥L/S0/6
¥L/S0/6
YI/50/6

YL/50/6
YI/60/6
¥1/50/8
v1/50/6

¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6

PI/50/6
¥I/S0/6
¥T/S0/6
$1/50/6
PT/S50/6
$1/50/6
¥I/50/6
¥L/S0/6
¥I/S0/86
vI/50/6
¥T/50/6
¥L/50/6

¥1/50/6
YI/50/6
v1/50/6
1/50/6

FT/50/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6

ALYa

vI/S50/6

UINTYLAY JITWILIAS
dIHSYOSNCAS DIDA NNY g3y
SHEITA4NS SWE

N

d0aveE HATONITA

¥I0Z ‘LZ-%¥1 ISNOOV

SUVES-%L-T

INIWAYS FTa00q LOFEII0D 0L
LIGEYD 3TE00d LOFYI0D OL
HOLIMS -3YISE

TYSHIATY LIJEID

LIAEED

LI HOVHEDAN WYY dOLdYT
ELITAITHL 540 ¥ELNEIVLYA
JQEO0HY X NOW¥Tg ¥ENOL dH

dO¥YHD ONIdJdIHS

LANYEINI ZLLE TUTA
HSOH-ZTL YITYOTHI

SZIT4dNg INIVYd ' 27119’ TUL
ONITIED XELAQYEI-IYL
HLEIAYS-TUL

O3 d0¥a’@SOH ¥ITIN0D THL
HLFYHYS -LIdI¥ED

ONITIHD XI5 AQVIEY ~IdL
dWG) ILNICL IWL

SMEMDS ‘ONILEEHS X10d-IdLl
SHITAINS TIVYMAYNA-IUL
LYLSCOWIEHL - LHL

SEHATHEHS ¥HETIOBLAWOD
SHATIHS JETTOALIWOD

YTO0Z “LE-TT LSNONY

YI0C/E€2/8 NOILVANISHY
SHITIANS SWI
SEITJANS SWA
SHY14ANS SWE

NOILITIEOSHd F2IOANI

JALSIDIE ADTHD
ALNOCD A3d0LS

2TT SLNIAT FNTE ¢INDIT
OTT SINEAT dnTE aIndit
O7TT SINEAE INTH dINDIT
ONI LSISSVY-AJ4I1

NI SEOIAYUAS ENIT HDYNONYT

SNCS ¥ SIT¥END N T

¥ NVILSIHHD ‘dZTHOAIN

o717 dEr

DT EEN0S TLI
ONI aNYgavodd LOd4S IOH

L8 SONILLIZE % HS0QH

EOIAYAS LIAEED ROdET FWOH

OHOS d¥¥M HLINO2 DINOILSIH

ONI SSETIYIM SANYIHOIH

dCaNaA

PI/E0/E0 ¢

LETCB
9ET08
SET08
7E£T08
EETO8

ZETO08

TETOR

0£T08

62108
82108

L2108

22708

SZTOB

rZioe

HTEWNON

ADHHD

ajeq uny

STETAd 0N 3xodey




P

097 99L

127681 T9°681

00" ELT 0064
00" %6

[soRe3-] 00" 0%

038 'PLY’C

0s'€80'¢ 00991t
0S°€0T
ooTooT
00" SLT
00°61%'1

107 LEL 98°9z1

¥6°09

057281
08°€Te

T8 Z¢
6L CE
9E°99
-2 5%
Le'el
PO LY
A A

86 T165°¢C
00 z¥ 00" 2%
00°00€'2
L9 ve LI ¥vE
CZ'9 [ AR

0E° 065 68 0%
90 %L
T L
06 9¢
oL 0¥
18" %%
TL7 98
98702
BT Es

057 LLT

Te 69T TV 6%l

00°005°T

00°886'9

TYLCL LNOACHY

ADEHD

afeq

09 FLV'E

96 ' 166°¢

00-00€’'e

00°005'T

00 000°T
00'886°'S

£6E0L
SLEOL

TLEQL
TLEDL

TEEOL
gLLO0L

TEL0L
TELO0L
TEEOL
IE€04
1LE0L

ZLEQL
cLEOL
cLEOL
gLeEOL
TLEQL
TLEOL
eLEGL
CLEDL
CLEQL
TLEQL
ZLEQL

88€0L
TLTOL
£LEQL
T6g0oL
¥9€0L
29E0L
ZEE0L
RS
25¢04
ZBE0L
ZBEOL
TezoL
0BZOL
99¢€0L
€820
LBLOL
66Z0L

T8LoL
I8EOL

#SNVUL

PT/S0/6
PL/G0/8

¥1/50/6
PL/S0/8

¥1/50/6
¥T/50/6

$T/50/6
¥I/50/6
¥L/S0/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6

YT/50/¢%
v1/50/6
$1/50/6
PL/S50/8
Y1/S0/6
FT/50/86
¥1/50/6
v1/50/6
¥1/50/6
B1/50/6
¥T/50/6

YI/50/6
¥T/S50/6
¥I/50/6
¥1/50/6
BT/50/8
¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/50/6
¥1/S0/6
v1/S50/6
BT/50/6
¥L/S0/6
PT/S0/6
$T/90/6
¥T/50/6
$1/50/6
¥T/S0/6

¥T/50/6
¥T/50/6

ILYA

¥1/50/6

51504 ‘SNOIS d0LS
HO¥L ¥LE Y4

ALLOd ¥1¥0d HOA
ALLOd YWIHOd IW

HOLVKW ALNAOOZ XTIND

a3
d3z

WOEd-0404d

LES d¥d ‘WOHd -o0L0d9dyd
MOLCH TWNHd- 0L0H
HAITYD INvEE TIE9G0S
LIM HEELIIA-0LO8

OS5I LEVW-SI¥YIOd HIId
TI0 EFBTSHA

Fd3LLYd LITHED
ATEMYHEIIOD-0006TMd
NJHL dTIM -8%¥SSMd
LTI d¥ES 0409

€T ON INIWITII4NG
YIVAHY-Z6LLGMI
MYSTIYM - THL

dW¥LS A¥EYLICON TTISSNY
dI70 N S52E8¥0S
LYWHEIYHO

TX AVHEL

LYW

ULAYD FJYL/SHOSSIOS
SEIT1ddNs dFoIdd0
SEITEANE H21440

HANYWTEEYT / THEVT OWAd
SATTIEAE HDIJ40

SYIVddy
g833

ADOSLWCD EHL J0 ILSYL
AJ0LSHOD FHL 40 HISYL

NOITgTHOSICA FDIOANI

HALSIODEY ADIHD
ALNOOD ATUOLS

OT DNIJTASNOD NOL¥ON

QIA¥ES YALFWNOJTHIS YIYAIN

D177 SNHOL WA¥AIN
HIHUNSYALL AHN

SEUNOSITE NVWOH LJIBA AdN

YETIOULIWO0D AEN

SI¥¥d OLOW DN

dU0D L0 TYIIDINNK
OLNFWYIOVS 40 THIL NYDEOW
ONI NOTLONYLSNOD NYDIORW
JTT LOEYIA HOUYNOW

Q0 ¥OLOW THOH MAYHEDIW

NI SNOTILNTOS HDIJAAC COdULAW
SESTHIHALNT NEAEYH

LEIYEIVIH  THIHINOT

JOANFA

PI/€0/60
s1eTad ¢

EGT08

15708

0STO0B
6¥T08

av108

L¥ICR

9vT08
S¥TO08
¥¥ics
£PT08
Z2¥108

%708

o¥108
GETOR

BETOE

JTHNN
ADEHD

ajed uny
oN 3acdsy



¥8'5¥% E0FOL ¥1/50/6 2aTd  d¥ TIOL OfFT

1L ¥vF E0FO0L ¥T/S0/6 dOLSLSEY IS O N 189¢
€4 FET E0%0L ¥T/S0/6 LINO IS O N §%T
8T SET £0%0L ¥T/50/6 SHY J¥ IHHLEMIIYD 2192
TT €62 £0P0L PT/S0/6 ¥ LS AWM NOANYD TE¥
0% Z€ £0P0L $1/50/6 ASHAWOd LHOIUMI¥NYD 0192
03 WHMOd DIJIOVA VHEIIS 2Lres
T8 TH0‘T 18°I%0'T Z6E04, ¥1/50/6 HIIAUES dTard
SWALSAS TOYLNOD VHEHIS TLTO8
£2°059 06 6T T6E0L PL/G0/8 aNNd=Ty¥ LISCd=Ed
EL VY8 TEE0L ¥1/50/6 SLISOdEd ' 2{THDEd
ANYIWOD TYOIWNEHD YHEIIS 0LTO8
00" 99 0099 LIEOL $1/50/6 ¥I0Z ‘LZ-%T LSNOOY
NETIY NYINE 'JdYOHS 69108
v 99T gy 9ot 9TEOL FL/S0/6 TIIH d709 WSINNOL DA
ONI SEDIAYES TYE0TO Dds 89108
Z0°ZBT’6 20'281°6 T0ECL ¥T/50/6 TINTENSNE TYOITEN TIAILAE
VEH CHY¥EEJEYd SAMYN LNIVS L9TOB
TE'O0%% 2 ZEQ¥F'2 T0%0L PL/S0/6 £TJHOEd LNEDIANI
2 TYIIMEN TYNOIDIN NMONIN 99108
ST FFE SZ'PPE 06E0L PT/S0/6 LNI¥d TT¥M SAQIAIQ-INL
JUYW LNIVE ONEY 59708
aT"'s R} 86Z0L FL/50/6 FONCHNSNT EIIT FIEILAL
NI SJ4IT QUYANYLS HONVITEY PITO8
SLEZ9 5L 9% STEOL ¥1/50/6
SL°2T STE0L YL/G0/6 PIOC ‘LE-%1 1SNONY
sz°¢ STE0L ¥1/50/6
W YEANYS ‘q0JaYE £9108
9£°0FE’9 00°00£’¢€ PEE0L ¥1/50/76 WYID0dd YICAW IYID0S
00°000°¢ PEEOL ¥1/50/6 QALINITING IOIANIS dITD
9€° 0% PEEOL ¥T/S0/6 50/8 '61/8 ‘1/L
ONI SAIDILVILS avy Z9T08
00522 00 0ST IEEDL FT/50/6 DNIHOLINOW FSO0H LEN0D
00 SL STEOL F1/50/6 YI0Z ‘9¢ DEA - LT 14AS
ONI SEDIA®I NOILDALO¥A 19708
0DE"S0T 0E° 50T 09€0L  ¥1/50/6 QESUNESIA INAWHS INYVD
I 0D IDNYNIJd TYNOISSIIOUd 09T08
TARR A 0006 98€0L ¥T/50/6 WALNED HIIVEH 220 AEN
SELS S8E0L PT/S0/6 ARG
ONTA¥I ‘SHIMCA 65708
00°08T 00°087 69E0L $1/50/6
LANYL ‘NOS¥EIA 85108
00 %01 0028 PIE0L ¥1/50/6
0093 PTIEOL PL/50/6
00°8 PTEOL Y1/50/6 PIOZ ‘LT-%T 1SNanV
4 OTHONY ' ININLAJ LST08
£0°08 £0°09 0BEOL PL/S0/8 ATONY ¥H -8PvSSMI
YEINED HDIANHS THHLS WId 95708
00°48%°1 00'58%°T SLEOL ¥1/50/6 Y004 UYHHEAAO-IEL
ANVAWOD ¥0OQ AY¥EHEIAQ SST08
SLT0ST 9v £8 0EE0L ¥1,/50/6 SYALNINA HOJ ANI
518 ZOTOL F1/50/6 : §EIT4ANS HDIAI0
%1° 8% A TR ¥T1/90/6 SHITJANS HOIJIQ
ONI 10d3d A3Idd0 ¥ST08
00'05¢ % 00" CSE'T LLEOL ¥T/50/6 SHNYd & 'SE6
DNI SHEIHCTONHOAL OIN £5T108
05" 984
TYLOL INNOWY #ENVYUL TLYT % 0/d NOILEI¥SSAd ADIOANI WOANIA YEEHAN
ADIHD HDERD

wa\mO\mMmhmemmmummU ?1/€0/60 ¢ $3eQ uny
E) abeg ALNOOD AJE0LS STE£1dd ‘oN 3xoday




08 0ET FEEOL ¥1/50/6

08 0ET TBEQL FL/S0/6
91" »ST 0ZEQL ¥1/50/6
TI 61T ¥BE0L  FI/S0/6
WILSAS HEIYM CD 1§ 18108
06 LEE 05" LET S6Z0L ¥T/50/6 SHOEHD aNAOdoMovd
JJTEIHE 0O 1§ 0RTO8
GO0 EEBET 00°£€8°2T £6204 $T/50/6 LY0adns
(JAUEINED YOINES 0D IS 6LTO®
00°L2 00° LT 6TEOL PL/S50/6 YIOZ ‘LZ-%T 1SNONY
IJIWLSIA TOOHOS 00 IS 8LIOS
gz 4s52'¢g ZE 552'¢2 LEEOL vI/50/6 ¥eddns JLSnony
ONI $E3IA¥IS ALITILA €4S LLTOS
00°S€ET 00°SET ZEZOL ¥T/50/6 SHITA4NS ONINYETD
III £ JINTIHOO 'ANOOTIVAS 9LT08
50°102'8 S50°'10Z'8 9EEDL ¥1/50/6 WALSAS VEIWYD
SHTHYNIA 5 NWOIS SLTI08
00°€9 00 €9 BIEOL ¥1/50/6 YI0T ‘LZ-%T LSOONY
VAd TYNOILYN ZIVIS HIATIS PLTIOS
00° 0% 0008 SSEQL BL/50/6 sond
) ONI TOYINGD ISHd YIddis ELTO8
L6 L9676 99 K0T EO0FO0L ¥T/50/6 SLHDIT LS HO 40 NMOL
S0 6L £0F0L PT/S0/6 LHOIT LS SYEANOISSIWWOZ 2§
ET°9%Z £0¥0L PT/S0/6 ASHEANII JIHOTEMIYYD 0192
62" €€ £0%0L $T/S0/6 A¥Yd 0¥ HONWH I¥dd 0007
L9°TE £0%0L ¥T/50/6 A¥Yd HOA Q¥ A¥IAWA T¥IZ
9€°ZS¥ £0P0L $1/50/6 ¥ IINO AM NOANYD 0Z¥%
Z8'8LT £0%0L $T/50/6 g LINO A¥M NOANYD 0Z%
LET09 £0%0L  ¥T1/S0/6 LS D N S81
9€°1¢€8 £0%0L YI/50/¢6 ¥d N¥Ed SOLT
L9°80Z £0FO0L ¥1/50/6 ¥ HONYYE I¥ZEd 008
ZO0'ZTT £0%0L ¥T/50/6 SIHDIT L D S 1€sS
8L'00T £0%0L PT/S0/8 SIHOIT IS O § 2ve
TZ'TL £OP0L ¥1/50/6 SIHOIT IS O N 9LT
9% ' €06 £OR0L $1/50/6 NOANYD FTIM XIS 0ZZZ
69°SET'T £0%0L ¥1/50/6 FSNOHIENOD IS € § sZ
2 13¢€ E0FOL F1/50/6 1S 2 N T¥%1
01'S1¥ E0FOL ¥1/50/6 SHEYIS IS O N
TE'EE EOVOL ¥T/50/6 MUYETIVE LS NOSHYD
LV 86T E0%0L ¥L/50/6 DA LINO IS 2 §
SFULE £0%0L PT/S0/6 LHDIT I¥d/¥9000L00 1S O §
[ 34 €0P0L $1/50/6 DA LINM IS O S
ZE'TE £E0%0L P1/50/6 dOVEYD 15 € § ¥0T
ZL ¥E £0%0L $1/50/6 L8 NOILLAS
98" €€ £0%0L PT/S0/6 MI¥d DA LS E N S0¢
00" 5S4 £0V0L ¥1/50/6 wAu ¥ ENIAVHE TYINYAS 00§
697197 £0%0L ¥I/50/6 dWISYS 1§ D S 12
S0P6TT £0F0L ¥T/60/6 INTd ¥IM L§ HIANCS M 00T
£5° 1T £0%0L ¥1/50/8 A9¥d  SHEIWATY WYS 06%
62°0LY £0%0L YT/S0/6 YEID  SNEWETD WY¥S 00§
08°680°T £0%0L ¥1/50/6 TI¥L  T¥E AMH 30 116
SL°9ET £0%0L ¥T/50/6 05 I8 D 8 soe
LY 98 £0v0L P1/50/86 05 19 0 g £0¢
PO TET €0%0L ¥1/50/6 ¥a %8 D 8 102
£6° LT E0F0L ¥1/50/86 2/t dCHS Q¥ TI0L 00T
607 LET €0%0L F1/S0/6 2a7d Q¥ TIOL 01T
TYI0L LNACWY #SNYEL FLYA # 0/a NOLLETEDSEd EDIOANT dOaNTA AFLWON
ADFHD ADTHD
PT/S0/6 H¥IALSIDAW MAJHHD ¥T/€0/60 * @3eg uny
9 abed ALNOOD AF¥OLS STETEA :ON axodoy




L

LY Z8E"LIT

VETSTP'T

L 817

a0 svl
00" %51 ¢
09°L3T

00°888°T

05 05T°S

LE°888

00 6LE

00" 0¥E

00'888°T

00 %ES°T

SLTLBR'C

TYLOL
ADEHD

sEeg

TELOL SADHHD

TP LEL
€67 LLS

TE 0%9C
0% 88T

Q0°'S¥T
00 FST'E
09°L91

00°p8
00°¥8%'T
00" 91¢
00" ¥

05'81%
norgLe’e
00 T¥% "1
0oLy

[l o 4
006

LE'B8%

00" €92
00"3eT

00°0%2

00°SE%°T
00 00¢€
go ve
00 0e

00" ¥FT1T
00 SE0'T
00" se¥

29799

21’84

2T 09

ZI°6TT
¥2°9¢ET
2% 80T
06'86%
29" ¥0T
TL' 88

ZL'8vL
TE 9%l
¥Z wZe
68 LFT
E1°6TT
ZT'611

INOOWY

6PE0L YI/S0/6 oA HSYE avod

6PEOL ¥1/50/6 oA ISYE a¥Cd
ONI HLENONOD df £6T08

86E0L ®¥1/50/6 COOTAOEZEZSHL ANOH-THI

BEEDL ¥1/50/6 11 9914 AD0LS
00 ATddNS VAYAEN NIALSHM Z6T08

00bOL ¥1/50/6 €Y7]
aY'T TYINHWNONIANT NYILSAM T6TO8

66E0L ¥T/S0/6 ¥IV3AY TIYM HD
d QUYHOI¥ ‘HSACHTEM 06148

S6Z0L ¥1/50/6 HIYILAY

ONI 'NYTId @DIANAS NOISIA G8T08
9ZE0L ¥1/50/6
9ZEOL »T/50/6
9ZE0L PL/S50/8
9ZE0L YT/S0/6 PI0C "L2-%T ISOONY
ONI SUN0OL ALIO YINIDWIA 28708
STEOL YI/S0/6
SEEOL ¥1/50/6
STEOL ¥1/50/6
SZE0L  ¥TI/S0/6
YZEQL v1/50/6 ¥I0¢ ‘LE-%T Isnony
SEEQL PL/50/6
02 ¥Y HIEADINAL 7 VINIDYUIA L8108

PEEOL PT/S0/6 SHITAINS WOOW LSHY
DNT EJIMITHEOM FDENOSINGD 98108
TZEOL PL/S0/6
FELOL  PT/S0/6 PI0EZ 'LZ-%T LSOOV
ONI SHAOLNEA-IHEL 58108
TTEOL ¥L/S0/6 HNIM SESWD ¥
2 A2Id 'ONITISSLTL ¥8T08

€zeon ¥1/50/6
£TEOL ¥1/90/6
£ZEOL ¥I/50/6 FI0Z 'LE-PT 1SNO0Y
EZEQL ¥1/50/6
SA0€gM00 ENOLSHWOL FHIL £B8I08
TZEQL ¥1/S0/6
TZe0L PT1/50/6

TTEOL PT/S0/6 BIOZ 'LE-PT 1SASNY
SISTUJUIINE NVEd NS ZETIOR

0ZE0L $1/50/6

PBEOL ¥I/50/6

FREOL ¥T/50/6

P8EOL ¥1/50/6

¥8EOL ¥1/50/6

$SE0L ¥T/50/6

¥8E0L PL/S0/6

PREQL ¥T/50/6

TBEOL ¥1/50/6

PBEOL v1/50/6

¥EEQL  PT/S0/6

¥8EOL  ¥I/S0/6

¥BEOL PE/50/6

Y8EOL PT/S0/6

P8EOL ¥T/S0/6

#SNVEL qIWA # o/ NOILATHISEd FDICANI HOANFA AFIWON

ADIHD
$I/S0/6 WELSIDEY ADTHD YI/E0/60 ¢ 93ed uny

ALNNOCD AE¥OLS STETEd ‘ON 3x0doy




TELOL
A2FHD

abeq

HANOISSIWWOD

P1/50/6 HI¥T MDEHD LY TBE LT TYLOL SEADIHD

NOILWZIHOHLOY ONY MITAZY 4C LNIWIOIHTMONIOVW

LNOOWT FSNTHL aLed # ofd NOILATEDSEd EJICANT JOGNEA HIaWON
HADEHD
Y1/50/6 YELSIOEY ADTHD PI/E0/60 @ @3 uny

AINNCD XEAOLS SIETEd ON 3Ioday




T

A1/

Ye PIR'E

¥ PIV'E

TYLOL
TIYD

abeg

057 €0¥
S 9%
000z
00°8
88'6L
00" 9
PLTET
SL° 8T
Z6°0F%
0z'Lee
Le'8
00" 0%
66'6
8T 9T
£brest
80" 1S¥
BL'FT
0B €3%
0075071
SE'QET
06" LY
66°6T
00§89
£9°98%
00501
£0°Z
S8 18
66°6¢
85'S8
0691
L1882
66 6%

LNAQWT

ILVT

HANCISSIWWOOD

YT TOLLIWOD

NOIL¥ZTHOHLOY dNVY MEIAZY J0 LNEWIDTITMONIOW

6ERT ¥1/50/6
BEVT ¥L/S0/6
6ERT ¥I/S0/6
GEPT ¥1/50/6
$S2 ¥I/50/6
GEFT ¥1/50/6
9%g ¥1/50/6
214 ¥1/50/6
414 ¥L/S50/8
344 ?1/50/6
344 ¥1/50/6
344 Y1/S0/6
344 ¥1/50/6
6EFT ¥1/50/6
9%e 71/50/6
£52 51/50/6
sye ¥1/50/6
zse PI/50/6
[ 2-F ¥T/S0/6
6EFT ¥1/50/6
ss5¢ ¥1/50/6
8%T ¥1/50/6
15¢ ¥1/50/6
¥ST PL/50/6
444 ¥T/50/6
s¥e ¥1/50/6
=4 34 ¥I/50/6
124 ¥i/50/6
¥eT vT/50/6
ez ¥T/S0/6
454 BT/50/6
Lvez P1/50/6
HSNTUL AIL¥d

IJA0S D8I DJ¥I

OH aTIM/HONNT/CUONIINY
SdnD LINY¥4/NES0T

{Z) WIg-Sd9W

A1d4dNS EOId40 DHY

Td I4HWEXE NOILVHISIDIY
dcy ESNCNYT S0¥ -HONAT
LALD ANOD DUD¥N

9¢/8 Tand

MOHS AQY TAML SVITYAQ
INED HOLISTA ¥04 NAIUM
NNY 20¥¥Yd CAO0Td HIQad
AS ¥d HOJ DISOW SANOLI
NIQ ONILHEW aU90g OSMd
SIW'¥AMYEQ ONITIL’ DIV
HONFA SHY HAIAIQ

NYHNE SSESSY SUY-HOHNAT
SIHOIN € Snovd
NOIIALILSNOD AN ONML
6T/8 SYD ¥wD

HAF

anoTd FAIIVIED
HHLTIHS ADNIOAINE
YIEN DNYL NYWIYHO
HOILLNLILENOD AN DHEL
DHES 0L d4Y LNYHD TIVK
HNOHZ HIITIILIVS

HSAOK HHLAAWOD

zZ/8 TENd NYWIYHD

€2/8 HNNIQ/HNAT NYWAYHD
?Z/8 1304 NYWIYHD

dAYd LY0dEd 49y

NOILII¥DS5Hd

JALSIDIAY YYD BSYHOUNA

ALNOGD AZYOLES

0Z/8 PSEESY
¥I-LZ-80

¥1-81-80

SE/8 SOPCOZCHSNVEL
€19605# SNUIL
dEIL AW NCAdES
TIIES S6€ SaId
HOIJd40C BEJHCOIH
HOTA4C BEGACOIEA
SAYMYIVSN &4

LYYW ZAVS o4
HELEYD Y a1 924
WOD " SANNLI TdY¥ 94
0I¥ Tad INHO0ES80
L04dq "HOILH0
HONIA TTIOHL ML
HAISUEIYD SHINTODL
JYUDEN Y04 THLOH
PT0Z TIYd NISNVH
ATHEAVH NVWTID
IAIND "HY4

SHHLGAS HEOAY dd
AJZTETYTHVYA
TOZPPSTTIOF# ANOD
PTOZTIYd NYWAVHD
8450 -NIAEN'D
LEOEqVWO -NIAIN'D
LOdHTEDIAAO -NIAIN'D
§56€50# HINY
DEPLIOH HINY
8t4900# HLNY

04 dY¥MLAOS HEOOV

*»Te3I0L PILD+s

INEAWAYE dUYD TYIDEAWWOD ENC STTHM

# HAJIOANI Ld3d-aNnd

HCANIA

FI/E0/60
LE0evsad

LE

HHEAWNN
2d

ageg uny
toN 3aodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 16,2014 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for August 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

yS Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action;

[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.




oo’

[+l +he

00
£E°ZSE7ER
60"
-¥1°8E6' 28T
-9L ES9ERS
-68°%8L'P2E T
§0°9%6°'16
-00"TTZ ' TFE
-TL'BEDLST'T
-96°¥8L L

00

~ZE 49T 8E
-997L¥SET
-99°26% ‘€€
0G°

-LT ¥89°95%
-E5TE55'TOT
-0F £54°S¥T
-BETE6E05L
-00° 0SS
-Z0°GL9'S9T S
SER EE9 04T
0g"

-00° 099

~00° 000000 T
-0 FFE'622'T
-€$ ETELST e
ST PEL’BE
-8E EEP V6T
-00 000 00T
-£% 0598
-%9°¥99°524
-06°9EE ' ¥OT
95" §5€ /98
-00° 00T

68 PESZEY'T
-00° ¥t

-€6 5SB TIS
-SETBLTIYES L
00002

00 000" E

007 06T T
CET6EY

0L 'P6B BLT "B
05 ZOZ'6ST 'L
26°ZZG'5EL'S
6o

ce-

8B 6LL"BFL
L8 IE6'S

00 002’066
-06°%¥Z6 T

oo’

[H
oo’
oe’
[lthy
oo-
[+
a0
Qa-

oo
oo-”
oo~
0o0-
00"
0o
felely
0o0°

Q0"
00"

0g-

0o
oo-”
oo
00"
bo”
00"
00"
(U
00"
00"
00"
oo"
60"
00"
00"
oo’
og-
oo”
0D”
oo
oo’
eithy
00"
oe”
on-
o0
oo’
o6’
[clthy
oe-”
06"
oG’
ce’
(1
[H
(/N
00"
[l
00~
Q0"
00"
aa”
0o
Ll
ag”
Q0"
00"
[\
oo
Qo
00"
ag-”
00"

00’

00"

00"
-80°80S'8F
60"

-90° 690282
-667ZLP 6T
oc”

s

oc”

oo”

op”

00

00"

og"

00"

00"

co”

('

60"

[N

co-

60"
-BSLLE'S
00"

80"

00"
-E6°%LL'IT
oo-

00"

06"

go-

LN

00-

oo"

60"

00"
-F5ELT 9F
00°

00"
-L%°99% ‘109
00

00"

00"

00"

09

00"

T9 ZOT'PE0°T
Q0"

00"

00”7

00"

00"

00"

0o

Q0”

00

597 F¥9E ‘60T
00-
TL-SEE 'Z9E
LLTEERP "9
oe”

oo

og-

oo-

o0

0g-

e0°

+Ivia

Q0

eI

IR

oI

[HERg

co-

[+110a

Q0°

L8 LBETT
aa”

oo-

00"

LT LS5v 02
ao-

00-

Q0

oo-

ao”

oo-

Q0"

a0

fele e
SE°899'95
Q0

00°
ZOPET ‘BTL
06"

00"

1 he

o0

00°

00-
SBTSLLTRTE T
1100

(110

Q0

[t 0y

[L1the

Q0-

IONYTYE ONIQNE 100

1 abeg

SYHISNTEL NI SUZJSNTLL

SHIHONOA MANCE  STTICHAYS

PI0Z/80 ¥O4

LITHE ONIONYIYE ATHLNCKH
ONILNICODY Sy HIHNSYINE
HFANSEIAL ALNOOD AHYOLS

og” oa" a0°
Q0" 0" 00°

00" 00" 00 °

TEZEEZ ¥ -G8 ELB¥E BPELLO'ES
00" 00" 00"

65°%LB eV -6EOEVTPD T LbL'SEE
697605 €L -69 EF9 66 -F5 FIG YIS
0o- oo -SETPELTYTETT
co” 00" 60" 5%6°TE

9% RET4E -ELTISE’'SE -¥L 5T10°€52
z9°90L°¥ES -LETEY -86°T69 T8L T
00058 -0 ose -86°¥BL L

[N 00" on-

00" -65" PLI¥ -zLTTELTLE

€% L 65 ETE’ST -GG T¥E'§

0o~ -00° 809 -99° ¥88'TC
oo 60" 00"

65 008 ‘€2 -TETRLO9ZT -9Z2°90% %9
¥9°2TE -GS GLOE -19°588'86
ZLT0T9 6T -85 6¥ZLHT -#5" %1182

8L 0FT ‘05T ~FT IST8SL -BB I8’ EYI
00" ~00° 0% -00°005
€1°595°8pZ 00" -ST°0%E'¥iF’S
¥P 0LS'S -56 €20 €L -SE 05E SET
oo’ 00" a0°

00" ao- -00°099

00" apt -00°000°000"T
L ETL ®Y -L0°S51°89 -0B685'602°1
00" -G2'89%'%2 -8Z  FSELET’T
62 €68°90T -00°000'00T -16°LZ9'S¥
SL° VT -L570%0°05 -9k 90F ‘BET
o0 00" -00 000 00T
ng - 00- -Eb 05L'88
an- 00" -99'¥99'58L
00" 00" -06°9E£E° 90T
06 oo- 95° §5€'s8¢
00" 00" -0B 00T

T6 L8TS -€5° 4597 18T -80°00L7842°T
06" og” -G0° ¥

S6° ¥ -F0ETE 0T -%8 L¥ST0S
02 097 RTE ~91°T188'E0T'Z -56° ¥ZS°SSL’S
00" oo [OREE

00" go- oo pee’e

00" op- oo oeT’T

00" 00" 0L 6EW

00" oo 0L ¥e8°8LT 'R
00" 00" GS Z0Z 65T L
-BTT992°9T9' T LLOLO'ETE'Y 2B C6E'EIE'C
00" 00" oo -

00" o00- oo-

00" £9°2Z16'¥02 SE LIV FTS
00" oo’ LB TIEE9

00" [N G0 060Z 066'T
00" o00- -06 %261
SINEWISANGsId SLAIZOEZ TEYRE0d v

SANLE TTY TYLOL

ONIOTOH 5EXYL AZANIIAS 0086
DONIQTIOH SIXWI JEENDISHN 008
GI¥ TNOLOW 0LE

AJNEDEIWE THIL 09%
IOIHLSIA JUI4 0GZ
HOISSIWWOD WSIHNOL DA 0ET
LOECOUd TIVYE DA 022

awnd 9aTd TIYC $.44T¥FHS 012
SILNYED Tvdaaad 90

HMOVEAYd T¥L 00T

aHRd Muwd 06T

L3N THL 68T

aNnd LEN0OJ a0TILSnr L8T
LNIAIDOY IMIDIANI S8T
IAO0D IOTHLSIT 08T

QEYOE NOIIVIYSHE ¥ AIWA S4T
HI¥LS 0LT

aMd ASOTONHORL S9T

1933 TCCHIS 09T

TOOHDG 08T

LAN0D 2NEd 091

CouYd STTEH ANCE Yasn Sex
JEIMES FATAIA WINIOAETA Q€1
ALID VINIOWIA 40 NMOL 0ZT
IIIH Q709 30 HMOL 0TI
NOTILYZITIEYLS 00T

MILSAS ¥3iwM 060

QNNI FEALIOFLEYHANL 080
SI2EL0Ed TYLIIYD 0L0
NOILISINJOY LNEWAINOE 090
ADIANES 0%0

QI TOLLOW SPO

LOIULEId A¥IL OF0
AJNITDUAWE FAIE S€0

H¥IZ CE0

NOTINLILSHAS ¥E0

SAYOY GZ0

YEL- IDNFISISTY INIOTANI STO
THOICAIN LNADTANT 010
TEHANID 100

HOSTISSY HSYD ALLAL S06
JAIVAHS HSYD ALLAd ¥06
HSYD ALL3Id £06

SNICD JI0 106

INOODOV 4197 ALWLS 3671
LANEE XANOW QDY ST1EH TE6T
LNOODOW 00 0DWY¥d ST13M 66T
SETYS AL¥3d0dd ¥ 40 € 66T
SAEYID MNvYH SSANISNG LET
HNYE NI HSYD S6T

ONIQTOH LiN0D LaTHLSIC ¥6T
HEWD WasSn OD¥Yd ST13s €61
ADNVENSNT HITYAR Z67T

NOILATEDSAT LIY

LEILSIRT PI/S0/60 uny
00IZdL GoN 3zodey




00 C08 PI/62/8 LZCTH DOSSY HHILHOIA H9Ia
E¥ 86F vYI/62/8 SHENA NCQINN/HWDSAY
£9°8¢€S vl1/62/8 XYL JHLAY SNI HSYM/OIAdWE
00°GL v1/62/8 0D SNI FAIT DIAIDVYA
LT §5E P1/62/8 XYL ¥AIAV DVIAY/AE0 dWH
69 668 ¥1/62/8 N¥Td GZT OV¥14Y/d3d dWH
08 T¥0’'C ¥1/62/8 dOO¥D “SNI JUOALIVHE HEL
€L°06 PI/6C/8 SZT '"SNI d4IT TYINOTOD
§9°0¢L ¥L/62/8 INAJIDDY TYINOTIOD
SZTI0'T PT/ST/8 [ 298D ‘S8¥H
TL°0T PT/ST/8 YO /NOILDETICD d5d JJINAHS
00 008 PT/ST/8 LTETH DOSSY WHIHOIA HAILJA
£9° 8¢9 PT/GT/8 XYL ¥ALAV SNI HSYM/THJJNE
SZ'TI0'T ¥T/10/8 L DEYD ‘SSdIH
SZ TTIO'T PI/8T/L L DEYD ‘99dH
00°989°'0¢C ¥1/22/8 H2IAA0 SAATEHHS 0D HJOHSYM
00522 ¥1/282/8 JdA SANVIHSIH YINIDIIA
00 S¥ ¥Y1/22/8 ISHT TVI0Td ALID VINIDJIIA
00" L8S L ¥T/22/8 O3 ¥ FIADIOYL ¥ YINIONIA
005612 ¥1/ze/s SACHEMOD ENQLSEWOL HHL
0016 vr/ee/s YHA TYNOILYN HLVIS HIATIS
Q0 S5%6 vT/22/8 T NOILLDELOYEd HAIS voyaIls
LOT6R8T v1/2c/8 SH2IA¥NAS ALHAJYS HOHIL O¥0OA
ST €071 vi/ee/s W YHONYS ‘qu0davd
00 8LT ¥1/228/8 a OTEONY ' INIHIdAd
00591 v1/ce/8 YdAN
6L FGE’S ¥1/22/8 ALIUODHAS INIWACTANT AFN
TF LPT'8 ¥1/22/8 SCNOCYD % DGTE NIWAV AHN
00 00T y1L/22/8 LEAYOUYIH dEHIMOT
00" 9% v1/2Z/8 SNOISSHYAWNI EATIVAONNI
99°9 vrL/ec/8 AYES TYTALSAANT DITNYACAH
00°669°T ¥T/z2/8 MEVH  NOSONOWAH
08°80T vE/72/8 DNI ¥Sn SHCIVA
00°91¢t vL/22/8 ¥ OLAVLDO ‘YISHHD
00 ELT v¥I/eZ/8 OTI TIIW QI09 MDOLSHWOD
00668 PT/CE/8 SIMET LLODS IIdddnNg
00 €T ¥1/E2/8 HYd0gad H80ONag
06 T%9 vI/2Z/8 H0S ADNYN ‘dHdvd
00 00T P1/22/8 AZN A0 DOSSY §.d085HSEY
00" szZ¢ PT/80/8 ¥d 0D HOHSYM
00 " 8LE "L $1/80/8 00 ¥¥ #EMONYL ® YINIDAIA
00" 8T9 ¥I/80/8 CHL¥O ? HANIDYAA HOHVL
05" ¥L ¥T/80/8 W YAANYS ‘JqdoJdvyd
00 00§ ¥1/80/8 ALIYIDEGS YAYAIN NAHHLION
00 00T ¥I/80/8 YANTT ‘AdSONIT
00 00T ¥1/80/8 T A9¥dr AEISVH
00 0FT ¥I/SE/L (DA} HIDINCYHD MDOILSKWCD
00 €66 ¥1/se/L SIMET LILODS ‘riftgddand
SL FRT PL/IT/L W YMONYS ‘adodavd
88°905'821 PI/TT/L CILVYSNAJWOD ADNEOV DITdNd
00" 00T FPI/IT/L IIYLS A0 AMVILEEDES AEN
00 ¥ZE FPI/IT/L YANIT ' OTdYDTHE]
00"SZT FL/TIT/L HLILENNY ' STHINV
00" QEt PL/TL/L ONI DTHLDETHE NOILVWOLOY
JUNOWY 23ed Ao9YD sweN sadoTdwd/Iopusa
¥1/1T€/8 - 00/00/0 woag
666666 Ubnoayr T #302UD WOLA

syoayun burpueasino

DNILNNODDY S ¥HYNSYIEL

1 abed

ALNNOD AHYCLS

80:9C:51

T0S006
Z0%006
L0g006
£0E006
Z0€006
T0€006
00tE0086
To0Z00C6
00ZDC6
Z1T
ST9006
105006
LDECOE
1T
ZTT
Ze6T10T
EZLEOT
S96¢0¥
P6BEOY
T06€£0%
CCOEOT
0862Z0T
LEEe 0V
COBEQT
S68E0F
068T0T
SSETCT
8ZCTI0T
STEICT
0FEE0T
¥9620T
65¥¥0¥
S9%%0¥
8Z6E£0¥
LB8EOY
TLO9EOCY
69680%
C68C0¥
T90€0T
S99¢0%
V6BEOF
96¥¥F0¥
Z06t0%
LTZ¥O0%
N 44N
ZeFFO0¥
253966
TL3E0D
Z06E0¥
6852Z0T
SLOTOT
00T%0%
ETTFOP
TTIZ%0¥

00 6671
00 661
00 6671
00 651
00 66T
00 6561
0 661
00 66T
00 6671
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 661
00 66T
0C 66T
00 6671
Q0 66T
00 66T
00 68T
00 661
GO 66T
00 66T
00 66T
G0 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 6671
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 661
0C 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 661
00 6671
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
0C 661
06 661
00 667

# uosasg beg jueg

POBUTI uny

¥1/50/60
Z9LTIF

Zyevye  dd
T¥Z¥EC dd
0PZPE ¥d
6EZFE  ¥ud
8ELZHE  d
LECYE  dd
9gzZ%E  ud
SEZPE  dd
YEZPE ¥d
ZECTE ¥d
IR WAL d4d
6ETHE ya
SZT¥E ¥d
TTZ%T dd
88T%€ dd
08008 MO
84008 3D
94L008 MO
SLcog MDD
89008 M
65008  MD
85008 D
6%008 D
£%008 M2
06664 M0
S866L MO
€8656L MDD
6L65L D
ZLESL  AD
9966L D
S9664 D
obe6L D
TYE6L D
o¥Fe6sl  HUD
8664 MDD
ZTE6L  MD
6Tasl AD
LT66L D
YI66L MO
S0664 D
0066L MDD
zZ686L MO
0L864L D
986/l AD
8€86L M
0TI864L MD
Lisel D
89964 D
ZIS6L MAD
60964 MO
S6S64 D
OFSeL D
6ES6L D
SQS6L MDD

# osup 4L
¢80 uny

roN a1xodeyd



FE Z9%'€0T 1Te301

Y€ Z9%'£02 FTe305 Mued

0P LEY vI/62/8 NOWYd ’"SdITTIHd £F6T 00 66T PPZRE  dd
SZ TITO'T v1/62/8 I 99D 'SSHEH zZTT 00 661 tbzre ¥d
JUNoWYy S3BA MDD aweN 2sA0Tdwg/Iopusa # uosxad beg yueg # xosyp dI

¥1/18/8 - 0¢c/00/0 woaa

666666 UbNOIyL T #¥o09Ud woag

gyosy) BuTtpuelsing
s DNILNOODDOY Sw¥HINSYHAL 80192 ST  PWIL un¥ FT/50/60 @ 93eg uny
z sbeg

ALNNOD AHICLS Z29L1Ig ‘oM 3xodey




S0°089°% 172301

S0 06979 PTe30L Muedq
0T 0% 60/%1/2T
00562 Y1/LE/9
00 0% PT/LZ/9
00" 0% PT/ET/9
S%° g ¥PI/€1/9
00" 9L ¥PL/91/8
Q009 FPT/T2/C
00" 89T'T ¥T/L0/€
99195 ¥1/L0/E
00°0¢ ET/T0/TT
0T ZT £T/8T/0T
6% Z8¢C ET/%0/0T
00" 06G¢€ eT/0e/e
05" LE £1T/02/6
0Z 89€ €T/50/6
00" 6L £T/60/8
00" 08T £L/8€/%
00°08t CT/%T/S
00" €€ ET/SE/T
ZT LEE €T/€0/T
sg- ¢ ZT/0E/11T
666 zZT/0t/8
00°2¢ I1/%0/11
00 0¢ IT/12/%
£6°0871 ot/et/c
ST 8% 60/02/11T
¥6° ST 60/9T/1
CEL BO/T0/L
86°9 80/10/L
00" 5€ 80/6T/%G
00" L¥Z 80/81T/¢
S8 LT Lo/8t/et

JUNoOwy 23R4 A29YD
¥TI/TE/8 - 00/00/0

666666 Ubnoauyl 1 #YosUD

syoeypd Burlpuwrlsino

DNILNOODOY S dHANSYHIL

T abeg

ALNDROCD AHYCLS

HILIL NYOIHMEWY LS¥IJA
DONINIVEL ADNHDY DITEnd
ODAYW AHJANKW

09UV ‘ AHAFAOKW

¥ LAVEIHEC CTTIYOOH

ONI DTIS0TINOD

AHEN A0 DOS8SY §.d0S5HSSY
ONI DIDOTHIOD

A0 AAIWYHD AATIYVA NOSIYD
HYAO0HEd ‘¥HEONEdS

NHETHEH AV *YEDIED
JADHA AEN

AOYATA ‘rETEAMCA

HAYS ¥ SSYID ‘MD0OT M % D
ADIVILVE HANEDHNH ‘XFTIWS
DNI dNY¥EOvodad 1048 LOH
Y042

HYICHAd ’'¥=EaNsd

¥ QIAYILO0 'YISHND

(D2)  ENYdOdd dEIVIS Id
STH0d 'HANJAYH

dT ANYAOHd SYDIIRWY

DNI EDIAYEES TYOHT YOYAIN
Hon¥d  IHAIELEYOAId

¥ld ‘avHEd ‘AONQED CHFIdINd
HIAISHT ‘OHIMANT

MAYID  ONITHAN
YNILSINY®LINd

H3TYE H3iIvmMiEdndg

AATYA I NIAHM

SNVOT HWOH HAIMANLNNOD
D1 SYHENLAVG S99

sweN 99A0TdWY/IOPUSA

wox g
WO

AR AR AN

£8€00T
TLv¥0F
688E07¥
688E0F
CSPH0OY
LLOEOT
T9C0E0T
LLSEOY
SEZR0¥
656t0%
Z0ev0¥
PETVOT
88LV0V
SEQOQT

6LZVOT
ESLECT
0L900T
656L0T
8Z6L0F
86866

LOOTCY
6V6E0F
68CTCT
T89E0¥
S¥620¥%
6Z¥E0¥
8LPTOY
S90E0¥
£50E0%
S667Z07%
S6TLOF
6EEZO0Y

00 S6T
00 S61
00 S6T
06 Se'l
00 461
0C S6T
00 S6T
00 S6T
00 Se1
00 S61
00 S61
00  Sel
C0  S61
00 S6T
00  SeT
00 S6T1
00 Sel
00 S6T1
00 SET
0 S6T
0 S6T
00 S6T
00 S&T
00 Se61
00 G6T
00 S6T
00 S61
00 S6T
00 56T
00 SeT
00 G6T
00 96T

# ucsiag bsg juedg

T BwTI uny

¥1/20/60
Z9LTaG

11559 dA
SLIGL MDD
SST6L MDD
88684 Mo
$868L  MD
0TL8L  MD
STZ8L D
ZETQL D
€TTI8L D
SLOLL D
CLESL D
0L89L M
9ELIL  MD
SE99L  MD
T099L D
Z&Z9L MDD
£ZBSL MDD
€896, MND
SISPL  ¥D
TETFL MWD
$S0FL D
R66%L  AD
£960L MDD
LZ¥E9 A
¥IZ299 D
8€LS9  AD
S€929 AD
56809 A
TE809 MD
EEFCO  MD
0T8ES  MD
6€165 MO
# yooyup dr
23J uUny

0N aJcdsy



LGIYB'TLV'E § 9S'ShEZ § S92 § TYDEL'Y § SILTEES § LEEY $ TE'TOGOPS 5 6viL9'h S BSEIZ'ST § pIETEDT § BEDOEGOT § L50S005 § BSGOZLVE § GSSI9UGL & CELEE LG0T § SSSGLEED $ W10l dNvHD
- s - s - s - 5§ - $ - $
- 5 15102d
- 5 - $ - s - 5 - H - $ 1510 Xd
- 5 - $ - 5 - s - $ 1514 Xd
IS
EL'ZBZZIT  § 95SYTT 5 Db § T99EL’3 § 55F s - $ TZPSTIT $ BEbEL S 805 § 90Z0E 5 OF'9L0°S 5 VIBGY'T & GGBIEF $ IBERERT § YOCLS8r 5 GICOED $  JISNNIVEOL
JuawAediaag
ELTETTIT  § S9PKTT § OFL § BREELT § SOLEE'ST 8 EPPET $ BTOSE % GPI0E % BSOS SOUEFT  § 9TUTEY  § ORELE'TC S bUTLSEr  § VIERTY H §T0E/v10T
00708 3 160 $ £LT 314 $ - § s8'9 S 900 § oo $ 09D s W07 $ 650 § ELT 5§ 106 § - $ S0'TZ $  BOIBJIVEOL
- 3 FT0Z/ET0E
0008 § 160 H £L'2 $ S5F H - 5 559 5 800 $ ozo § 090 $ W $ 650 s ELT 5 106 H 50'TZ $ EIogng
00'0% $ 160 $ ELT S 55'v 3 559 $ soo $ 0To s 0g'0 s w0z $ 650 s L1 $ 106 3 501 $ 600Z/800Z
HOSSISSY
PEERY'RSE'E 5 - % ST s - § 0TLZE § LEEY 5 TLBOLYES § OO'EWSY $ ITELHT § BROTODT § BGT/BTVOT § EE7SSBr § GSOES'ZVT § BLTELSEL § G9TOLWIOT § 9T I6FSE9 ¢ SIVLOL 1H403T
- m paindag pumiay
PZ'6S9'6SEE § - 5 sz9  § - § DTITED § LE'€F  § TLBOLWIS § OUEYS'Y $ TTENVT § BEOIGOT $ 86°LBZ'YST $ EEZSS'BY § GSOEGIVT § BLZETSEL $ 89'TILSTOT § 9T TEVERD § Q3IWNOISIVLOL
9TBZE'EEEE § - $ sz9 & - $ - H TOPE0'ETS § ZB'9ZS'Y $ BTTIOLVI $ OVSTEE § [TUES'EIT § TSPOFSr § 96°SOYIT § GL9I0ZEL § ETUSLLTOT § SREPIERD $  SL/FTIVLIOL
EQZVEY  §  BE'SE $ 6S8IT § ELBL S BE'SSET  § pYBGE § BIESTT  § 996LES ¢ ETLZT'YT s 55355y {RI2ads
BECELTIEE & 86°TSL'BIS § VE'CEY'D $ 69TBSYT § L9°GER'G § BBIYTZAT § LBS00'8P § BTTSKOVL § EIUL60°CL § ET/SLUTOT § TEOTS'E09 $ STOE/PI0Z
Beog’'or  § - H - 5 - § 0TULZE'S § LEEV $ 0LPTOT  § 8roT 3 E2'19 5 8556 § 12069 S TYHHT 5 EIPIET  § BE'SSTE § S5'W00T § TELPE'S $  HOWd WiO0L
OF'EEE"D s - 8 - s - $ spEs 5 - $ oeiss -1 $ ogEe $ S6'ST § 90DLT S o6 S vE0EZ $ GVEST'T § 0066 § SELTET $  $I0Z/ET0Z TWLOL
§5855Y | _uwn_w
sb'ieg 3 az'£98 1 $ 9FEL $ 68'ST $ 9002 S W6l $ YEQET S BYESIT & 00766 S §EiER'T 3 PI0Z-ETOZ
86'I66'ET & SLSEY'S & LE'Ew 5 0Sivs $ W06 S I67LE 5 E96L $ s9ozv $ BrE9 $ ETPEO'T % 0SE9T 4 S5°IT § 26610 $ 1e101qn§
PLLPS'E S 657419 < 0097 5 LIEE s oFIT S 98 § BTbYT § BEIV S ELTET ¢ BEPES & sger § PTTER'T §  EI0TTT0ZIM0L
5355 |R13adS
65419 B PO09Y S LEE S oFIl § 98 $ 6L S BETV 5 ELTTL $ 889 EREAA S PZIERT 4 £10Z-2T0Z
95'645°T S beass $ 19°TT § 0T § ESE § SET § v96E S T $ IBEE $ BLSLE 3 - $ SE'STY $  TTOT-T10T leioL
sSassY [E3ads
PE'BIL § 19477 $ 40T S ESE § SE£T $ v8'6E $ TLTT 5 16'€E & BT H SE'STY S TIOT-TT0Z
88'790'T 4 00'ET2 § g€y $ S0pEl $ LT $ 69'€ $ 9z $ s8I $ OF'TL § z9sg S Z9P8T S 0LE0Y s 1102/0107
GLETE s 1496 g £1°5E $ BTO § 660 S 861 & SI'TI 4 BZE $ &¥6 5 Iter s S6'¥TT $ 0T0z/6002
T0SLY'L $ Trocst  § 8T $ gE'BI 81’59 $ 19T $ rs'zes $ 00816 3 EL'V65'T $  L66T/9661
¥IYNSYIHL
Wi0L %2 UV LNBAQ %I U/ SALITUNAD  oEQARd Wi wIWE/3ui HLMOA 209 ONI a3 aN) ETR 214 nov dvd 80 HJS dO H3S a9 1Snan: IHINID
s9T 9059€-TC0  YOTPE-TH) 100 00z 052 100 S87 010 041 090 ost 05t 005-100 100

T0Z LSNSNV 40 HINOW 3H1 804 19A Q¥




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: G- %-| +  FEstimate of time required: 0 -5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [ ] Public heaﬁng required | ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
I'move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development _ Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners” meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: Sce attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: ‘ Comptrolier

7. Legal review required: = None

““District Attorney

County Manager Other agency review;

8. Reviewed by: / &~
x__ Department

Department Name: Community Development

8. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
]

[] Denied [ Continued

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Busginess

P O Box 526 * Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 847-0966 * Fax (775) 847-0935 « buslic@storeycounty.org

L icenging

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office September 8, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the September 16, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

INTELLISOURCE, LLC - General / 3200 USA Parkway (HR for Zulily) TRI
AMERICAN EAGLE ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 1055 Industrial Way #6 ~ Sparks (Elect Cont)
JOHNCO ENTERPRISES ~ Contractor / 2875 N Escondido Court ~ Reno (Contractor)

FRAZIER MASONRY CORP ~ Contractor / 747 East Ave L8 ~ Lancaster, CA (Contractor)
COMSTOCK PAINTING & HANDYMAN - Contractor / 4450 Lousetown ~ VCH (Contractor)
TCR CONSTRUCTION, LI.C - Contractor / 3976 Kentwood Court ~ Reno (Contractor)

HEYARP

Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev, Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 09/16/14 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent { ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Not For Possible Action: Presentation from Mike Kazmierski, President and
CEO of Economic Development Authority of Western Nevada (EDAWN), on recent
economic development matters pertaining to Storey County and Northern Nevada,

2. Recommended motion: No action recommended.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, Administrative Officer
Department: Commissioners Telephone: 775.847.0968
4. Staff summary: Mr, Kazmierski will provide a brief presentation to the Board of County

Commissioners on recent developments occurring in Storey County and Northern Nevada
with regard to economic development.

5. Supporting materials: None.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ' Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attormney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
/o ¢S5~ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[ Denied f

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—t

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 16, 2014 Estimate of time required: [0-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X]  Public hearing required [ |

I Title: DISCUSSION ONLY: Provide an overview of the State of Nevada Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) program for the upcoming 2015 grant
application cycle,

2. Recommended motion: None required as this is only an item for discussion.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0G986

4. Staft summary:  This is the fust in a series of three (3) informationai meetings required to
meet the conditions of the CDBG Program. The purpose of this public hearing is to provide
information about the CDBG program, past projects that have been funded in the Storey County,
how to apply, eligibility requirements, how and where funds can be used, and to give citizens an
opportunity to make their comments known regarding what types of cligible activities that Storey
County should apply for under the State CDBG program. A second public hearing will be held to
discuss proposed projects submitted to date. A final hearing will be held to discuss, approve and
rank applications prior to submittal to the Statc.

5. Supporting materials: Public Notice
Summary of Past CDBG Program Accomplishments

6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Availablc: Fund: Comptroller

7. Lesal review required:

,e L District Attorney

8. Revicwed by:

@ MDepartmcnt Head Department Name:

. o e )
/P:*E/ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
I} Approved l
{1 Denicd [

Approved with Modifications
Continucd

[ T

Agenda Item No.




NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR DISCUSSION OF POSSIBLE STATE OF NEVADA
COMMUNITY BLOCK DEVELOPMENT GRANT APPLICATION

Notice is hereby given that Storey County will conduct a public hearing on September 18, 2014 at 10:00
a.m. in conjunction with the Board of County Commissioners Meeting at the Storey County Courthouse in
order o discuss possible applications for funding under the next fiscal vear's {(July 1, 2615 to June 30,
2018) State Community Development Biock Grant (CDBG) Program and to solicit citizen input on
possible activities to be included in the application. It is estimated that approximately $2,000,000 will be
avaiiable in total.

Eligible activities under the above allocation consist of: housing rehabiiitation programs, public facifity and
public improvements projects, public service programs, planning studies, economic development
business assistance and microenterprise activities. Eligible activities paid for with the state CDBG funds
must meet one or more of the three national objectives listed in CDBG federal statules as follows: benefit
to low income households or persons; elimination of slums and blight, or meeting urgent community
development need.

The purpose of this public hearing is to provide information about the CDBRG program, past projects that
have been funded in the Storey County, how to apply, eligibility requirements, how and where funds can
be used, and lo give citizens an opportunity to make their comments known regarding what types of
eligible activities thaf Storey County should apply for under the State CDBG program. A second public
hearing will be held to discuss proposed projects submitted to date. A final hearing wilt be held to
discuss, approve and rank applications prior to submittal to the State.

if you require special accommodations tc participate in the public hearing, please contact Cherie Nevin at
775-847-0986; The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868;
voice only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

i you are unable to attend the public hearing, written comments may be directed to Storey County
Community Services at PO Box 7 Virginia City, NV 88440 or you may telephonre Cherie Nevin at 775-
847-0886 or contact via email at gnevin@storevcounty, ora.

Storey County promaotes fair housing and makes all its programs available to low and moderate income
families regardless of age, race, color, relation, sex, national origin, sexual preference, marital status or
handicap.

Date of Publication in Comstock Chronicle: September 8, 2014




Storey County
Summary of Past Accomplishments and Program Gutline for the CDBG
Program

The purpose of this public hearing is to provide information about the CDBG program, past
projects that have been funded in Storey County, how to apply, eligibility requirements, how and
where funds can be used, and to give citizens an epportunity to make their comments known
regarding what types of eligible activities that Storcy County should apply for under the State
CDBG program. A second public hearing will be held on October 21, 2014 to discuss proposcd
project ideas, A final hearing will be held on December 2, 2014 to discuss, approve and rank
applications prior to submittal to the State.

In promoting and facilitating Community Development in rural Nevada, the Rural Community
Development Division of Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development administers the
State and Small Cities Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program.

Established in 1982 and administered by the US Department of Housing and Urban
Devclopment (HUD), CDBG funds are spent on projects that help achieve one or more of the
following goals:

e the development of suitable living environments

» to provide decent housing

» the creation of economic cpportunities in rural parts of the state

Program funds must be spent on projects which primarily serve low- and moderate income
persons as well as limited clicntele- senior citizens. At this time, the only area of Storey County
that qualifies bascd on the low to moderate income is the Lockwood Community. Projects that
benefit imited clientele- senior citizens are eligible throughout the entire county.

Eligible activities under the above allocation consist of: housing rchabilitation programs, public
facility and public improvements projects, public service programs, planning studies, economic
development business assistance and microenterprise activities. Eligible activities paid for with
the state CDBG funds must meet one or more of the three national objectives listed in CDBG
federal statutes as follows:

o benefit to low income households or persons

e climination of slums and blight

* or meeling urgent community development need.

In Nevada there are 26 local government entities that can apply for the State CDBG funds and
Storey County is one of those. This year much more focus is being given to cconomic
development projects across Nevada.

The amount of Funds Available for the 2015 application cycle is expected to be around 2 Million
Dollars '




E=ach eligible entity is able to submit 2 applications to CDBG. Applications are due to CDBG on
January 7, 2014.

Past and Present Storey County Projects funded by or in part by CDBG include:

Storey County Senior Center Kitchen and Transportation Improvement project in the amount
0l'$25,000. This project is currently underway.

Storey County Swimming Pool ADA Upgrades in the amount $152,000.

RSVP Rural Transportation Program in the amount of $63,150. This project is currently
underway.

Rural Nevada Continuum of Care Sponsorship in the amount of $40,000.

2011 — Virgimia City Gold Hill Sewer System Upgrades (SCADA system) in the amount of
$83,915.00

2610 — Countywide flood plan $100,000.00

2009 — Water & Scewer Master Plan $125,000.00

2009 — Virginta City Wastewater System Design $150,000.00 (Used to match CORP §1.2
million grant)

2008 — Canyon GID Wastewater Reconstruction Phase 11 $200,000.00

We are secking input from our citizens for ideas on possible projects that you would like to see
Storey County apply for in the 2015 CDBG application. Pleasc submit those ideas to Cherie
Nevin by October 8, 2014. At the October 21, 2014 County Commissioners mecting, we will
present the recommendations for projects that we have received to be considered to move
forward to final consideration for the application. At the December 2, 2014, we will come
before the commission again and address all comments received and finalize/approve project
applications tor submission to the State CDBG program.

If you have any questions pleasc feel free to contact Cherie Nevin.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

K
Meeting date; September 16, 2014 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on whether to amend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax
plan of projects by adding a sunset date of 10 years and whether to approve the expenditure of the
infrastructure tax funds on the following plan projects: Five Mile Reservoir restoration, Divide
Reservoir restoration, Gallagher-Clark lot purchase and renovation, increasing the renovation cost to
$750,000, and considering any additional projects on the plan ready for funding.

2. Recommended motion:

(&) I move to amend the Storey County Infrastructure Tax plan to add a 10-year sunset date, to
remove the Justice Court building purchase, and to increase the Gallagher/Clark cost to $750,000.
(b) I move to approve the expenditure of infrastructure tax funds on the Five Mile Reservoir
restoration, Divide Reservoir restoration, Gallagher-Clark lot purchase and renovation.

3. Prepared by: Robert Morris, outside counsel
Department: Disirict Attormey’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary:

The Board on January 21, 2014, approved extending the infrastructure tax and the plan of projects
for the Storey County Infrastructure Tax. The Board on February 4, 2014, then approved Ordinance
13-251 amending the infrastructure tax, which contains the approved plan of projects.

NRS 377.100 requires that a sunset date be put in the plan of projects and while there was a
discussion at the public hearing about how it would take over forty years to build the plan of
projects, the plan did not include a sunset date. (Continued on next page.)

5. Supporting materials: Copy of the amended plan of projects.

6. Fiscal impact: There is a benefit of using infrastructure tax proceeds already collected for funding
projects on the plan of projects.

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action; :
[] Approved [
[]  Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

R S—)

Agenda Item No,




4. Staff summary (continued):

This amendment will add a sunset date of 10 years to the plan. This amendment will also
remove the Justice Court Building from the plan and increase the cost estimate of the
Gallagher/Clark renovation. As discussed by the Board during the approval the plan of projects, it
was anticipated that the plan could be amended and that the Board would approve, in an agenda
item, the expenditure of funds on specific projects when they were ready to proceed. This item
approves the expenditure of infrastructure tax funds on the following listed projects. The Five
Mile Reservoir restoration, the Divide Reservoir restoration, and the Gallagher-Clark lot purchase
and renovation as well as increasing the estimated cost to $750,000. NRS requires that the
approval of the plan to be made by the Board at a noticed public hearing. This amendment to the
plan is noticed as a public hearing and must be approved by two-thirds majority of the Board.




Storey County Infrastructure Tax Plan of Projects

The Board on January 21, 2014 adopted a plan of projects for expenditures out of the
Infrastructure Special Revenue Fund. The Board on September 16, 2014 amended the plan to
delete the Justice Court building purchase, change the Gallagher/Clark renovation estimated cost
to $750,000, and add a 10-year sunset date of January 20, 2024.

Public Works, Water Estimated cost
Replacement Lakeview water line 3,000,000
Five Mile Reservoir 300,000
Divide Reservoir restoration , 80,000

Building and Grounds
V & T Depot purchase 600,000
V&T restoration 300,000
Gold Hill Depot restoration 250,000
Court House remodel 250,000
Fire Station #72 purchase 250,000
DA/Sheriff Building purchase 300,000

Fastiee-Court-butlding purchase————————4506.000

Land Purchases

Gallagher/Clark lot 250,000

Gallagher/Clark renovation 750,000 380,000

Eaton’s lot 100,000

Eaton’s lot renovation 100,000

Curtis lot 100,000
Community Development
Mark Twain

Flood control 50,000

Community Center 25,000
Lockwood

Flood control 30,000

Community Center 30,000

Community garden 10,000
TRI

County road repair 500,000

County drainage and erosion 100,000
Communications

Cassidian Patriot Vesta 180,000
Painted Rock

Bridge repair 25,000

These are not to exceed totals with the possibility of the Board changing the cost estimates and
financing coming from other sources. Total estimate for this plan is $7,605,000.




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 16, 2014 Estimate of time required: 30 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve a resolution for a one-year moratorium to
prohibit Medical Marijuana Establishments (MMEs) in Storey County, and providing for other
properly related matters.
2. Recommended motion: I [Commissioner] move to approve Resolution Number 14-408.
3. Prepared by: Bill Maddox, District Attorney and Dessie Redmond, Planner

Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: Senate Bill (SB) 374, commonly referred to as the “Medical Marijuana Act,”
was adopted by the Nevada Legislature and signed into law in 2013. The Medical Marijuana Act
authorizes MMEs in Nevada, including dispensaries, cultivation facilities, production facilities,
(continued on page 2)...

5. Supporting materials: Resolution No.

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
< s —Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
M Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ I —

Agenda Item No.




Staff Summary (continued from page 1)

...and testing labs, but gives local jurisdictions the right to opt out or, if they opt in, to regulate
the location of MMESs through zoning and business license requirements. The State Board of
Health (SBOH) adopted regulations (R004-14P) in March 2014 and those regulations were
passed to the Legislative Commission who adopted them in April 2014. The SBOH accepted
MME applications from August 5-18, 2014. They have 90 days to “rank” and review each
complete application. The SBOH will rank and score the applications, based strictly and
objectively on merit. In early November, 2014, the results will be announced, and those
applicants who are eligible for a Provisional Certification for a MME will then work with the
local jurisdictions for additional permits and licenses, if the local jurisdictions allow MMEs.

Staff is recommending a one-year moratorium to prohibit MMEs in Storey County. This will
allow Staff a reasonable and responsible amount of time to evaluate and assess the potential
impacts on how MMEs affect communities who permit them. Due to these regulations being
newly implemented, there may be negative impacts to said communities that are unknown, Staff
believes after a year of the new regulations being implemented, the County can evaluate how
MME:s affect said communities and proceed forward with the Board’s determination whether to
allow or prohibit MMEs within the County. After the one-year moratorium, the Board will
ultimately need to make a final determination on whether to allow or prohibit MMEs from
locating within Storey County. If the Board chooses to allow MMEs, business licensing and
zoning regulations/controls will need to be in place. Direction to Staff should be given if the
Board chooses not to impose the one-year moratorium to prohibit MMEs in the County.




RESOLUTION NO. 14-408

RESOLUTION OF THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
IMPOSING A TEMPORARY MORATORIUM ON MEDICAL MARIJUANA
ESTABLISHMENTS AND TEMPORARILY PROHIBITING THE COUNTY FROM
ACCEPTING ANY APPLICATIONS OR REQUESTS TO OPERATE, PERMIT, OR
LICENSE ANY MEDICAL MARITUANA ESTABLISHMENTS,

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, STOREY
COUNTY, NEVADA

WHEREAS, SB 374 was adopted by the Nevada Legislature during its 77th Session and
approved by the Governor of the State of Nevada on June 12, 2013, the majority of which has
been codified in NRS Chapter 453A1 Medical Marijuana; and

WHEREAS, provisions of SB 374, require the Division of Public and Behavioral Health
of the Department of Health and Human Services of the State of Nevada ("Division") to
promulgate regulations for the consideration of applications and the issuance of certificates to
allow the operations of medical marijuana establishments?2 in the State of Nevada, and
specifically in the County of Storey; and

WHEREAS, SB374 mandates the Division finalize these regulations on or before April 1,
2014, and further the Division has stated it will not accept medical marijuana establishment
applications until the Summer of 2014, and at the earliest will issue certificates for medical
marijuana establishments in the Fall of 2014;and

WHEREAS, SB374 requires an applicant for a medical marijuana establishment to
provide to the Division proof of licensure with the applicable local government or a letter from
the local government confirming that the proposed medical marijuana establishment is in
compliance with local zoning regulations and building requirements; and

WHEREAS, SB374 and the Division's currently proposed regulations, provide that a
medical marijuana establishment registration certificate issued by the Division shall be
provisional until such time as the establishment is in compliance with all applicable local
governmental ordinances or rules, and the local government has issued a business license, if
applicable, for the operation of the establishment; and

WHEREAS, the Storey County Code currently does not allow for any medical marijuana
establishments or uses as contemplated by SB 374, nor does Storey County have a general
business licensing code, thus medical marijuana establishments are not allowed, and
development permits cannot be issued specifically for the construction of structures to house any
of the medical marijuana establishments as contemplated by SB 374 and incorporated into NRS
453A; and

1 SB 374 and NRS 453A.370 allows the Division to adopt and codify regulations in the Nevada
Administrative Code.




2 5B374 and NRS 453A.116 defines a "medical marijuana establishment" as: 1) an independent
testing laboratory; 2) a cultivation facility; 3) a facility for the production of edible marijuana
products or marijuana infused products; 4) a medical marijuana dispensary; or 5) a business that
has registered with the Division and paid the requisite fees to act as more than one of the
aforementioned establishments. SB374 (2013) at § 8.3.

WHEREAS, as some potential applicants for State medical marijuana establishment
certificates might attempt to assert that a medical marijuana establishment is a use contemplated
and allowed by the Storey County Code (SCC), including Title 17, the Storey County Board of
County Commissioners desire to make clear that Storey County's Code, including Title 17, as
drafted, does not permit any of the medical marijuana establishments or associated uses as
contemplated by SB 374 and Nevada Revised Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners further desires to take a
responsible amount of time, which is reasonably necessary to thoughtfully consider and evaluate
the Division's adopted regulations and application process, policy considerations, legal
implications, any impact on Storey County fiscal resources and staff, conformance with the
Storey County Master Plan, any tmpact on quality of life for Storey County residents, any impact
on the character and desirable features of Storey County per NRS 278.250, as well as the impact
on the health, safety, morals and general welfare of the community as required by NRS 278.020;
before determining whether medical marijuana establishments should be restricted within Storey
County, either by designating the use as prohibited or if allowed, what zoning controls are
appropriate. Thus the County desires to temporarily place a moratorium on medical marijuana
establishments, prohibit medical marijuana establishments as an allowed use within Title 17, and
temporarily prohibit the County, through its personnel from accepting any land use applications,
development permit applications, business license applications, building permit applications or
any other application or request to operate or otherwise license or permit any of the medical
marijuana establishments or associated uses as contemplated by SB 374 and incorporated into
Nevada Revised Statues or Nevada Administrative Code; and

WHEREAS, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners, based on the above,
directs an ordinance to be brought forward for its consideration imposing a temporary
moratorium, not to exceed 360 calendar days, designating medical marijuana establishments as a
prohibited use, and prohibiting the acceptance and consideration of any and all land use
applications, development permit applications, business license applications, building permit
applications or any other application or request to operate or otherwise license or permit any of
the medical marijuana establishments or associated uses as contemplated by SB 374 and
incorporated into Nevada Revised Statutes or Nevada Administrative Code.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: the County and its personnel shall not
accept, nor consider, any land use applications, development permit applications, business
license applications, building permit applications or any other application or request to operate or
otherwise license or permit medical marijuana establishments or associated uses as contemplated
by SB 374 and incorporated into the Nevada Revised Statutes or Nevada Administrative Code.




BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall be effective upon the date of
adoption.

PROPOSED AND ADOPTED this day of September 2014,
THOSE VOTING AYE
THOSE VOTING NAY

ADOPTED this day of September 2014,

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY COUNTY

By:
Marshall McBride, Chairman

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk and Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:  September 16, 2014 Estimate of time required: 15 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action to approve a Lease with an Option to Purchase the
courthouse parking lot and surrounding area from THE BUCKET OF BLOOD SALOON,
INC. (APN 001-081-01, APN 001-081-02 and APN 001-081-05) $4,500 per quarter until
July, 2017 whereupon Storey County can purchase the property on the terms set forth.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve a Lease with an Option to Purchase the courthouse
parking lot and surrounding area from THE BUCKET OF BLOOD SALQON, INC. (APN
001-081-01, APN 001-081-02 and APN 001-081-05) $4,500 per quarter until July, 2017
whereupon Storey County can purchase the property on the terms set forth

3. Prepared by: William A. Maddox
Department: District Attorney Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: Storey County presently leases APN 001-081-05 for $4,500 per quarter. This
will add APN 001-081-01 and APN 001-081-02 for the same rental amount and it gives the
county the option to purchase APN 001-081-01, APN 001-081-02 and APN 001-081-05 at
the same square footage cost as the Clark/Gallagher properties already purchased or at an
appraised value whichever value is less.

5. Supporting materials: Lease Agreement with an Option to Purchase

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Yes Fund: General Fund Comptroller

7. Legal review required: (if yes the district attorney must sign off by initialing)

8. Reyiewed by:

A epartment Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[]  Denied [

Continued

— e

Agenda Item No.




COURTHOUSE PARKING LEASE WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE

- This Lease is entered into this day of , 2014 by and between
the Bucket of Blood Saloon, Inc., hereinafter "Lessor," and Storey County, hereinafter
"Lessee.”

WITNESSETH

WIHEREAS, Lessor is the owner of the real property to the south side of the Courthouse
on B Street in Virginia City, Nevada, which is presently partially leased by Lessee for
parking of vehicles, and

WHEREAS, Lessor owns two other parcels of property contiguous with the property
presently being leased by Lessee, and

WHEREAS, Lessor and Lessee desire to amend the present lease to add the two
additional parcels to the lease at the same lease rent and on the same terms and conditions
which are set forth below.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED:

1. LEASED PREMISES. The term "Leased Premises" means the parcels of
real property to the south side of the Courthouse on B Street in Virginia City, Nevada
owned by the Bucket of Blood Saloon, Inc, and more particularly described in Exhibit A,
attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

2. TERM OF LEASE. The term of the present lease commenced July 1, 2012,
and ends at noon on June 30, 2017. At the end of the lease term Lessor and Lessee may
renegotiate the terms of a new lease, although neither party is obligated to do so. This
new Lease Agreement gives an Option to Purchase to Lessee.

3. RENT. Lessee agrees to pay to the Lessor and Lessor agrees to accept as
rental for the leased premises the sum of $4,500 per quarter, payable on the first day of
July, 2012, and on the first day of each quarter thereafter during the lease term.

4. PARKING BY THE PUBLIC. It is agreed that during non-courthouse
hours the public shall be permitted to park in all areas leased to Lessee hereunder. In this
regard Lessee shall post signs at the Leased Premises advising the public of the evening
hours, weekends, and holidays that public parking is available. In the event Lessee needs
parking at times otherwise open to the public, Lessee may cover signs to prevent the
public from parking at the leased premises.

Page 1 of 5




5. LIABILITY INSURANCE. Lessee shall obtain a broad form
comprehensive coverage policy of public insurance for the Leased Premises, and name
Lessor as an additional insured during the lease term. Lessee shall provide Lessor with a
certificate of insurance coverage provided by the insurance company at each renewal date
during the lease term.

6. MAINTENANCE OF LEASED PREMISES. Lessee shall maintain the
leased premises in a manner suitable for public and private parking purposes and shall not
permit waste of the premises and shall not permit the use of said premises for any
unlawful purpose.

6. DESTRUCTION OF LEASED PREMISES. Should any part of said leased
premises be destroyed or rendered unusable during the lease term because of earthquake,
fire, casualty, flood, subsidence, caving, or any other cause not the fault of Lessee, this
lease may be terminated by either Lessor or Lessee upon 30 days written notice, unless
Lessor exercises Lessor's option to repair and restore the premises to usable condition at
Lessor's cost and expense. Alternatively, the parties may agree to an abatement of rent
for any portion of the leased premises not usable.

7. SUBLEASING AND ASSIGNING. Lessee shall not encumber, assign or
otherwise transfer this Lease, or any right or interest herein, without the express written
consent of the Lessor first had and obtained. Any encumbrance, assignment or transfer
without the prior written consent of Lessor is void and of no effect, and shall, at the
option of the Lessor, terminate this lease.

8. NOTICES. Any notices or other communications required or permitted by
this Lease or by law to be served on or given to either party hereto by the other party
hereto shall be in writing and shall be deemed duly served and given when personally
delivered to any officer or manager of the Lessor or Lessee, to whom it is directed or, in
lieu of such personal service, when deposited in the United States mail, first class postage
prepaid, addressed to the parties at their addresses set forth below.

TO Lessor:

Marshall L. McBride

Treasurer Bucket of Blood Saloon, Inc.
Drawer E

Virginia City, NV 89440

TO Lessee:

Page 2 of 5




Storey County Board of Commissioners
PO Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440

9. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL If Lessor desires to sell the leased premises
prior to July 1, 2017, Lessee shall have a right to exercise the Option to Purchase set out
below on the terms and conditions set out therein.

10. OPTION TO PURCHASE Lessor hereby grants to Lessee the option to
purchase the Leased Premises subject to the following terms and conditions.

A. The option to purchase may not be exercised prior to July 1, 2017,

B. The option to purchase shall not be effective if Lessee is in default
under any of the terms of the Lease and Purchase Option at the time Lessee
attempts to exercise the option.

C. The purchase price at the time of the exercise of the option to
purchase shall be the value of the Leased Properties as determined by a MAI
appraiser or the same square foot price paid for 62 South B Street (APN 001-081-
06) and 82 South B Street (APN 1-081-07) whichever price or value is less. The
MALI appraiser shall be agreed upon by both parties. If Lessor is not satisfied with
the appraisal, Lessor may have another appraisal done by another MAI appraiser
and the average of both appraisals shall be the appraised value.

D. Lessee shall exercise the option by giving Sixty (60) days written
notice to Lessor. Within Fifteen (15) days after such notice unless otherwise
agreed to by the parties, the parties will meet and except for the purchase price,
negotiate the terms of purchase of the Leased Premises.

E. Lessee shall pay all costs of escrow to include escrow fees,
premiums for the policy of title insurance, and any recording fees.

F. This option is personal to Lessee and shall not be assigned.

11. ATTORNEYS FEES. Should any litigation be commenced between the
parties concerning the subject matter hereof, the party prevailing in such litigation shall
be entitled, in addition to such other relief as may be granted, to a reasonable sum as and
for attorneys' fees and costs in the litigation which shall be determined by the court.

12, BINDING ON SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. This Lease shall be
binding on and shall inure to the benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties, but
nothing in this paragraph shall be construed as a consent by Lessor to any assignment of
this Lease by Lessee.

13. TIME OF THE ESSENCE. Time is expressly declared to be of the essence
of this lease.

Page 3 of 5




14. SOLE AGREEMENT. This document constitutes the sole and only
agreement between Lessor and Lessee respecting said premises or the leasing of said
premises. It correctly sets forth the obligations of Lessor and Lessee to each other as of
its date, and any agreements or representations respecting said premises, or their leasing
by Lessor to Lessee not expressly set forth in this instrument are null and void.

15. AMENDMENTS. This Lease may not be amended except by an instrument
in writing executed by the parties hereto.

16. APPLICABLE LLAW. Any dispute concerning this lease or the subject
matter hereof shall be determined by the laws of the State of Nevada. Venue for any
litigation herecunder shall be in Storey County, State of Nevada.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease the day and year first
above written.

BUCKET OF BLOOD SALOON, INC., Lessor

By:

Steve McBride, Secretary
STOREY COUNTY, Lessee
By:

Pat Whitten, County Manager

Pagedof 5




EXHIBIT A

APN 001-081-01

Being a portion of Lot 20 Block 103 Range “A” Virginia City, Storey County,
Nevada and being described as follows:

Beginning at the Southwest corner of said Lot 20; Thence from said point of
beginning and along the east boundary of A street north 23 fee; Thence east at right
angles 23.25 feet to a point; Thence North at right angles 23 feet to the South
boundary of Lot 18, in said Block and Range; thence along the said last mentioned
boundary eat 23 fee to the West boundary of Lot 19, in said block and range;
Thence along the West boundary of Lots 19, 21, and 23, in said Block and Range
71 feet to the Southeast corner of said Lot 20, Thence along the South boundary of
said lot 20 West 46 feet More or less to the POINT OF BEGINNING.

APN 001-081-01

Lots 22 and 24 in Block 103 Range “A”, Virginia City, Storey County.

APN 001-081-01

West 39 feet, 8 inches, of Lots 26 and 27, Block 103, Range “A”, Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada.

Excepting therefrom the lands, contained in the Decree Quieting Title recorded
September 22, 1975 in Book 2 of Official Records at Page 567, Storey County,
Nevada.

APN 001-081-02

Block 103, Range A, Lots 12, 14, 16, 18, and the Northwest 1/4 of Lot 20, Virginia
City, Storey County, Nevada.

APN 001-081-05

Lots 11, 13, and 15, Lob 103, Range “A”, Virginia City, County of Storey, State of
Nevada, as shown on the official plat map thereof.

Page Sof 5




H«LON ‘01 1aquiaydag sdepy [a21eg pue [eLay - Joa{oig 107 Sunjieg ummoﬁ.ﬁoUn_

EEL L (=0 1 —
Aepunog 19900 ] s i

SIOQqUIMN] [90Ted pue eary 109lo1g "




Material will be available at the meeting
for Items #14 and #15




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 16, 2014 Estimate of time required: 20 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda {x] Public hearing required {x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit Extension & Amendment 2012-014-A-1-2014, By
Robert MacLachlan on behalf of Vista Towers, for a property located at 21485 Saddleback Road, Virginia City
Highlands, Storey County, Nevada {APN: 003-101-66). The applicant requests an amendment to Special Use
Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a condition of the existing permit requiring a contract with one or more
cellular carriers before construction of the “mono-pine” wireless communications tower may commence. The
Applicant is also requesting an extension to Special Use Permit 2012-014 which, due to inactivity, will expire.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Storey County Planning Commission
and Staff, the Findings under section 4.1 of the Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board,
and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, T [Commissioner] hereby move to approve with conditions for
Special Use Permit Application Number 2012-014-A-~1-2014 for an amendment and extension to Special Use Permit
2012-014 and the extension of SUP pursuant to SCC 17.03.150 (G).

3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: The Applicant requests an amendment to Special Use Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a
condition of the existing permit requiring a contract with one or more cellufar carriers before construction of the
“mono-pine” wireless communications tower may commence. The Applicant is also requesting an extension to
Special Use Permit 2012-014 which, due to inactivity, will expire.

5. Supporting materials: Staff report, exhibits and appendices.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. R‘eview% by:
Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[ Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued Agenda Item No.

e
f E—T




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse

Phone (775) 847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

=,
To: Storey County Board of County Commissionets
From: Storey County Planning Department
Meeting Date: September 16, 2014 at 10am

Meeting Location:
Staff Contact:
File:

Applicant:
Property Owner:

Property Location:

Figures:

Appendix:

Guiding Documents:

Request:

Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Dessie Redmond, Planner

2012-014-A-1-2014

Daniel Davis

Carmen Kuffner

21485 Saddleback Road, Virginia City Highlands 1 Acre Estates, Storey County,
Nevada (APN; 003-101-66)

Figure 1-Vicinity Map; Figure 2-Zoning Map; Figure 3-Site Photos; Figures 4-Uses on
Abutting Parcels

Appendix 1-Letter Submitted by Applicant; Appendix 2-April 5, 2012 SC Planning
Comimission Staff Report; Appendix 3-April 5, 2012 Amendment to the Stafl’
Report; Appendix 4-June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner’s Office and Planning Staff
Recommendation Summary

Storey County Code-Sections 17.03.150 Special Use Permit (Conditional Use), 17.40
Estates and the Storey County Master Plan

An amendment to Special Use Permit 2012-014 in order to modify a condition of

the existing permit requiring a contract with one or more cellular carriers before
construction of the “mono-pine” wireless communications tower may commence. The
Applicant is also requesting an extension to Special Use Permit 2012-014 which, due
to inactivity, will expire.

g

=
Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014

Intfroduction




QR4

342103

Figure 2 - Zoning Map

1. BACKGROUND &
ANALYSIS

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject property is located at
21485 Saddleback Road in the Virginia
City Highlands in Storey County,
Nevada (Assessor Parcel Number
(APN) 003-101-66). The property is
approximately 2.82 acres and is owned
by Carmen Kuffner. Virginia City is
approximately 7 miles to the south, and
Reno is approximately 21 miles to the
northwest (Figure 1 - Vicinity Map).The
subject property is zoned Virginia City
Highlands One Acre Estates (E1 VCH)
(Figure 2 - Zoning Map). The subject
property is currently vacant. (Figures 3:
Site Photo).

The subject property is accessed off
Geiger Grad Road, via Cartwright and
off of Saddleback Road.

1.2 Background

There is an existing Special Use Permit
(SUP) on the subject property to install
and operate an 84 foot high commercial
cellular communications tower and
accessory structure,

In April 2012, the Storey County
Planning Commission (Planning
Commission) recommended approval
for Special Use Permit (SUP) Number
2012-014 and in June of 2012 the Board
of County Commissioners (the Board)
gave final approval for SUP Number
2012-014. This application is a request
for an extension to SUP Number 2012-
014.

[m,
Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014

O
Background & Anaiysis




Furthermore, the Applicant is also requesting an amendment to the existing SUP. The requested
amendment is to modify Conditions 2 and 3 of SUP Number 2012-014. The explanation for the
requested extension and amendment is explained in Appendix 1 - Letter Submitted by the Applicant.

As outlined in Appendix 1, the Applicant states the original Condition of Approval that required the
Applicant to submit proof of a binding contact with at least one commercial wireless carrier before a
building permit can be obtained has proven to delay the implementation of the tower.

1.3 Storey County Code Requirements

Storey County Code (SCC) 17.03.150 (G) states, “Extension and expiration of permits. If circumstances
beyond the control of the applicant result in a failure to complete applicable special use permit
conditions and construct or commence the use prior to the expiration date, the applicant may request in
writing an extension of the expiration date. The written request for an extension must be received by
the community development department within 30 days prior to the expiration date. The application
must state the reason for the extension request. The board with action by the planning commission may
approve a 24 month extension of the special use permit and may approve up to 2 additional extensions
for time subject to the consideration of the continued appropriateness of the special use permit. The
extended special use permit may be subject to additional conditions imposed by the board to ensure that
the activity permitted by the special use permit does not adversely impact other properties in the area or
the public interest. If construction work is involved, the work must actually commence within the stated
period and be diligently pursued to completion. A stoppage or lapse of work for a period of 12 months
will invalidate the special use permit. When any use of land, building, structure or premises established
under the provisions of this chapter has been discontinued for a period of 24 consecutive months, it

is unlawful to again use the land or building or premises for the discontinued use unless a subsequent
special use permit is authorized and issued.”

1.4 Abutting Properties Existing Land Uses

There is an existing single-family residence on the abutting property to the west. The other abutting
properties are vacant (Figure 4 - Uses on Abutting Parcels). Some of these abutting vacant properties
have existing improvements such as a well and/or septic tank.

1.5 Abutting Properties Zoning

The abutting properties to the north are zoned E1 VCH and the abutting properties to the south are zoned
Virginia City Highland Ranches 10 Acre Estates E10 (Figure 2 - Zoning Map).

intentionally left blank

[} |
Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Background & Analysis




‘ui, ;I et

Figure 3 - Site Photo looking south through site.

£F

u |
Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Background & Analysis




2, COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE
SCC 17.03.150 Special Use Permit (Conditional Use)

In Section 1.3 Storey County Code Requirements of this Staff Report it states the extended SUP may
be subject to additional or amended conditions from the original Conditions of Approval (Appendix

2 - April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report, Appendix 3 - April 5, 2012 Amendment

to the Staff Report and Appendix 4 - June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner’s Office and Planning Staff
Recommendation Summary).

The Applicant is requesting amending the following conditions:

-8 i preretalwis : - wer. The Permlt Holder shall
apply for all requlred permlts and hcenses including butldmg and fire permits, for the project
within twenty four (24) months from the date of final approval of SUP No. 2012-014 as amended in
SUP 2012-014-A4-1-2014, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits/licenses, or this
approval shall be null and void. This SUP shall remain valid as long as the Permit Holder remains in
compliance with the terms of this SUP and Storey County, Nevada State, and federal regulations. No
construction or permitting for construction shall commence prior to issuance of the SUP and a valid
Storey County Building Permit.

Condition 3. Closure/Abandonment. In the event that the tower and facility becomes
decommissioned or is absent of any permitted wireless carriers-end-entennse for a period of any
three consecutive years commencing afier the first five years from compleiion of construction
three-consecutive-years, Storey County shall reserve the right to deem the facility abandoned and
mandate the monopine tower and facility to be removed within 180 days thereof at the Permit
Holder’s expense. The applicant shall reserve the right to appeal the decision of abandonment.
The process for the appeal shall be as pursuant to Chapter 17.60 and 17.62 of the Storey County
Code. Removal and reclamation shall include complete removal of the entire facility including
the monopine, monopole tower, antennae, electrical wiring and connections, accessory buildings
and structures, foundations and pads up ro two feet below grade, and all other appurtenances.
Reclamation of the site to a condition reasonably existing prior to development shall be completed
to the satisfaction of Storey County. Under no circumstances shall Storey County, its officers, and
representatives bare any cost or responsibility for the removal of said facilities or reclamation of
the site. (Appendix 2-April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report, which states the original
Conditions of Approval)

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

Staff has not received any formal public comment for this file as of posting date. However, Staff
has received continuous inquiries, since the approval of the original SUP, from residents about the
implementation of the tower.

=,

Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014

0

Cempliance with the SCC & Public Comment




4. FINDINGS

4.1 Motion for Approval

The following Findings are the same Findings from SUP 2012-014 (Appendix 4 - June 19, 2012 SC
Commissioner’s Office and Planning Staff Recommendation Summary).

The following Findings are evident with regard to the requested SUP when the recommended conditions
of approval in Section 5 - Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied. The approval, approval
with conditions, or denial of a SUP must be based on findings that indicate that the proposed Application
is appropriate in the location for which it is approved. The Findings listed in this subsection are the
minimum to be cited in an approval; the Planning Commission may include additional Findings in

its decision. The Planning Commission must cite Findings in the motion for approval, approval with
conditions, or denial. At a minimum, the approval should be based on the following Findings:

4.1.1 The proposed commercial wireless communications facility is in accordance with the stated
goals and objectives of the Storey County Master Plan by providing wireless telephone and internet
to this populated region to better “protect the public safety and welfare of residents” (Goal 6.5, p.

7) by enhancing emergency communications, including “Emergency 9-1-17 services, and response
times for emergency personnel; increasing education opportunities by facilitating efficient and
reliable access to the internet (Goal 6.1 and 6.6, pp. 6 - 7); fulfilling a long recognized need and
desire for consistent and reliable communications in the residential area (Goal 6. 2, Objective 2.1, p.
7); and “[maintaining] a healthy environment for all residents of the county (Goal 9.1, Objective 1.1,
p.9) by fulfilling the above and by implementing substantial measures to mitigate visual impacts that
otherwise would cause substantial adverse impact to the surrounding environment.

4.1.2 A special use permit in accordance with Section 17.12.044 and Chapter 17.62 of the County
Code is required for the proposed wireless commercial communications antenna support tower as
proposed by SUP Application No. 2012-014.

4.1.3 The proposed facility is in accordance with the conditions of SUP No. 2012-014 will not
conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the E-1-VCH (Estate
Zone), in which the commercial wireless communication facility is proposed be located.

4.1.4 The conditions and stipulations under SUP No. 2012-014 are in accordance with the minimum
requirements set forth by Chapter 17.62 of the Storey County Code and are at least as stringent as
and not in conflict the applicable federal and Nevada State and Storey County regulations, including
the applicable rules of the FCC and the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, pertaining to the
construction and placement of structures and the construction and operation of commercial wireless
communications towers.

 4.1.5 The conditions of approval under SUP No. 2012-014 impose sufficient regulations on the
wireless commercial communications facility to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on adjacent
and surrounding residences and land uses.

4.1.6 Growth in the commercial wireless telecommunications industry has resulted in increased
applications to municipalities for installation of wireless signal facilities. As consumer demand
increases, so does the need for the industry to expand the number of antennae receiving and

o 0
Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Findings




transmitting signals. As stated in the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, since more than
one antenna can be co-located on a tower structure, communities, including Storey County, should
encourage and require co-location wherever feasible, thereby reducing the amount of new towers
being constructed on the landscape.

4.1.7 The approval of the commercial wireless communications facility will result in personal
wireless communications capability including, but not limited to, cellular telephone, internet, and
broadband in an existing populated area currently underserved or not served such services.

4.1.8 The approval of the commercial wireless communications facility will promote the safety
of life and property for the area served by enhancing emergency telecommunications services,
including “Emergency 9-1-17, for area residents and local emergency response authorities.

4.1.9 In accordance with the Telecommunications Act of 1996, the proposed facility will fill an
existing gap in the ability of remote users to access the national telephone network. In this context,
the relevant gap is a gap in the service currently available to remote local users, and the area being
served is not already adequately served by another provider.

4.1.10 The provider applicant has demonstrated that the manner in which it proposes to fill the
significant gap in service is the least intrusive on the values...and has demonstrated a good faith
effort to identify and evaluate the least intrusive alternatives, e.g., that the provider has considered
less sensitive sites, alternative system designs, alternative tower designs and placement of antennae,
ete.

4.,1.11 In accordance with 47 (U.S.C. Section 332(c)(7)}B)(iv) of the Federal Code, the decision to
approval, deny, or regulate the placement, construction, and modification of the commercial wireless
communications facility is not based on electronic interference or the environmental effects of radio
frequency emissions.

4,2 Motion for Denial
Should a motion be made to deny the SUP request, the following Findings with explanation of why
should be included in that motion.

4.2.1 The proposed facility is not accordance with one or more of the stated goals and objectives of
the Storey County Master Plan.

4.2.2 The proposed facility, even with reasonable conditions and mitigation, will conflict with the
purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the E1-VCH, in which the commercial
wireless communication facility is proposed be located.

4.2.3 No reasonable level of conditions imposed under SUP Number 2012-014 would be sufficient to
reasonably mitigate visual, safety, or other potential impacts on adjacent and surrounding residences
and land uses.

4.2.4 The applicant has not demonstrated that the manner in which it proposes te fill the significant
gap in service is the least intrusive on the values...and the Applicant has not demonstrated a good
faith effort to identify and evaluate the least intrusive alternatives, e.g., considering less sensitive

|

u;

Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014

Findings




sites, alternative system designs, alternative tower designs and placement of antennae, etc.

4.2.5 In accordance with 47 (U.S.C. Section 332(c)}(7)(B)(iv) of the Federal Code, the decision
to deny the application for the commercial wireless communications facility is not based on the
electronic interference or environmental effects of radio frequency emissions.

5. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

The following Conditions of Approval are the same Conditions of Approval from SUP 2012-014
(Appendix 4 - June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner’s Office and Planning Staff Recommendation Summary)
except amended Conditions 2 and 3 (page 5 of your Staff Report).

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable Storey County Department.

Special Uses. Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2012-014 shall be for the purpose of installing and
operating a commercial wireless communication antennae tower as defined and regulated pursuant
to the advisory motion made by the Storey County Planning Commission and approved by the Board
of Storey County Comunissioners on property located at 21485 Saddleback Road (APN 003-101-
66), Virginia City Highlands, Storey County, Nevada. The operation shall remain in compliance
with all of the provisions set forth by this SUP and federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes
and regulations, including applicable regulations the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and the
applicable rules under Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Issuance of this SUP does not
convey property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any injury (o
persons or property, any invasion of other private rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or
regulations. '

. Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including

building and fire permits, for the project within twenty four (24) months from the date of final
approval of SUP No. 2012-014 as amended in SUP 2012-014-A-1-2014, and continuously maintain
the validity of those permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This SUP shall remain
valid as long as the Permit Holder remains in compliance with the terms of this SUP and Storey
County, Nevada State, and federal regulations. No construction or permitting for construction shall
commence prior to issuance of the SUP and a valid Storey County Building Permit.

Closure/Abandonment. In the event that the tower and facility becomes decommissioned or is
absent of any permitted wireless carriers for a period of any three consecutive years commencing
after the first five years from completion of construction, Storey County shall reserve the right to
deem the facility abandoned and mandate the monopine tower and facility to be removed within
180 days thereof at the Permit Holder’s expense. The applicant shall reserve the right to appeal

the decision of abandonment. The process for the appeal shall be as pursuant to Chapter 17.60 and
17.62 of the Storey County Code. Removal and reclamation shall include complete removal of the
entire facility including the monopine, monopole tower, antennae, electrical wiring and connections,
accessory buildings and structures, foundations and pads up to two feet below grade, and all other
appurtenances. Reclamation of the site to a condition reasonably existing prior to development shall
be completed to the satisfaction of Storey County. Under no circumstances shall Storey County,

its officers, and representatives bare any cost or responsibility for the removal of said facilities or
reclamation of the site,

-0

[m,

Staff Report - 2012-074-A-1-2014

Recommended Conditions of Approvatl




10.

Transfer of Rights. This SUP shall inure to the record owner of the Subject Property and to the Permit
Applicant (Vista Towers, LLC) and shall run with the land. Any and all transfers of SUP No. 2012-014
shall be advised in writing by Certified Mail to Storey County Planning Department at least 90 days prior to
assignee taking over operation of facility. The operators of the facility must sign and accept all conditions
and requirements of SUP No. 2012-014.

Indemnification/Insurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land will conform to the
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal requirements;
further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued and future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit
Holder and property owner(s) agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from
the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing
or which may occur as a result of this SUP. The Permit Holder shall maintain satisfactory liability insurance
for all aspects of this operation under SUP No. 2012-014 for a minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 (one
million dollars) and provide proof thereof to Storey County prior securing rights to the SUP.

Emergency Telephone. Any persons located on the premises in connection with maintenance, repairs, or
other work on the premises shall be made aware to dial Storey County Emergency Services Direct-Connect
775.847.0950 (in lieu of 9-1-1) when dialing emergency service from cellular telephone. Emergency 9-1-1
still applies to landline telephones.

Site Security. The entire facility shall be secured by a six-foot high fence sufficient in design to maintain
appropriate security for the premises. Exterior accessory building walls may also be utilized for this purpose
as appropriate. The Permit Holder may top the fence with three strands of barbed wire if allowable by

the Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association (VCHPOA). The fence shall be color coated

in accordance with the requirements under “Coloration and Appearance” of this SUP. Video security
surveillance, while not hereby required, may be installed within the facility but shall in no way infringe

or intrude upon on the personal privacy on adjacent or area properties and residences. The tower shall be
appropriately designed to prevent unauthorized climbing.

Cautionary Signage. Signage shall be installed at the main port of entry (i.e., facility gates) stating the
company’s name, site address, and 24-hour company management emergency contact phone number(s).
Signage shall indicate all potential hazards and safety requirements associated with entering the facility.

Emergency Management Plan. A comprehensive emergency management plan shall be developed by the
Permit Holder and submitted for approval to the Storey County Fire Department for review and approval
prior to securing rights to the SUP. The plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following in case of
failure of the communications facility or related appurtenances: (1) Permit Holder’s emergency contact
phone number(s); (2) emergency contact procedure, including for Emergency Dispatch 9-1-1 and Storey
County Emergency Direct-Connect 775.847.0950; (3) documenting and reporting procedures; (4) post
structure failure management, clean-up, reclamation, and material disposal; (5) electrical system shut-down
procedure; (6) disclosure and management of hazardous materials (e.g., asbestos) or other conditions (e.g.,
radiation), if applicable; (7} post structure failure damage reporting and treatment of affected neighboring
properties; and (8) emergency access, staging, and egress.

Necessity to Local Jurisdiction. In accordance with Section 17.62.010 of the Storey County Code,
the applicable provisions of the Storey County Master Plan, and applicable regulations under the

[m}

{1

Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Recommended Conditions of Approval




Telecommunications Act of 1996 in determining that the commercial communications facility
enhances the safety and wellbeing of the community, the Permit Holder shall collaborate with

Storey County to develop a mutually acceptable plan by which county-owned emergency radio
communications repeater antennae may be installed and operated on the monopole structure (as
compatible with all other commercial carriers and wireless equipment thereon or proposed to be
placed thereon) and by which necessary ground support equipment may be placed and operated
within the facility parameters. This condition of approval recognizes that Storey County shall be
responsible for all costs for acquiring, installing, maintaining, operating (i.e., utility costs), and
repairing the county-owned antennae, ground support equipment, and other appurtenances, including
any associated financial burdened by the Permit Holder, but Storey County shall not be assessed

any fee or other charge for said use of the tower and facility. County-owned equipment placed upon
exterior portions of the facility shall comply with the visual design requirements under this SUP and/
or the VCHPOA.

11. Carrier Capacity. The monopine support structure shall be capable in design to co-locate no less than
four commercial wireless carriers. The Permit Holder is hereby encouraged to co-locate additional
carriers as the facility may accommodate in accordance with the conditions of this SUP.

12. Plans Submittal. The Applicant shall provide Storey County Planning and Building Departments
site plans, drawn to scale, which shall include dimensions of existing and proposed structures, as
applicable, setback dimensions, and driveway dimensions. All other submittals applicable to a valid
Building Permit shall also apply.

13. Setbacks. In accordance with Section 17.40.050 of the Storey County Code, minimum setbacks area
as follows: (a) front vard, 30 feet; (b) rear yard, 40 feet; and (¢} side yards, 1S5 feet. The minimum
setback requirement shall apply to towers, antennae, foundation pads, and buildings. Additionally,
the monopine shall be located no closer than its total height plus 10 percent of its total height, from
grade level to uppermost tip, to any Antenna Limitations.

14. Antenna Lirnitations. The monopine and facility shall be used exclusively for commercial wireless
communications. The towers shall not be used to support amateur or other non-commercial radio
antennae, or lights, flags, banners, pennants, etc. Storey County emergency repeaters and antenna
shall be exempt from this requirement.

15. Noise. Power generator(s) (also to include “alternator(s)”) shall be muffied and remain within a
sound-insulated structure, encasement, or sound buffer walls (such as concrete masonry unit walls)
sufficient to attenuate noise to or below the limitations set forth by Chapter 8.04 of the Storey
County Code within 100’ of the facility. The generator shall only operate during power outages and
periods of maintenance or repair. All other noise emitted from the facility, except during times of
periodic maintenance and repair, shall not exceed 40 dBA at a point of 100’ from the antenna tower,
equipment shelter, or any other noise emitting device or facility within the premises.

16. Area Lighting. There shall be no outdoor lighting, including security and other area lighting,
permitted on the premises except under the following circumstances: outdoor lighting is managed
by an automated motion detector system that maintains all lights “off” unless motion is detected,
at which point lights may remain “on” for no more than four minutes; and all outdoor lights
are shielded in accordance with Section 08.02.04 of the Storey County Code (“Dark Skies™).
[Mumination of the premises during times of maintenance and repair shall be exempt from the

o 5|
Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Recommended Conditions of Approval

10




17.

18.

{imitations of this section.

Beacon Lighting. The tower, antennae, and other appurtenances thereto shall not be constructed
or altered to a height that would necessitate Federal Aviation Association (FAA) beacon lighting
or special applied coloration. Unless required otherwise by the FAA, beacon lighting shall be
prohibited. There shall be no direct or indirect illumination of or on any tower or antenna system.
The FAA shall be the responsible agency for requiring, or not requiring, beacon lighting or other
signaling devices to be applied to the structures.

Facility Coloration and Appearance, The facility shall be developed in accordance with the plans
and drawings submitted as part of SUP Application No. 2012-014. The Permit Holder shall be
responsible for maintaining the facility’s appearance in accordance with the requirements of terms
and conditions of this SUP. Additionally, the Permit Holder shall obtain approval from the VCHPOA
for colors and composition of equipment shelters, buildings, and other appurtenances, but not the
monopine structure which shall remain in accordance with the design criteria under this Section

of the SUP. In the event that a conflict arises between this Section and the requirements imposed

by the VCHPOA, the more stringent shall apply with regard to exterior colors and composition

of said portions of the facility. The following criteria shall be incorporated into the design of the
communications tower and facility prior to a Building Permit being issued:

a. The monopine tower shall at a minimum exhibit the appearance of a natural coniferous tree
similar in structure, design, branch density, overall branch coverage, and coloration as illustrated
in SUP Application No. 2012-014 and enclosed as Exhibit B (from the original SUP-SUP
Number 2012-014) of the SUP approval. The monopole structure may be void of branches and
other foliage from grade level to a point no higher than 12°, thus exhibiting a bare “tree trunk”.

b. Storey County Planning Development shall reserve the right to require additional “branch”
or foliage density, but no more than 3 branches per foot on monopole structure, necessary to
effectively conceal antennae, dishes, and other applied devices in order to create an appearance
that is consistent with the proposed design.

¢. The exterior finish of the monopole structure, equipment shelters, antennae, dishes, accessory
structures, and fencing shall be non-reflective, dull in appearance, and similar in color and hue

to the submitted monopine photo renditions, If it becomes unclear as to the color required for

the monopole structure and said surfaces, Kelly Moore “Sudan Brown” or a similar color of any
brand shall be the required color. Coloration of monopine branches and foliage shall be similar in
appearance and variation as the submitted renditions.

d. No antennae, dishes, or applied device shall protrude beyond the dense foliage of the
monopine branches. “Needle sleeves™ and/or other appropriate camouflage shall be placed over
such devices to further facilitate blending with the overall monopine,

e. At least 75 percent of all ground surfaces visible from outside the facility, including all
exposed cuts, fills, and graded siopes, shall be re-vegetated with native non-invasive plant
species and/or surfaced with aggregate, large rocks, or other material of a color and hue similar
to the immediate surrounding environment;

f. No advertising shall be permitted anywhere on the facility, with exception of signage in
accordance with the applicable requirements under these conditions;

|

m;

Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014

11

Recommended Conditions of Approval




g. The Permit Holder shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the monopine and
facility, as necessary, to remain in compliance with these design requirements. Failure to
maintain and repair the monopine and facility in accordance herewith shall be deemed violations
of the requirements of this SUP. All vandalism or graffiti to the facility shall be remedied by the
Permit Holder within seven calendar days of acknowledgement,

19. Vegetation Removal. Trees, shrubs, and other vegetation and ground surfaces shall be preserved to
the extent feasible.

20Q. Electrical Distribution and Controls. The location, routing, and alignment of exterior electrical and
communication controls, associated wiring, and power lines {except those now existing) shall be
approved by the Building Department, when applicable.

6. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it deems
warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution, and such
resolution must recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which it bases its decision. The
decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the SUP is advisory only to the Board of
County Commissioners and that governing body must consider the report and recommendation and must
make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

7. SEPTEMBER 4: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

On September 4, 2014, in accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under 4.1 of this
Staff Report and in compliance with all conditions of approval (1-20), the Storey County Planning
Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval with conditions for Special Use Permit 2012-
014-A-1-2014 (yes = 5, nay = 0, absent = 2).

8. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two motions from which to choose. The motion for approval with Conditions of
Approval 1s recommended by the Planning Commission and Staff, and in accordance with the Findings
under Section 4.1 of this Staff Report. Those Findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for
denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the Findings shown in section 4.2. Other
Findings determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

8.1 Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and Staff, the Findings

under Section 4.1 of this Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board, and

in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner] hereby move to approve with
conditions Special Use Permit Application Number 2012-014-A-1-2014 for an amendment and
extension to Special Use Permit 2012-014 and the extension of SUP pursuant to SCC 17.03.150 (G).

=, 0
Staff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Power of the Board and PC & September 4: PC Meeting & Proposed Maotions

12




8.2 Alternative Motion

In accordance with the Findings under Section 4.2 of this report and other Finding against the
recommendation for approval by the Planning Commission and Staff, I [Commissioner] hereby move
to deny Special Use Permit Application Number 2012-014-A-1-2014 for an amendment and extension
to Special Use Permit 2012-014 and the extension of SUP pursuant to SCC 17.03.150 (G).

Prepared by: Dessie Redmond
Storey County Planner

m} i
Sioff Report - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Proposed Motions

13




APPENDIX 1: LETTER SUBMITTED BY APPLICANT

o |
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 1: Letter Submitted by Applicant

14




June 13,2014

Austin Osborne

Senior Planner

Community Development Department
Storey County

P.0. Box 526

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE:  Request for Permit Extension — Special Use Permit 2012-014
21485 Saddleback Road, Virginia City Highlands, Nevada

Dear Mr. Osborne:

Vista Towers respectfully requests an extension of Special Use Permit 2012-014 for the following
reasons:;

As previously discussed, our understanding is that Vista Towers was reguired to “submit proof of
a binding contract with at least one commercial wireless carrier” before we can pull the building
permit. (Staff Recommendation Summary dated May 21, 2012)

To the extent a carrier lease is required before we can build the proposed facility, we become
beholden to the carrier’s entire new site build planning and budgetary process. Please understand
that a carrier’s process is extremely lengthy and cumbersome with local engineers prioritizing
sites, a committee review, scoring and approval by finance dept., and a national review for
approval and funding. While this process takes place every year, it takes the equivalent of an act
of congress (if it is possible at all} for unfunded site to be re-categorized. Once a site fails to get
funding, the result is that it gets pushed into the same process the following year.

To make matters even more difficult, priorities drastically change from year to year. So even
when it appears that a site has a high enough priority for the next year, a change in a corporate
directive can delay it for many additional years.

For example, carriers often try to balance new coverage sites versus the need for additional
capacity sites. Coverage sites are to provide new coverage, with Virginia City Highlands (VCH)
being a coverage site. Capacity sites are to add capacity in areas that already have coverage, but
the demand for service is outstripping the existing sites. The carriers often adjust the mix from
year to year, depending on their network performance. Therefore, VCH might be the 20™ most
important new coverage site, but they move 100 (or more) capacity siies into the budget before
VCH if they are having issues satisfying current customers.

In addition to a change in directives, the new site build budget can be dramatically affected by
major events like AT&T’s attempted purchase of T-Mobile in 2012/13 and AT&T’s current
attempt to purchase Direct TV. Those events tend to delay all the sites, pushing all funded and
unfunded sites out a year or more.

ul

[F

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

15

Appendix 1: Letter Submitted by Applicant




The best way to avoid this entire process is to go at risk and build the site. Once the site is built,
it becomes much more tangible to the carriers, the carrier’s know that they can be operational
within a relatively short period, and they use a different process to add the site. The casiest way
to explain it is that once built, they will look to the site if they have a funded site get delayed by
an entitlement, environmental or construction issue. As both AT&T and Verizon attempt to build
more than one hundred or more sites each year in the Northern California and Northern Nevada
market, it is inevitable to hit individual site delays. Vista Towers has been extremely successful
in having our sites get funded vsing this approach.

Vista Towers would very much like the opportunity to go at risk in order to complete the facility.
We have had countless conversation with both AT&T and Verizon, we know it 1s the correct
location, and believe strongly that this approach will result in service to the community. As you
know, we have the equipment building on our permit, which results in increased costs and risk,
and still believe the investment is warranted.

Additionally, we are very much aware that Sprint PCS and T-Mobile are also carriers that will be
interested in this facility. Please understand that we have submitted the site to both and speak to
both as well, but have not focused our response on AT&T and Verizon as the VCH facility is on
both of their “desired, but unfunded” site list, both Sprint and T-Mobile have had smaller builds
in the last years, and the site does not appear in their near term (3 year) build plan. With that said,
we will continue to make them aware of it and have it added to their plan.

With all this said, we re-read the conditions of the permit in order to reference it in a request for
its removes, and could not find the requirement of the carrier lease in the conditions. We see it in
the staff recommendations, but could not find it in the conditions. Therefore, we respectfully
further request a clarification as to this condition,

Tn addition to the clarification as the requirement of a carrier lease, we would further request a
modification to permit item #3 (Closure/Abandonment). That provision states that the County
could require the facility removal to the extent there is no carrier within three years. While that is
unlikely to oceur, and there is a right to an appeal of such a finding, it is somewhat difficult to
invest hundreds of thousands of dollars subject to this provision. If acceptable, we would like
the provision to be for any three year period commencing after the first five years from
completion of construction. This would remove any funding issues on our side and allow us to
proceed to construction.

To restate, we respectfully request an extension of the permit, a clarification of a need for a
carrier lease in order to proceed to a building permit, and a modification of item #3 in the special
use permit.

Please contact me at (714) 856-1000 for any questions or requests for additional information.

Sincerely,

Robert MacLakhlan
Managing Member
Vista Towers

£l

w,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

16

Appendix 1: Letter Submitted by Applicant




APPENDIX 2: APRIL 5, 2012 SC PLANNING COMMISSION
STAFF REPORT

o |
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

17




STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING COMMISSION

Staff Report

APPLICANT: Robert MacLachlan (Vista Towers, LLC)

PROPERTY OWNER: Carmen Kuffner

APN NUMBER: 003-101-66

ADDRESS OF PROJECT: 21485 Saddleback Road, Virginia City Highlands, Nevada
REQUEST: Request to obtain special use permit to install and operate an 84
foot high commercial cellular communications tower and

accessory structures.

MEETING LOCATION: Storey County Fire Station
2610 Cartwright Rd., Virginia City Highlands, Nevada

MEETING DATE: April 5, 2012

MEETING TIME: 6:00 PM

L KEY TERMS & DEFINITIONS

1.1 Commercial Mobile Services. As defined in Section 332 of the Communications Act
rules of the Federal Communications Commission (FCC), includes cellular telephone services
regulated under Part 22 of the FCC's rules, SMR services regulated under Part 90 of the FCC's
rules, and PCS regulated under Part 24 of the FCC's rules (47 C.F.R. § 20.9).

1.2 Commercial Wireless Telecommunications Tower. Any freestanding tower, monopole, or
similar structure used to provide personal wireless services (NRS 707.570).

1.3 Commercial Wireless Service. Commercial mobile service, unlicensed wireless services,
and common carrier wireless exchange access services (NRS 707.565 and 47 U.S.C. §

332(c)7)C)).

1.4 Commercial Wireless Communications Facility. A facility through which commercial

wireless telecommunications signals authorized by the FCC are transmitted or received. For the
purposes of SUP No. 2012-014, signals include commercial cellular telephone, wireless internet,
and broadband, and other commercial telecommunications.

1.5 Monopine. A monopole antennae support tower which is designed to closely resemble a

]

=,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

18

Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

pine tree in order to provide substantially reduced aesthetic impact on the surrounding area.

1.6 Co-location. The placement of two or more commercial wireless communications carriers
on a single tower or antennae support structure.

1.7 Wireless Carrier. A company or service provider that provides wireless voice or data
information service, such as cellular telephone, internet, and broadband services, and other
commercial telecommunications.

IL. BACKGROUND

2.1 Requirement by Code.

Special Use Permit Application No. 2012-014 was submitted pursuant to Sections 17.12.044 and
17.62.010 of the Storey County Code. Section 17.12.044 “Height of Buildings” states that
“radio, television, and other communications masts may extend not more than forty-five feet
above grade level, provided that the same may be safely erected and maintained at such height in
view of surrounding conditions and circumstances”. Section 17.62.010 “Special Uses” provides
for uses not expressly listed in each zone, i.e., antenna towers, “where they are deemed essential
or desirable for the public convenience and welfare.”

2.2.  Area Needing Service.

The proposed facility will provide wireless voice and data telecommunications to the Virginia
City Highlands, Highland Ranches, and Virginia Ranches which currently has inadequate or no
service. The rural residential area is home to approximately 1,700 residents (+/- 42 percent of the
county’s population). For more than a decade, a majority of residents in the area have expressed
need and desire for cellular telephone and high-speed wireless service in their area.

2.3 Amateur Radio Regulations Not Applicable — Past Decisions.

In 2011 a decision was made by the Storey County Planning Commission and Board of County
Commissioners regarding a special use permit application to construct and operate an amateur
radio facility. The Codes of Federal Regulations and rules under the FCC pertaining to amateur
radio differ considerably from those applicable to commercial wireless communication facilities.
Therefore, the findings and facts considered during the 2011 hearings must not be considered in
the review of SUP Application No. 2012-014.

III. ANALYSIS:

3.1 Antenna Tower and Accessory Structures,

The applicant proposes to install an 80" monopole commercial communications antennae support
structure capable of facilitating up to four commercial wireless carriers. Thus far, AT&T is
planned to be the first carrier with Verizon Wireless expressing interest. The monopole tower
will be accompanied by several accessory buildings (“equipment shelters™) which will house
electronic and other sensitive equipment, and a diesel emergency backup power generator. The
generator will be contained such as to attenuate excessive noise during operation (See Section
4.5). The entire facility, inclusive of tower, equipment shelters, and accessory structures will
cover approximately 5,000 square-feet (75 by 75° +/- as proposed) of the 2.8 acre site.

2 of 24

o 8|
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2; April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

19




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

3.2  Tower Height and Performance.
The monopole antenna support tower will be 80° in total height with an additional 5’ provided to

accommodate a “monopine” crown (see Section 4 for details on monopine design). The 80
support structure will provide sufficient height, with surrounding trees and topography, for
necessary line-of-site wireless coverage 1o the surrounding area (see location and signal coverage
in Figures 3.1 and 3.2) and sufficient tower space to accommodate up to four wireless carriers.
According to the applicant, each wireless carrier needs between 6° and 8’ of aperture on the
tower and up to 3” separation above and below antennae to avoid interference with the adjacent
carriers. Currently, there is not sufficient copper or fiber ground line in the area to carry signals
received and transmitted by the tower antennae to the communications grid system. Therefore,
four microwave dishes (one for each carrier) must be installed on the tower in order for it to
communicate with wireless hubs at Mt. Rose and Pevine Peak. In summary, the elevation
breakdown for the tower is as follows:

Carrier antennae array: 33°
Microwave dish array: 22’

c. Monopine crown taper (see Section 4); 3°

Total vertical aperture 60°

S

The highest point the antennae can extend up the monopole is 80°; therefore, this multi-carrier
tower will be loaded down to 20° from grade if all four carriers are co-located. Any loading
lower than this height would be blocked by the surrounding trees and terrain.

Cartwright Rd.

Saddleback Rd.

WVCH Mailboxes

Figure 3.1: Location and Vicinity Map

3of24

[n,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

20

1

Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission $taff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

LM vos Fire Station

Flgure 3.2: Map showing need for height of tower and estimated signal coverage strength (base
map provided by applicant)

3.3 Federal Preemption to Local Repulation.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 (TCA) places certain limitations on state and local control
and regulation of commercial wireless communications facilities. The TCA was adopted “to
promote competition and reduced regulation in order to secure lower prices and higher quality
services for American telecommunications consumers and encourage the rapid deployment of
new telecommunications technologies”. To accomplish those goals, the TCA provides in
Subsection 253(a) that “in general, no State or local statute or regulation, or other state or local
government requirement, may prohibit or have the effect on prohibiting the ability of any entity
to provide any interstate or intrastate telecommunications service” without finding in the written
record substantial valid evidence for the deniail (47 USC § 253).

In support of the local jurisdiction’s need to impose reasonable and necessary restrictions on
wireless communications facilities, however, the Section 253(c) of the TCA states that the state
or local jurisdiction may “impose requirements necessary to...protect the public safety and
welfare”. A conditional approval or denial of the facility is preempted by the FCC “to the extent
necessary to correct such violation or inconsistently” only when it finds that the decision of the
state or local government is in violation one or more provisions of the Act” (47 USC § 253(d)).
Specifically, the conditional approval or denial shall find that the decision of the local governing
board does not:

a. Unreasonably discriminate among service providers. This concern could become
applicable if additional wireless communications facilities express interest after

40f24

=

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

21

5
Appeandix 2: April 5, 2012 3C Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report - 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

approval of this facility. As thereby applicable, the TCA may invalidate the denial of
a variance for permit] if it has the effect of unreasonably discriminating between
providers. “Securing relief under this provision of the statute will require a showing
that the other provider is similarly situated, i.e., that the ‘structure’ placement or
cumulative impact of the existing facilities makes them as or more intrusive than the
proposed facility” (196 F. 3d. at 480 note 8). In addressing this concern, the decision
to approve this application should take co-location capacity into consideration (See
discussion on co-location in Section 3.5 below).

b. Expressly prohibit wireless facilities or have the effect of prohibiting wireless
services. Should a decision be made to deny the personal wireless communication
facility, the TCA requires that the such decision be based on findings supported by
“substantial evidence”, the decision be made within a reasonable time (NRS 278
requires a hearing for an SUP application within 64 days of submittal), and that such
be included in the written record of the board (47 CFR § 332(c)7), 1996).

c. Regulate on the basis of electromagnetic radiation that complies with FCC
regulations. (See discussion on federal preemption in Section 4.6 of this report).

34  Co-Location.

The TCA suggests that state and local jurisdictions require personal wireless communication
facilities to provide multi-carrier capacity (“co-locate”) for at least three to five carriers, It states
that co-locating on a single tower reduces the number of towers necessary for expanded wireless
coverage. This SUP application proposes to co-locate up to four carriers upon its tower,

3.5 Benefit to Storey County.

The proposed facility will provide for personal wireless communication services such as cellular
telephone, wireless internet, and broadband to approximately 1,700 residents living within a
large rural area of Storey County currently having unreliable or no wireless communication
capability. The wireless service will enhance emergency telecommunications (e.g., Emergency
9-1-1) for area residents and emergency responders. In accordance with requirements of an
applicant under the TCA, the applicant has demonstrated a good faith effort to identify and
evaluate the least intrusive alternatives, including site placement, tower design, and antenna
placement, for providing service to this rural area (Pitisburgh Ltd. Partnership v. Penn Tp., 196
F.3d 469, 480 (3d Cir. 1999). Additionally, the applicant will collaborate with Storey County to
develop a mutually acceptable agreement for the installation and operation of county-owned
emergency communications repeater antennae and ground support equipment within the facility.

IV. KEY ISSUES

4.1 Setback Requirements.

In accordance with Section 17.40.050 of the Storey County Code, minimum setback distances
for structures in the E-1-VCH Zone shall be as follows: front 30 feet; rear 40 feet; and sides 15
feet. The tower and accessory structures as proposed comply with these setback requirements.
The nearest existing residence (see Figure 4.1} is approximately 240° from the tower, a distance
approximately three times its total height.

5of 24

=,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

22

|
Appendix 2: Aprit 5, 2012 5C Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

While the support tower is designed by a Nevada licensed engineer, it is important to note that its
height exceeds the distance to each parcel boundaries in which it is located. In order to assure
that people and structures (now and in the future) on abutting parcels remain safe, an engineering
certificate must be submitted to Storey County stating that the structure complies with the
International Building Code and can withstand lateral wind load common to the area as
determined by the Storey County Building Department. In addition, it is recommended that an
insurance policy adequate in scope is in place to insure any damage that may occur in association
with tower failure.

13707

Q

T v - 2 35
istances between tower and existing residen

-
ces are approximate.

Figure 4.1:

4.2 __ Visual Impacts.
The subject property and abutting parcels are designated as low density residential (one

residence per acre) and are zoned E-1-VCH. Section 17.40.015 of the Storey County Code states
that the purpose and intent of the Estate zone is to “establish areas of low density residential
uses” and “to further enhance the quality of life and to prohibit the development of uses which
are incompatible and detrimental to a residential environment”. The TCA also includes
provisions which allow the local jurisdiction to consider visual impacts of the project.

To mitigate potential visual impacts on surrounding rural residences, the applicant proposes a
monopine tower design. A monopine is a communications tower which is designed to effectively
resemble the appearance of a pine tree. The proposed design resembles a Jeffery, Ponderosa, or
White Pine (see Figures 4.3 and 4.4 that currently exist in the local area). While said trees do

6of24

u 1
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

23




Staff Report - 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

exist within the region, it is hereby recognized that the immediate surrounding environment of
the monopine consists almost exclusively of Pinion Pine and junipers, which do not resemble or
exhibit the height of the much taller pine species listed above. However, the monopine proposed
substantially mitigates visual impacts of the tower and appears consistent with the adjacent and
area environment.

The SUP application lacks specifics pertaining to visual impact mitigation from accessory
structures and other components of the overall facility. The following design criteria integrate
submitted design proposals with elements added hereby to facilitate an overall stealth appearance
which blends with the surrounding area. Design elements recommended as part of Section TV
(Recommended Conditions for Approval) of this report are as follows:

a. Monopine design. The application provides illustrations of monopine structures installed
by the applicant in other areas in the State of Nevada (see Figures 4.3 and 4.4). The
applicant’s submittal portrays branch density, coloration, and overall monopine design
that effectively mimics a natural appearing pine tree as compared to poor designs (not of
the applicant) shown in Figure 4.3. The conditional approval should cite the submitted
aesthetic elements as part of the overall design requirements.

b. Facility colors. The application lacks information on colors and finishes that will be
applied to accessory structures. It is evident in submitted illustrations that the monopole
tower will be coated with a non-reflective and dull appearing finish which is colored
similarly to the bark of a natural pine tree. The same finishes must be applied to all other
structures, including equipment shelters, accessory buildings, fencing, etc., in order to
facilitate blending into the surrounding environment. The recommended color for the
monopole tower is dark brown or color similar to the bark of a pine tree. Lighter beiges,
greens, and other light colors must be avoided. (Note: The Carson City Public Works
Department applies Kelly Moore “Sudan Brown” to water towers and other structures
needing camouflage in rural hillside environments). 1t is recommended that Kelly Moore
“Sudan Brown” or a similar color be used throughout the proposed communication
facility. Additionally, it is recommended that the Virginia City Highlands Property
Owners Association is provided opportunity to approve colors and facility design
elements as detailed in Section 4.9 of this report.

¢. Antenna placement. The application shows monopine structures which were installed by
the applicant in other parts of the state. The design portrays dense foliage and natural
appearing branch placement throughout the monopole structure. Antennae and other
devices hidden in the foliage are further camouflaged with synthetic pine needle sleeves.
A similar design is proposed in the submitted application. Figure 4.3 also provides
striking contrast between the submitted design and poorly designed monopine structures
(not of the applicant) found elsewhere, Elements in the submitted illustrations should be
required while those of the poor design should be avoided.

d. Ground coverage. Cuts, fills, and graded areas need to be appropriately resurfaced to

facilitate blending into the surrounding undisturbed environment, To do so, at least
seventy five percent of disturbed ground surfaces visible from outside the facility,

7of24

iy

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

24

|

Appendix 2. April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014
Kuffner/Vista Towers

including all exposed cuts, fills, and graded sloped surfaces, should be re-vegetated with
native non-invasive plant species (nothing requiring irrigation) and/or surfaced with
aggregate or large rocks of a color similar to the immediate surrounding environment,

e. Advertising on structures. No advertising should be permitted anywhere on the facility,
with exception of signage in accordance with the applicable requirements under these

conditions.

. Maintenance. All vandalism or graffiti to the facility should be remedied by the applicant
within seven calendar days of acknowledgement. The applicant shall also be held
responsibie for perpetual maintenance of the monopine to the satisfactory of the SUP and
the county.

Figure 4.2: The top monopine
towers (from SUP application}
exemplify effective visual
mitigation of antennas and the
tower. The foliage sufficiently
conceals antennas. “Tree”
canopy extends beyond the tip of
the monopole and confinues to
the lowest portions thereof
providing a natural looking
appearance. The bottom
monopine examples {not from
applicant) have insufficient
foliage density, somewhat
symmetrical branch placement,
and only partial monopole
coverage, thus exhibiting a
“manufactured” appearance. See
details in Figure 4.3.

Community Development
775.847.0966

8of24

[m,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

25

]
Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 $C Planning Commission $taff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffher/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

i o 5

Figure 4.3: Close up photos of existing monopinem struéiufés constructed by the applicant in Neaa.

Qof24

o —
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

26




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

4.3, Tower Height and Lighting.

The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) requires towers (“obstructions™) exceeding 200° to
be lighted (beacons) with devices which either flash, strobe, remain steady burning, or perform a
combination thereof. It states specifically that, “Any temporary or permanent structure, including
all appurtenances, that exceeds and overall height of 200 feet (61m) above ground level (AGL)
or exceeds any obstruction standard contained in 14 CFR [Code of Federal Regulations] part 77,
should normally be marked and/or lighted” (US Department of Transportation Federal Aviation
Administration, 2007, p. 3).

The monopine tower proposed has a total height of 85" (“tree” crown inclusive) and should
require no FAA signal lighting or applied coloration. In order to maintain the rural residential
character of the surrounding area, including the area’s distinctive dark skies (see regulations for
outdoor lighting in Chapter 8.02, “Dark Skies”, of the Storey County Code) the height of the
entire structure (including antennae and other devices placed thereon) must be limited to the
height proposed in SUP Application No. 2012-014. Reasonable flexibility to the overall height
should be considered for the tapered tree top application.

4.4 Traffic.

The facility is automated and will run year-round. Activity and traffic will relate to workers who
may enter the premises occasionally to maintain or make repairs and adjustments to the systern.
Temporary traffic related to construction of the facility will take place for a brief period and is
expected to impose minimal to no impacts on the surrounding area. Storey County will
periodically monitor activity during construction to assure dust and other impacts are minimized.

4.5 Noise.

A diesel emergency power back-up generator and equipment shelter air conditioners are the only
noise emitters. The generator will allow the facility to operate during power outages and will
only operate during those times. It will be muffled and contained within a sound-insulated
building sufficient in design to maintain decibels below the limits aliowed by Chapter 8.02 of the
Storey County Code. Noise emitting specifications for the air conditioner units proposed to be
installed in the equipment shelters are as indicated in the following table:

arva e
TESTMODEL AVP36 COMPAC OUNDLEVEL
Distance from Unit dBA
5’ 70
10° 66
200 62
30 58
40’ 56
50° 55
60’ 53
Background ambient sound level: 42 - 48 dBA

Source: Marvair Airxcel, Inc., noise emission results for Model AVP36 COMPACT | air conditioner.

10 of 24

fn, 3
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2; April 5, 2012 5C Planning Commission Staff Report

27




Staff Repart — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

4.6 Emergency Management Plan.

A comprehensive Emergency Management Plan needs to be submitted to the Storey County Fire
Department for review and approval prior to project commencement. The plan must include: the
Permit Holder’s emergency contact phone number(s); emergency contact procedure, including
for Emergency 9-1-1, Storey County Emergency Direct-Connect 775.847.0950, and Fire and
Emergency Management Departments; documenting and reporting procedures; post structure
failure management, clean-up, reclamation, and material disposal; electrical system shut-down
procedure; disclosure and management of hazardous materials (e.g., asbestos) or other conditions
{e.g., radiation), if applicable; and post structure failure damage reporting and treatment of
affected neighboring properties.

4.7 Emergency Access.

The applicant needs to facilitate adequate access and staging space for emergency vehicles and
equipment. The overall site layout needs to be in accordance with Fire Department requirements.
All persons working within the premises need to be informed by the applicant to dial Emergency
Services Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 (in lieu of Emergency 9-11) from cellular telephones
during times of emergencies. The access plan needs to be included as part of Emergency
Management Plan discussed in Section 4.6 above.

4.8  Electromagnetic Interference and Frequency Emission.

In accordance with 47 U.S.C. Section 332(c)(7)(B)(iv), no state or local government may
regulate the placement, construction, and modification of personal wireless service facilities on
the basis of the environmental effects of radio frequency emissions or electromagnetic
interference to the extent that such facilities comply with the FCC’s regulations concerning such
emissions*. The approval or denial of the special use permit application must also not be based
on concerns pertinent to this section.

4.9  Homgowners Association.

The proposed facility will be located within the jurisdiction of the Virginia City Highlands
Property Owners Association (VCHPOA) (“One Acres™). Notice of the proposed facility has
been provided to three members of the VCHPOA, including the board president, and official
notice of the SUP hearing has been provided fo the board. It is evident from personal
conversations that the board plans to discuss this SUP at its upcoming meeting. An approval of
the SUP should recognized the local POA jurisdiction and provide by condition of approval for
secondary review thereby for exterior colors and compositions applied to equipment shelters and
other facility appurtenances. The monopine structure, however, is an engineered tower and must
meet safety and structural criteria as deemed appropriate by the licensed engineer. Structural
modification to this structure, including monopine branches, etc., could compromise its integrity;
thus, it is hereby suggested that only the conditions of this SUP apply to the monopine tower.

* In Omanipoint Corp. v. Zoning Hearing Board of Pine Grove Township (181 . Rd 403 3 Cir., 1999) the court
ruled that in accordance with CFR 332(c)(B){iv) the local zoning authority may not base its decision on
envivonmental health effecis of the radio emissions from the wireless telephone service fuciliy.

11 0f 24

s,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

28

|
Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report - 2012-014
Kuffner/Vista Towers

Community Development
775.847.0966

) < AN
S L WS ) P
ANTENMAS PER SFETOR

(N PROPOSET: aNTEMMS
b W, 1 PROPOS
ANTERMAS PER SECTOR

£3% PROPOSETY ANTENNA
—— SECTORS W/ {40 PROPOSED
ANTENMSS PER SELTOR

. PROPOSED 470" MIGROWAVE

DisH
PEOPOSED 4 =1 WICRIWAE
" QISH

PROPOSED 4'—#1" MICROWAVE

ISy

« {2Y MR CORDMTIONERS

= PRQPESED ICE BRIDSE

£ O MOOAR MOUPE WD
BT L

oy T R v
"% AL

SLAF FRPSEE D2 Bl
4' T e

o o Sonorm R wIONE

oy T

€1 2 PO CHPER MATNE
¢ T AL

PROFPGSED WL2200 CERTIAED
ARy eI e

. GEWFRA AT U

CERTIFIER FI0 GALLOM FLEL
TANK OGN A KEW 6'-G'13°-0"
CONCRETE Sl.28%3

1 W wig
ER(POSFD HMM4 SFRVCE
HEIERS AN YELDO BOKES
0L 0 A 1
o T L TN
.= T \ | T e s

2,40 M TUNEE aohd
TE AL

T wRaaL
G s
T

Q1T P D ot
ELre !!f‘

01 P SR VAR
""'_'"""'"'""_'_TFE‘EF&

s roms .,
L

SYICLCED B0 YERKE VTERS I 0D
FrEs WS T & VIUT 8-frouet

J SN A BLEoN
A.}'ym ToEE

Ty - 1 175 = 40"

k.3
£ BEST ELEATIN.
R/ RHE T - 1

public hearing.

12 of 24

Figure 4.4: Plans for monopine structure and overall design. Large format drawings will be provided at

[»,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014
29

1
Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

SHETH

o Vista Towers .

& 2
Virginia City Highlands

1485 Saddicback Roas
Virginia City Highlands, MY BE521

© oy nght 301 T R B Previawibas

Figure 4.5: Photosimulation of view looking southeast along Saddleback Rd., almost at dead end.

o Vista Towers,

Virginia City Highlands
1455 Saddicback Roaa
wirginia Clty Hegriangs MV B9521

e TR ' ' ' T Provisaling

Figure 4.6: Photosimulation of view fooking northeast from Highlands main entrance

13 0f 24

=, -]
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

30




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

o Vista Towers .

AR SRSy
Virginia City Highlands

21485 Saddichacs Roag
Virginta Ciy Highlande. NV B3S21

» Vista Towers ,

T

Virginia City Highlands
21485 Sacdicbacy Roos
Virginia Gty Hightonds. NV E3521

Figure 4.8: Photosimulation of view looking southwest from Fire Station No. 2
14 of 24
= u]
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 $C Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

oVista Tawers.

Virginia City Highlands
43485 Saddlobnck Rosd
Virginla Clty Highlends. BY 9521
i

epyright 3012, Provicuatists ac., o lphis reorved. Any madification, atteralon, CTopping. opying of ouing ul anp portion of this imegd 1% ity aranintes o0d CoREIEed 0 viclatlon o US Comy light fawe M
Thily pholetimuiaten @ bated upon Infontaliot povided by the proct applicint. Questiane of cownments? colt 1-BTT-TH3-3710 of viei e phuplasin.cont Piiiarnarnl

Figure 4.9: Photosimulation of view looking northwest from Lousetown Road.

V. LAND USE COMPATIBILITY & PROJECT ALTERNATIVES

The purpose and findings set forth in Section 17.40.015 (Estate Zone) of the Storey County Code
state that, “The E estate zone is established for areas particularly suited for low density
residential use, to further enhance the quality of life and to prohibit the development of uses
which are incompatibie and detrimental to a residential environment”.

The communications tower will be visible from the surrounding area; however, substantial
measures, particularly the monopine design, are proposed to mitigate visual impacts that could
otherwise result. Monopine towers constructed by the applicant in Nevada and hereby proposed,
as compared to less effective designs shown in Figures 4.2, demonstrates considerable effort by
the applicant to create a product that fits well with the surrounding environment.

Accordingly, staff recommends that the applicant is granted a special use permit to construct and
operate the wireless communications facility; however, the motion for approval should be
consistent with stated findings and apply the limitations detailed in the recommended motion in
Section XI if this report.

150f 24

[m u
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: Aprll 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

32




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

VI. PUBLIC SAFETY

In addition to maintaining necessary setback from parcel boundaries, a certificate from a Nevada
licensed structural engineer will need to be submitted stating that the tower meets or exceeds
locally adopted International Building Code regulations and lateral wind load requirements as
determined appropriate by the Storey County Building Department. Additionally, appropriate
security barriers and cautionary signage will need to surround the facility to protect the public
from potentially hazardous conditions.

VIL. GENERAL ORDINANCE COMPLIANCE

17.12.044 (Height of Buildings) of the County Code states that, “In the R-1, R-2, E, A, PUD, and
F zones, no building, manufactured building or manufactured home shall exceed a height of three
stories or thirty-five feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by special use permit.”
It continues that, “Radio, television, and other communication masts may extend not more than
forty-five feet above grade level, provided that the same may be safely erected and maintained at
such height in view of surrounding conditions and circumstances.” A perplexing question was
brought to the county in 2011 as to whether a special use permit was needed for communications
towers over 357 in height or whether 45° was the threshold for such structures over 45” in height,

The Federal District Court of Nevada (2011) in Taormina v. Storey County provided an opinion
regarding the applicability of 17.12.044 with regard to tower height and special use permit
requirements (under Chapter 17.62 of the Storey County Code) for towers exceeding 45 in
height. The Court found that ambiguous language in Section 17.12.044 could apply to
communication towers as “buildings” not to exceed 35’ without special use permit, or,
“communication masts” not to be more than 45° above grade — with no provision for special use
permit provided. The Court, however, pointed to the clear applicability of Section 17.62.010
(Special Uses) to communication masts in that, “Certain uses may be permitted by the board of
county commissioners in zones in which they are not permitted by this title [zoning ordinance}
where such uses are deemed essential or desirable for the public convenience or welfare.” The
Court ruled that, notwithstanding the provisions set forth by 17.12.044, the regulations in
17.62.010 do apply. Therefore, the requirement for special use permit applies fully to SUP
Application No. 2012-014.

VIII. MASTER PLAN

The proposal is in accordance with the stated goals and objectives for public services, public
safety, education, and land uses forth in Chapter 1 of the Storey County Master Plan.

Providing wireless telephone and internet to this populated region will better “protect the public
safety and welfare of residents” (Goal 6.5, p. 7) by enhancing emergency communications,
including “Emergency 9-1-17 services, and response times for emergency personnel. The service
will increase education opportunity by facilitating efficient and reliable access to the internet
(Goal 6.1 and 6.6, pp. 6 - 7). The facility also fulfills a long recognized need and desire for
consistent and reliable communications in the residential area (Goal 6. 2, Objective 2.1, p. 7).
The proposal “maintains a health environment for all residents of the county (Goal 9.1, Objective
1.1, p.9) by fulfilling the above and by implementing substantial measures to mitigate visual
impacts that otherwise would cause substantial adverse impact to the surrounding environment.

16 of 24

|

[m;

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

33

Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

LAawND USE MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION ZONING
SUBJECT LAND | Vacant Estate. (Lot consists of approximately 2.8 | VCH-I
acres).

LAND TO Vacant Estate VCH-1
NORTH

LAND TOQ SOUTH | Vacant Estaie VCH-1
LAND TO EAST | Vacant Estate VCH-1
LAND TO WEST | Permitted residence Estate VCH-1

IX. FINDINGS OF FACT

A.

Motion for Approval.

It is hereby found that the commercial wireless communication facility under the conditions set
forth in Section X of this report is in accordance with the following findings of fact:

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

The proposed commercial wireless communications facility is in accordance with the
stated goals and objectives of the Storey County Master Plan by providing wireless
telephone and internet to this populated region to better “protect the public safety and
welfare of residents” (Goal 6.5, p. 7) by enhancing emergency communications, including
“Emergency 9-1-1" services, and response times for emergency personnel; increasing
education opportunities by facilitating efficient and reliable access to the internet (Goal 6.1
and 6.6, pp. 6 - 7); fulfilling a long recognized need and desire for consistent and reliable
communications in the residential area (Goal 6. 2, Objective 2.1, p. 7); and “[maintaining]
a healthy environment for all residents of the county (Goal 9.1, Objective 1.1, p.9) by
fulfilling the above and by implementing substantial measures to mitigate visual impacts
that otherwise would cause substantial adverse impact to the surrounding environment.

A special use permit in accordance with Section 17.12.044 and Chapter 17.62 of the
County Code is required for the proposed wireless commercial communications antenna
support tower as proposed by SUP Application No. 2012-014.

The proposed facility is in accordance with the conditions of SUP No. 2012-014 will not
conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the E-1-VCH
(Estate Zone), in which the commercial wireless communication facility is proposed be
located.

The conditions and stipulations under SUP No. 2012-014 are in accordance with the
minimum requirements set forth by Chapter 17.62 of the Storey County Code and are at
least as stringent as and not in conflict the applicable federal and Nevada State and Storey
County regulations, including the applicable rules of the FCC and the Federal
Telecommunications Act of 1996, pertaining to the construction and placement of
structures and the construction and operation of commercial wireless communications
towers.

17 of 24

=,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

34

|
Appendix 2: Aprit 5, 2012 3C Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

10.5 The conditions of approval under SUP No. 2012-014 impose sufficient regulations on the
wireless commercial communications facility to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

10.6 Growth in the commercial wireless telecommunications industry has resulted in increased
applications to municipalities for installation of wireless signal facilities. As consumer
demand increases, so does the need for the industry to expand the number of antennae
receiving and transmifting signals. As stated in the Federal Telecommunications Act of
1996, since more than one antenna can be co-located on a tower structure, communities,
including Storey County, should encourage and require co-location wherever feasible,
thereby reducing the amount of new towers being constructed on the landscape.

10.7 The approval of the commercial wireless communications facility will result in personal
wireless communications capability including, but not limited to, cellular telephone,
internet, and broadband in an existing populated area currently underserved or not served
such services.

10.8 The approval of the commercial wireless communications facility will promote the safety
of life and property for the area served by enhancing emergency telecommunications
services, including “Emergency 9-1-17, for area residents and focal emergency response
authorities.

10.9 In accordance with the Telecommunications Act of 1996, the proposed facility will fill an
existing gap in the ability of remote users to access the national telephone network. In this
context, the relevant gap is a gap in the service currently available to remote local users,
and the area being served is not already adequately served by another provider.

10.10 The provider applicant has demonstrated that the manner in which it proposes to fill the
significant gap in service is the least intrusive on the values...and has demonstrated a good
faith effort to identify and evaluate the least intrusive alternatives, ¢.g., that the provider
has considered less sensitive sites, alternative system designs, alternative tower designs
and placement of antennae, etc.

10.11 In accordance with 47 (U.S.C. Section 332(c)}{(7)(B)iv) of the Federal Code, the decision
to approval, deny, or regulate the placement, construction, and modification of the
commercial wireless communications facility is not based on electronic interference or the
environmental effects of radio frequency emissions.

B. Motion for Denial.
Should a motion be made to deny the commercial wireless communications facility, the
following findings of fact with explanation why should be included in that motion:

10.12 The proposed facility is not accordance with one or more of the stated goals and objectives
of the Storey County Master Plan.

10.13 The proposed facility, even with reasonable conditions and mitigation, will conflict with
the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the E-1-VCH (Estate
Zone), in which the commercial wireless communication facility is propesed be located.

10.14 No reasonable level of conditions imposed under SUP No, 2012-014 would be sufficient to

18 of 24

Ct

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

35

O
Appendix 2; April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

reasonably mitigate visual, safety, or other potential impacts on adjacent and surrounding
residences and land uses.

10.15 The applicant has not demonstrated that the manner in which it proposes to fill the
significant gap in service is the least infrusive on the values...and s/he has not
demonstrated a good faith effort to identify and evaluate the least intrusive alternatives,
e.g., considering less sensitive sites, alternative system designs, alternative tower designs
and placement of antennae, etc,

10.16 In accordance with 47 (U.S.C. Section 332(c)7)B)(iv) of the Federal Code, the decision
to deny the application for the commercial wireless communications facility is not based
on the electronic interference or environmental effects of radio frequency emissions.

X. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL
All of the following conditions shall be met to the satisfaction of Storey County Community
Development Department staff, unless otherwise noted:

1. Special Uses. Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2012-014 shall be for the purpose of
installing and operating a commercial wireless communication antennae tower as defined
and regulated pursuant to the advisory motion made by the Storey County Planning
Commission and approved by the Board of Storey County Commissioners on property
located at 21485 Saddleback Road (APN 003-101-66), Virginia City Highlands, Storey
County, Nevada. The operation shall remain in compliance with all of the provisions set
forth by this SUP and federal, Nevada State, and Storey County codes and regulations,
including applicable regulations the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and the applicable
rules under Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Issuance of this SUP does not
convey property rights of any sort or any exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any
injury to persons or property, any invasion of other private rights, or any infringement of
state or local laws or regulations.

2. Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses,
including building and fire permits, for the project within twenty four (24) months from
the date of final approval of SUP No. 2012-014, and continuously maintain the validity
of those permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and void. This SUP shall remain
valid as long as the Permit Holder remains in compliance with the terms of this SUP and
Storey County, Nevada State, and federal regulations, No construction or permitting for
construction shall commence prior to issuance of the SUP and a valid Storey County
Building Permit.

3. Closure/Abandonment. In the event that the tower and facility becomes decommissioned
or is absent of any permitted wireless carriers and antennae for a period of three
consecutive years, Storey County shall reserve the right to deem the facility abandoned
and mandate the monopine tower and facility to be removed within 180 days thereof at
the Permit Holder’s expense. The applicant shall reserve the right to appeal the decision
of abandonment. The process for the appeal shall be as pursuant to Chapter 17.60 and
17.62 of the Storey County Code. Removal and reclamation shall include complete
removal of the entire facility including the monopine, monopole tower, antennae,

19 of 24

=, |
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

36




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner\/ista Towers 775.847.0966

electrical wiring and connections, accessory buildings and structures, foundations and
pads, and all other appurtenances. Reclamation of the site to a condition reasonably
existing prior to development shall be completed to the satisfaction of Storey County.
Under no circumstances shall Storey County, its officers, and representatives bare any
cost or responsibility for the removal of said facilities or reclamation of the site.

4.  Transfer of Rights. This SUP shall inure to the record owner of the Subject Property and
to the Permit Applicant (Vista Towers, LLC) and shall ran with the land. Any and all
transfers of SUP No. 2012-014 shall be advised in writing by Certified Mail to Storey
County Community Development Department at least 90 days prior to assignee taking
over operation of facility. The aperators of the facility must sign and accept all conditions
and requirements of SUP No. 2012-014.

5. Indemnification/Insurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land will
conform to the requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal
regutatory and legal requirements; further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued and
future use of the land shall so conform. The Permit Holder and property owner(s) agree
to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the costs and
responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now
existing or which may occur as a result of this SUP. The Permit Holder shall maintain
satisfactory liability insurance for all aspects of this operation under SUP No. 2012-014
for a minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 (one million dollars) and provide proof thereof
to Storey County prior securing rights to the SUP.

6. Emergency Telephone. Any persons located on the premises in connection with
maintenance, repairs, or other work on the premises shall be made aware to dial Storey
County Emergency Services Direct-Connect 775.847.0950 (in lieu of 9-1-1) when
dialing emergency service from cellular telephone. Emergency 9-1-1 still applies to
landline telephones.

7.  Site Security. The entire facility shall be secured by a six-foot high fence sufficient in
design to maintain appropriate security for the premises. Exterior accessory building
walls may also be utilized for this purpose as appropriate. The Permit Holder may top
the fence with three strands of barbed wire if allowable by the Virginia City Highlands
Property Owners Association (VCHPQOA). The fence shall be color coated in accordance
with the requirements under “Coloration and Appearance” of this SUP. Video security
surveillance, while not hereby required, may be installed within the facility but shall in
no way infringe or intrude upon on the personal privacy on adjacent or area properties
and residences. The tower shall be appropriately designed to prevent unauthorized
climbing.

8. Cautionary Signage. Signage shall be installed at the main port of entry (i.e., facility
gates) stating the company’s name, site address, and 24-hour company management
emergency contact phone number(s). Signage shall indicate all potential hazards and
safety requirements associated with entering the facility.

20 0f 24

[m,

37

i
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




]

Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

9.

10.

12.

13.

Emergency Management Plan. A comprehensive emergency management plan shall be
developed by the Permit Holder and submitted for approval to the Storey County Fire
Department for review and approval prior to securing rights to the SUP. The plan shall
include, but not be limited to, the following in case of failure of the communications
facility or related appurtenances: (1) Permit Holder’s emergency contact phone
number(s); (2) emergency contact procedure, including for Emergency Dispatch 9-1-1
and Storey County Emergency Direct-Connect 775.847.0950; (3) documenting and
reporting procedures; (4) post structure failure management, clean-up, reclamation, and
material disposal; (5) electrical system shut-down procedure; (6) disclosure and
management of hazardous materials (e.g., asbestos) or other conditions {e.g., radiation),
if applicable; (7} post structure failure damage reporting and treatment of affected
neighboring properties; and (8) emergency access, staging, and egress.

Necessity to Local Jurisdiction. In accordance with Section 17.62.010 of the Storey
County Code, the applicable provisions of the Storey County Master Plan, and applicable
regulations under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 in determining that the
commercial communications facility enhances the safety and wellbeing of the
community, the Permit Holder shall collaborate with Storey County to develop a
mutually acceptable plan by which county-owned emergency radio communications
repeater antennae may be installed and operated on the monopole structure (as
compatible with all other commercial carriers and wireless equipment thercon or
proposed to be placed thereon) and by which necessary ground support equipment may
be placed and operated within the facility parameters. This condition of approval
recognizes that Storey County shall be responsible for all costs for acquiring, installing,
maintaining, operating (i.e., utility costs), and repairing the county-owned antennae,
ground support equipment, and other appurtenances, including any associated financial
burdened by the Permit Holder, but Storey County shall not be assessed any fee or other
charge for said use of the tower and facility. County-owned equipment placed upon
exterior portions of the facility shall comply with the visual design requirements under
this SUP and/or the VCHPOA.

Carrier Capacity. The menopine support structure shall be capable in design to co-locate
no fess than four commercial wireless carriers. The Permit Holder is hereby encouraged
to co-locate additional carriers as the facility may accommodate in accordance with the
conditions of this SUP.

Plans Submittal. The Applicant shall provide Storey County Community Development
Department site plans, drawn to scale, which shall include dimensions of existing and
proposed structures, as applicable, setback dimensions, and driveway dimensions. All
other submittals applicable to a valid Building Permit shall also apply.

Setbacks. In accordance with Section 17.40.050 of the Storey County Code, minimum
setbacks area as follows: (a) front yard, 30 feet; (b) rear yard, 40 feet; and (c) side yards,
15 feet. The minimum setback requirement shall apply to towers, antennae, foundation
pads, and buildings. Additionally, the monopine shall be located no closer than its total
height plus 10 percent of its total height, from grade level to uppermost tip, to any

21 0f 24

m,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2074

38

O
Appendix 2: April §, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

residential structure existing at the time of approval of the SUP.

14.  Antenna Limitations. The monopine and facility shall be used exclusively for
commercial wireless communications. The towers shall not be used to support amateur or
other non-commercial radio antennae, or lights, flags, banners, pennants, etc. Storey
County emergency repeaters and antenna shall be exempt from this requirement.

15. Noise. Power generator(s) (also to include “alternator(s)”) shall be muffled and remain
within a sound-insulated structure, encasement, or sound buffer walls (such as concrete
masonry unit walls) sufficient to attenuate noise to or below the limitations set forth by
Chapter 8.04 of the Storey County Code within 100” of the facility. The generator shall
only operate during power outages and periods of maintenance or repair. All other noise
emitted from the facility, except during times of periodic maintenance and repair, shall
not exceed 40 dBA at a point of 100’ from the antenna tower, equipment shelter, or any
other noise emitting device or facility within the premises.

16. Area Lighting. There shall be no outdoor lighting, including security and other area
lighting, permitted on the premises except under the following circumstances: outdoor
lighting is managed by an automated motion detector system that maintains all lights
“off” unless motion is detected, at which point lights may remain “on” for no more than
four minutes; and all outdoor lights are shielded in accordance with Section 08.02.04 of
the Storey County Cede (“Dark Skies™). Hlumination of the premises during times of
maintenance and repair shall be exempt from the limitations of this section.

17. Beacon Lighting. The tower, antennae, and other appurtenances thereto shall not be
constructed or altered to a height that would necessitate Federal Aviation Association
{FAA) beacon lighting or special applied coloration. Unless required otherwise by the
FAA, beacon lighting shall be prohibited. There shall be no direct or indirect illumination
of or on any tower or antenna system. The FAA shall be the responsible agency for
requiring, or not requiring, beacon lighting or other signaling devices to be applied to the
structures.

18. Facility Coloration and Appearance. The facility shall be developed in accordance with
the plans and drawings submitted as part of SUP Application No. 2012-014. The Permit
Holder shall be responsible for maintaining the facility’s appearance in accordance with
the requirements of terms and conditions of this SUP. Additionally, the Permit Holder
shall obtain approval from the VCHPOA for colors and composition of equipment
shelters, buildings, and other appurtenances, but not the monopine structure which shall
remain in accordance with the design criteria under this Section of the SUP. In the event
that a conflict arises between this Section and the requirements imposed by the
VCHPOA, the more stringent shall apply with regard to exterior colors and composition
of said portions of the facility. The following criteria shall be incorporated into the design
of the communications tower and facility prior to a Building Permit being issued:

a. The monopine tower shall at a minimum exhibit the appearance of a natural
coniferous tree similar in structure, design, branch density, overall branch

220124

o n
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Plarining Commission Staff Report

39




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffrer/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

coverage, and coloration as illustrated in SUP Application No. 2012-014 and
enclosed as Exhibit B of the SUP approval. The monopole structure may be void
of branches and other foliage from grade level to a point no higher than 12°, thus
exhibiting a bare “tree trunk”™.

b. Storey County Community Development shall reserve the right to require
additional “branch” or foliage density, but no more than 3 branches per foot on
monopole structure, necessary to effectively conceal antennae, dishes, and other
applied devices in order to create an appearance that is consistent with the
proposed design.

c. The exterior finish of the monopole structure, equipment shelters, antennae,
dishes, accessory structures, and fencing shall be non-reflective, dull in
appearance, and similar in color and hue to the submitted monopine photo
renditions. If it becomes unclear as to the color required for the monopole
structure and said surfaces, Kelly Moore “Sudan Brown” or a similar color of
any brand shall be the required color, Coloration of monepine branches and
foliage shall be similar in appearance and variation as the submitted renditions.

d. No antennae, dishes, or applied device shall protrude beyond the dense foliage
of the monopine branches. “Needle sleeves” and/or other appropriate
camouflage shall be placed over such devices to further facilitate blending with
the overall monopine.

e. At least 75 percent of all ground surfaces visible from outside the facility,
including all exposed cuts, fills, and graded slopes, shall be re-vegetated with
native non-invasive plant species and/or surfaced with aggregate, large rocks, or
other material of a color and hue similar to the immediate surrounding
environment;

f.  No advertising shall be permitted anywhere on the facility, with exception of
signage in accordance with the applicable requirements under these conditions;

g. The Permit Holder shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the
monopine and facility, as necessary, to remain in compliance with these design
requirements. Failure to maintain and repair the monopine and facility in
accordance herewith shall be deemed violations of the requirements of this SUP.
All vandalism or graftiti to the facility shall be remedied by the Permit Holder
within seven calendar days of acknowledgement,

19, Vegetation Removal. Trees, shrubs, and other vegetation and ground surfaces shall be
preserved to the extent feasible.

20. Electrical Distribution and Confrols. The location, routing, and alignment of exterior
electrical and communication controls, associated wiring, and power lines (except those
now existing) shall be approved by the Building Department, when applicable.

23 0f 24

u, ul
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 SC Planning Commission Staff Report

40




Staff Report — 2012-014 Community Development
Kuffner/Vista Towers 775.847.0966

XL LEGAL REQUIREMENTS

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission shall take such action thereon as it
deems wairanted under the circumstances and shall announce and record its action by formal
resolution, and such resolution shall recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which
it bases its decision. Conditions of approval shall be included in the resolution. The resolution
shall be sent to the Board of County Commissioners within twenty-one (21) days of approval of
the minutes by the Planning Commission. The decision of the Planning Commission in the
legislative matter of granting, granting with conditions, or denying the special use permit shall be
advisory only to the Board of County Commissioners.

XIi. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains a motion to approve SUP Application No. 2012-014 as recommended by
staff and an alternative motion to deny said SUP based on findings but not recommended by
staff. The motion for approval is in accordance with stated findings under Section IX (Subsection
A} of this report well as federal, Nevada State, and Storey County regulations. Should a motion
be made to deny SUP Application No. 2012.014, the findings under Section IX (Subsection B)
should be included as part of that motion,

A. RECOMMENDED MOTION: Based on findings of fact contained in Subsection A
of Section IX of this report and compliance with all conditions and stipulations stated forth
in this report, staff moves to recommend that the Storey County Planning Commission
approves SUP Application No. 2012-014 to construct and operate a commercial wireless
communications tower in accordance with the conditions set forth in Section X of this
report.

B. ALTERNATIVE MOTION: Based on findings of fact contained in Subsection B of
Section IX of this report, and contrary the recommendation for approval by county staff,
the Storey County Planning Commission may chooses to deny SUP Application No. 2012-
014 to construct and operate a commercial wireless communications tower.

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Senior Planner
Exhibits:

Exhibit A; SUP Application No. 2012-014
Exhibit B: Need for height rationale statement

24 of 24

o 1
Appendixes - 2072-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 2: April 5, 2012 5C Planning Cornmission Staff Report

41




APPENDIX 3: APRIL 5, 2012 AMENDMENT TO THE
STAFF REPORT

o |
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 3; April 5, 2012 Amendment to the SR

42




Storey County Planning Commission
April 5, 2012
SUP Case No. 2012-014 (Vista Towers/Kuffner Monopine Tower)

Revised List of Recommended Conditions of Approval

Proposed Amendments: The following replaces Section IX Recommended Conditions

of Approval for Staff Report 2012-014. Text to be added is bolded. [Strikethrough} text
1s to be deleted.

X. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:

Condition No. 15: Amend as follows:

Noise. Power generator(s) (also to include “alternator(s)”) shall be muffled and remain
within a sound-insulated structure, encasement, or sound buffer walls (such as concrete
masonry unit walls) sufficient to attenuate noise to or below the limitations set forth by
Chapter 8.04 of the Storey County Code within 100” of the facility. The generator shall
only operate during power outages, {and} periods of maintenance or repairf}, and up
to three times per seven day period to recharge system batteries and self-
lubricate. Operation for said maintenance and recharging shall be limited to no
more than three thirty-minute intervals per month and shall take place on
weekdays (Monday thru Friday) between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. All
other noise emitted from the facility, except during times of periodic maintenance and
repair, shall not exceed 40 dBA at a point of 100” from the antenna tower, equipment
shelter, or any other noise emitting device or facility within the premises.

XII. PROPOSED MOTION

The following Recommended Motion is amended to reflect the above change(s) to the
Recommended Conditions of Approval:

A. RECOMMENDED MOTION: Based on findings of fact contained in
Subsection A of Section IX of the staff report and compliance with all conditions
and stipulations stated forth therein and proposed hereby to be amended, staff
moves to recommend that the Storey County Planning Commission approves SUP
Application No. 2012-014 to construct and operate a commercial wireless
communications tower in accordance with the conditions set forth in Section X of
this report.

B. ALTERNATIVE MOTION: (See staff report)

b, |
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 3 April 5, 2012 Amendment to the SR

43




APPENDIX 4: JUNE 19, 2014 SC COMMISSIONER’S OFFICE
AND PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION SUMMARY

m} !
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 4: June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff
44 Recommendation Summary




k0 oY County Commissionerg' Offjo&

Drawer 176 Storey County Courthouse
Virginia City, NV 89440 26 South B Streef, Virginia City
(775) 847-0968
Commissioners@StoreyCounty.org
www.StoreyCounty.org
Fax: (775) 847-0949

Storey County Commissioners’ Office and Planning Division
Staff Recommendation Summary

Meeting Date: June 19, 2012

Agenda Item: DISCUSSION / POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve, Amend, Ignore, Reject, or Remand
the action recommended by the planning commission on April 5, 2012, and the approval of the
Board of Storey County Commissioners on May 21, 2012, in regards to the Application for Special
Use Permit (SUP Application No. 2012-014) for Vista Towers proposal to install one “monopine™
commercial wireless communications tower on property located in the Virginia City Highlands.

Summary Notes;
At its April 5, 2012, hearing, the planning commission heard comment from county staff, the

applicant, and members of the public regarding an SUP application to construct and operate a
“monapine” commercial wireless communications antenna support structure (tower) on a +/- 2.8 acre
estate residential parcel owned by Carman Kuffner. Based on findings presented by staff, the
planning commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of the special use permit.

The Board of County Commissioners at its May 21, 2012, hearing took comments from county staff
and the public. The applicant was not present. Staff recommended that the planning commission’s
recommendation be approved, but with the condition that the applicant secure at least one carrier
prior to construction. Staff cited findings under the Telecommunications Act of 1996 as the purpose
of this addition. The Commission voted unanimously to approve the wireless telecommunications
facility as recommended, but with at least two wireless carriers required prior to construction.

After the meeting, the applicant claimed that the corporate approval protocols for each wireless
carrier company differ making it impossible to secure two or more carriers concurrently. The
applicant requested an adjustment to the respective condition that is consistent with standard business
practice for wireless carriers. Accordingly, staff recommends that the applicant be required to secure
at least one carrier prior to construction.

Legal counsel suggests that applicant is provided opportunity to challenge this condition to the
Commission and request that the approval of his SUP be amended as recommended in this summary.
Legal counsel also advises that this and other land use action items of the planning commission are
placed outside of the Commission’s consent agenda.

As recommended by staff at the May 21 Commission meeting and in accordance with the findings
shown in this summary, staff maintains that the proposed facility is a speculation tower, on which up
to four contracted commercial wireless carriers (e.g., AT&T) may lease space for their antennas and

Page I of 10

o |
Appendixes - 2012-0714-A-1-2014 Appendix 4: june 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff
45 Recommendation Summary




support equipment. A motion for approval should be subject to the applicant securing at least one
binding lease with a carrier prior to securing rights to the SUP and construction.

Staff Recommendation:

There are two motions presented from which to choose. These motions remain unchanged from the
staff recommendation presented at the May 21, 2012, hearing. The motions are summarized as
follows: (A) approve SUP Application No. 2012-014 as recommended by staff and the planning
commission; and (B) an alternative motion to deny said SUP based on findings but not
recommended by staff or the planning commission. The motion for approval is in accordance with
the Findings of Fact Subsection A, Exhibit A as well as federal, state, and county regulations. Should
a motion be made to deny the SUP application, the findings under Subsection B should be included
as part of that motion.

Staff recommends the following amendment (bold italicized) to Condition No. 2 approved by the
planning commission. The added text will better align it with staff recommended Findings of Fact:

2. Requirements. Prior to issuance of a SUP No. 2012-014 and any Building Permit, the
Applicant must submit to the Community Development Department proof of a binding
contract with at least one commercial wireless carrvier to be located on the fower. The
Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including building and fire
permits, for the project within twenty four (24) months from the date of final approval of
SUP No. 2012-014, and continuously maintain the validity of those permits/licenses, or this
approval shall be null and void. This SUP shall remain valid as long as the Permit Holder
remains in compliance with the terms of this SUP and Storey County, Nevada State, and
federal regulations. No construction or permitting for construction shall commence prior to
issuance of the SUP and a valid Storey County Building Permit.

A. RECOMMENDED MOTION: Based on the advisory motion of the Storey County
Planning Commission; findings of fact contained in Subsection A, Exhibit A; and compliance
with all conditions recommended by the planning commission, including amendment to
Condition No. 2 shown herein, staff moves to recommend that the Board of Storey County
Commissioners approve SUP Application No. 2012-014 to construct and operate a
commercial wireless communications tower.

B. ALTERNATIVE MOTION: Based on findings of fact contained in Subsection B, Exhibit
A, and contrary the recommendation for approval by county staff and the Storey County
Planning Commission, the Board of Storey County Commissioners may chooses to deny SUP
Application No. 2012-014 to censtruct and operate a commercial wireless communications
tower.

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Senior Planner

Exhibit A: Findings of Fact
Exhibit B: Official minutes of the April 5, 2012 planning commission meeting

Page 2 of 10

5]

[,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

Appendix 4; June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff

46 Recommendation Summary




Exhibit A: Findines of Fact

A.

Moticen for Approval.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

It is found that the commercial wireless communication facility under the recommended conditions
of approval is in accordance with the following findings of fact. Finding 10.12 is added as
recommended by legal counsel.

The proposed commercial wireless communications facility is in accordance with the stated
goals and objectives of the Storey County Master Plan by providing wireless telephone and
internet to this populated region to better “protect the public safety and welfare of residents”
(Goal 6.5, p. 7) by enhancing emergency communications, including “Emergency 9-1-17
services, and response times for emergency personnel; increasing education opportunities by
facilitating efficient and reliable access to the internet (Goal 6.1 and 6.6, pp. 6 - 7); fulfilling a
long recognized need and desire for consistent and reliable communications in the residential
area (Goal 6. 2, Objective 2.1, p. 7); and “Imaintaining] a healthy environment for all residents
of the county (Goal 9.1, Objective 1.1, p.9) by fulfilling the above and by implementing
substantial measures to mitigate visual impacts that otherwise would cause substantial adverse
impact to the surrounding environment.

A special use permit in accordance with Section 17.12.044 and Chapter 17.62 of the County
Code is required for the proposed wireless commercial communications antenna support tower
as proposed by SUP Application No. 2012-014.

The proposed facility is in accordance with the conditions of SUP No. 2012-014 will not
conflict with the purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the E-1-VCH
(Estate Zone), in which the commercial wireless communication facility is proposed be
located.

The conditions and stipulations under SUP No. 2012-014 are in accordance with the miimum
requirements set forth by Chapter 17.62 of the Storey County Code and are at least as stringent
as and not in conflict the applicable federal and Nevada State and Storey County regulations,
including the applicable rules of the FCC and the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996,
pertaining to the construction and placement of structures and the construction and operation
of commercial wireless communications towers,

The conditions of approval under SUP No. 2012-014 impose sufficient regulations on the
wireless commercial communications facility to reasonably mitigate associated impacts on
adjacent and surrounding residences and land uses.

Growth in the commercial wireless telecommunications industry has resulted in increased
applications to municipalities for installation of wireless signal facilities. As consumer demand
increases, so does the need for the industry to expand the number of antennae receiving and
transmitting signals. As stated in the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996, since more
than one antenna can be co-located on a tower structure, communities, including Storey
County, should encourage and require co-location wherever feasible, thereby reducing the
amount of new towers being constructed on the landscape.

The approval of the commercial wireless communications facility will result in personal
wireless communications capability including, but not limited to, cellular telephone, internet,
and broadband in an existing populated area currently underserved or not served such services.

The approval of the commercial wireless communications facility will promote the safety of
life and property for the area served by erhancing emergency telecommunications services,
Page 3 of 10

w,

Appendixes -

2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 4; June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff
47 Recommendation Summary




including “Emergency 9-1-17, for area residents and local emergency response authorities.

[0.9 In accordance with the Telecommunications Act of 1996, the proposed facility will fili an
existing gap in the ability of remote users to access the national telephone network. In this
context, the relevant gap is a gap in the service currently available to remote local users, and
the area being served is not already adequately served by another provider.

10.10 The provider applicant has demonstrated that the manner in which it proposes to fill the
significant gap in service is the least intrusive on the values...and has demonstrated a good
faith effort to identify and evaluate the least intrusive alternatives, e.g., that the provider has
considered less sensitive sites, alternative system designs, alternative tower designs and
placement of antennae, etc.

10.11 In accordance with 47 (U.S.C. Section 332(c)(7)(B)iv) of the Federal Code, the decision to
approval, deny, or regulate the placement, construction, and modification of the commercial
wireless communications facility is not based on electronic interference or the environmental
effects of radio frequency emissions.

10.12 As recommended by legal counsel and required by NRS Chapter 278, the re-hearing of SUP
Application No. 2012-014 will provide the applicant opportunity to state concerns and
request adjustments regarding the SUP conditions of approval.

B. Motion for Denial.

Should a motion be made to deny the commercial wireless communications facility, the following
findings of fact with explanation why should be included in that motion:

10.13 The proposed facility is not accordance with one or more of the stated goals and objectives of
the Storey County Master Plan.

10.14 The proposed facility, even with reasonable conditions and mitigation, will conflict with the
purpose, intent, and other specific requirements set forth in the E-1-VCH (Estate Zone), in
which the commercial wireless communication facility is proposed be focated.

10.15 No reasonable level of conditions imposed under SUP No. 2012-014 would be sufficient to
reasonably mitigate visual, safety, or other potential impacts on adjacent and surrounding
residences and land uses.

10.16 The applicant has not demonstrated that the manner in which it proposes to fill the significant
gap in service is the least intrusive on the values...and s/he has not demonstrated a good faith
effort to identify and evaluate the least intrusive alternatives, e.g., considering less sensitive
sites, alternative system designs, alternative tower designs and placement of antennae, etc,

10.17 In accordance with 47 (U.S.C. Section 332(c)(7}(B)(iv) of the Federal Code, the decision to
deny the application for the commercial wireless communications facility is not based on the
electronic interference or environmental effects of radio frequency emissions.

Prepared by Austin Osborne, Senior Planner

Page 4 of 10

[ms

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

{1

Appendix 4: June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff

48 Recommendation Summary




Exhibit B: Official minutes of the April 5. 2012 planning commission meeting

Minutes of April 5, 2012
MEMBERS PRESENT:
Virgil Bucchianeri, Lydia Hammack, John Herrington, Larry Prater, Bret Tyler and Doug Walling.

MEMBERS ABSENT: Laura Kekule

OTHERS PRESENT:

Senior Planner Austin Osborne, District Attorney Bill Maddox, DA Intern Scott Walker, Commissioner Biil Sjovangen,
and Sergeant Jeff Bowers.

CALL TO ORDER:

With a quorum present, Chairman Doug Walling called the meeting to order at the Virginia City Highlands Fire Station
at 6:00 P.M,

Pledge of Allegiance

APPROVAL OF AGENDA FOR April 5, 2012

Motion: Approval of Agenda, Action: Approve, Moved by Lydia Hammack, Seconded by John Harrington.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5).

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR March 1, 2012

Motion: Approval of Minutes, Action: Approve, Moved by john Harrington, Seconded by Bret Tyler.
Vote; Motion carried by roll call vote (summary: Yes = 4, Abstain = Lydia Hammack).

2012-014 SPECIAL USE PERMIT: By Kuffner/Vista Towers (Virginia City Highlands)

:

Applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit for APN 003-101-66, 21485 Saddleback Rd, Virginia City Highlands, to
instali and operate an 85" Stealth “Monopine” Commercial Wireless Communications Tower capable of accommodating
up to four wireless carriers.

Misako Hill, Vista Towers, gave a brief Power Point presentation and explained how this tower would facilitate co-
location and therefore reduce the potential number of future wireless communication towers in the area, Ms, Hill said
that her company, Vista Towers, had a good working relationship with several commercial wireless carriers. At this time
AT&T and Verizon are planning to use this tower. Once the construction is done, on-site maintenance only occurs once
a month or when an emergency arises. The new construction materials really do make the pole look like a pine tree.
Vice-Chairman Tyler asked about the site visits and wanted to limit the number and time that the visits occurred. Senior
Planner Osborne replied that it could be part of the conditions of approval.

Chairman Walling asked what kind of maintenance was required. Ms. Hill said that most of the maintenance was
electric monitoring and perhaps one to two hours on site once a month,

Planning Commissioner Hammack had many questions about how the support buildings were constructed and that they
and the fences would conform to the architectural requirements from the CC&R’s of the VCHPOA. Senior Planner
Osborne replied that the wording in the conditions of approval could be tightened up to make this a reguirement pursuant
to said Homeowner’s Association.

Planning Commissioner Herrington asked what kind of lighting would be used. Senior Planner Osborne replied that
Condition 16 covered the lighting requirements and that they would have to adhere to the Dark Skies Ordinance of the
county as well.

Planning Commissioner Prater commented that he had been to the site and noticed trees that had been blown over and
asked how the winds would affect the tower. He also felt that a non pine tower might be better. Ms. Hill replied that the
building permit would address the structural and there would be a soils report to go along with that application. Senior
Planner Osborne also added that the tower is engineered and he stated that the tower would have te meet minimum
county wind load requirements.

Vice-Chairman Tyler asked how many carriers are currently on the tower that is in Virginia City. Senior Planner
Osborne said that

there are currently two carriers with capacity for another. The tower proposed here will be able to handle four carriers,
he said.

Planning Commissioner Hammack asked about the effects of the weather which would cause fading of the artificial
foliage on the tower. Ms. Hill explained that Vista Towers does maintenance and replacement so that the visual always

Pace 5 of 10}

- |
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 4: june 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff
49 Recommendation Summary




looks the same,

Chairman Walling asked about the configuration of the tower for three carriers. Senior Planner Osbhorne explained that
this application is only for the tower but that when he gave his presentation that there was a picture showing the tower
with three carriers.

Carol Morrell, Storey County, asked about the noise from the generator. Senior Planner Osborne said that he had
changed the condition regarding the generator after discussing with Dan Davis, the Engineer for Vista Towers. Vice-
Chairman Tyler commented that he lived 2001t from a cell tower and that there is no noise.

Jed Margelin, Storey County, commented that the Highlands took a hard line against manufactured buildings and
suggested they check into Tough Sheds buildings. He went on to say that lattice towers are not good because they kill
lots of birds. Mr. Margolin said that he felt that the hours for the generator should be from ¥lam till 3pm. He wanted to
know how many users could talk on their phones at the same time. Ms. Hill could not answer that question as she only
represents Vista Tower and not the carriers. Mr. Margolin said that he was in favor of the tower. Senior Planner Osborne
chimed in stating that it’s the tower we are approving and that particular type phone coverage is dependent upon the
carriers located on the tower.

Blain Redwine, Storey County, wanted to know if alternate sites had been looked at. Senior Planner Osborne said that
Community Development Director Dean Haymore had worked with the applicant fooking at sites and it was decided that
this was the best site for the tower. Senior Planner Osborne sited line-of-site to area residents and the wireless grid
receptors at Mt, Rose and Pevine as reasons this site was good for the communications tower. Mr. Redwine asked if
consideration had been made by the county regarding the drop in property value due to the tower location. Senior
Planner Osborne answered that case law and text by the FCC has determined that property values are not impacted, and
in some cases are increased, with visualfly mitigated cell towers such as stealth monopine designs.

One gentleman, Storey County, asked if the tower would interfere with dish or TV service. Ms. Hill replied that it would
not.

Cynthia Kennedy, Storey County, asked if there were two towers next door what the FCC case law said about the
property value.

Mr. Margolin said that the decision should be based on requiring FCC certification. Senior Planner Osborne replied that
it was one of the conditions already in the staff report.

Gary Schmidt, candidate for State Assembly, said that the contract with the carriers could also have conditions.

Senior Planner Osborne then presented a Power Point presentation and went over regulations, illustrations, and the
findings of fact {copy available in the Planning Office).

Planning Comemissioner Herrington said that he would like to see the condition beefed up to give the Architectural
Committee of the VCHPOA more control over the structure and fences, Senior Planner Qsborne agreed that this could
be done but that the monopine structure itself should be left to the engineer and the conditions of the SUP.

Mr. Margolin said that he saw no problem with the regular maintenance on site being done between the hours of 9 to 5.
Karen who lives in the 40-Acre Parcels commented that there is a real need for this service for times of emergency. She
told of two separate times when it was needed due to fire hazards.

Mr. Redwine brought up the site location again and wanted to know if a study had been done on the appropriate siting.
Ms. Hall answered the question three times using different wording each time. Planning Commissioner Prater
commented that he has lived out in the Highlands for 35 years and the location was the best for the 360 degree range of
service. Senior Planner Osborne again explained how Director Haymore had worked with the applicant and his
qualifications. District Attorney Bill Maddox commented that Mr. Redwine was only being argumentative at this point
and it was time to move on.

Anna Redwine, Storey County, said that she thought the purpose of these meeting was to be argumentative and let
everyone speak want was on their mind.

Ms. Kennedy asked about using Geiger Peak for the tower. Senior Planner Osborne explained that it was not likely
suitable since 180 degree range of service would be going nowhere.

Planning Commissioner Prater asked about the involvement of Karen Kuffner whose property the tower is located.
Senior Planner Osborne explained that they were the property owner only and would be leasing a portion of their
property to Vista Towers. They still had enough land to be able to build a residence if they wished tc in the future.

Motion: Approval of Application with all conditions from the Staff Report and to include the changes
discussed and requested by the Planning Commissioners, Action: Approve, Moved by Virgil Bucchianert,
Seconded by John Harrington.

Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5).

Conditicns of approval with changes are as follows:

1. Special Uses. Special Use Permit (SUP) No. 2012-014 shall be for the purpose of installing and operating a
commercial wireless communication antennae tower as defined and regulated pursuant to the advisory motion

]

=,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

Appendix 4: June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff

50 Recommendation Summary




made by the Storey County Planning Commission and approved by the Board of Storey County Commissioners
on property located at 21485 Saddleback Road (APN 003-10-66), Virginia City Highlands, Storey County,
Nevada. The operation shall remain in compliance with all of the provisions set forth by this SUP and federal,
Nevada State, and Storey County codes and

regulations, including applicable regulations the Telecommunications Act of 1996 and the applicable rules
under Federal Communications Commission (FCC). Issuance of this SUP does not convey property rights of
any sort or any exclusive privilege; nor does it authorize any injury to persons or property, any invasion of other
private rights, or any infringement of state or local laws or regulations.

. Requirements. The Permit Holder shall apply for all required permits and licenses, including building and fire

permits, for the project within twenty four (24) months from the date of final approval of SUP No. 2012-014,
and continuously maintain the validify of those permits/licenses, or this approval shall be null and veid. This
SUP shall remain valid as long as the Permit Holder remains in compliance with the terms of this SUP and
Storey County, Nevada State, and federal regulations. No construction or permitting for construction shall
comimence prior to issuance of the SUP and a valid Storey County Building Permit.

. Closure/Abandonment, In the event that the tower and facility becomes decommissioned or is absent of any

permitted wireless carriers and antennae for a period of three consecutive years, Storey County shall reserve the
right to deem the facility abandoned and mandate the monopine tower and facility to be removed within 180
days thereof at the Permit Holder’s expense. The applicant shall reserve the right to appeal the decision of
abandonment. The process for the appeal shall be as pursuant to Chapter 17.60 and 17.62 of the Storey County
Code. Removal and reclamation shall include complete removal of the entire facility including the monopine,
monopole tower, antennae, electrical wiring and connections, accessory buildings and structures, foundations
and pads, and all other appurtenances. Reclamation of the site to a condition reasonably existing prior to
development shall be completed to the satisfaction of Storey County. Under no circumstances shall Storey
County, its officers, and representatives bare any cost or responsibility for the removal of said facilities or
reclamation of the site.

. Transfer of Rights. This SUP shall inure to the record owner of the Subject Property and to the Permit

Applicant (Vista Towers, LLC) and shall run with the land. Any and all transfers of SUP No. 2012-014 shall be
advised in writing by Certified Mail to Storey County Community Development Department at least 90 days
prior to assignee taking over operation of facility. The operators of the facility must sign and accept all
conditions and requirements of SUP No. 2012-014.

indemnification/Insurance. The Permit Holder warrants that the future use of land will conform to the
requirements of Storey County, State of Nevada, and applicable federal regulatory and legal requirements;
further, the Permit Holder warrants that continued and future use of the iand shall so conform. The Permit
Holder and property owner(s} agree to hold Storey County, its officers, and representatives harmless from the
costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or
which may occur as a result of this SUP. The Permit Holder shall maintain satisfactory liability insurance for
all aspects of this operation under SUP No. 2012-014 for a minimum amount of $1,000,000.00 (one million
dollars) and provide proof thereof to Storey County prior securing rights to the SUP.

. Emergency Telephone. Any persons located on the premises in connection with maintenance, repairs, or other

work on the premises shall be made aware to dial Storey County Emergency Services Direct-Connect
775.847.0950 (in lieu of 9-1-1) when dialing emergency service from cellular telephone. Emergency 9-1-1
still applies to landline telephones,

. Site Security. The entire facility shall be secured by a six-foot high fence sufficient in design to maintain

appropriate security for the premises. Exterior accessory building walls may also be utilized for this purpose as
appropriate. The Permit Holder may top the fence with three strands of barbed wire if allowable by the
Virginia City Highlands Property Owners Association (VCHPOA). The fence shall be color coated in
accordance with the requirements under “Coloration and Appearance” of this SUP. Video security surveillance,
while not hereby required, may be installed within the facility but shall in no way infringe or intrude upon on
the personal privacy on adjacent or area properties and residences. The tower shall be appropriately designed to
prevent unauthorized climbing.

Cautionary Signage. Signage shall be mnstalled at the main port of entry (i.e., facility gates) stating the

company’s name, site address, and 24-hour company management emergency contact phone number(s).
Signage shall indicate all potential hazards and safety requirements associated with entering the facility.

=,

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

u

Appendix 4: June 1%, 2012 SC Commissioner’s Office & Planning $taff

51 Recommendation Summary




Holder and submitted for approval to the Storey County Fire Department for review and approval prior to
securing rights to the SUP. The plan shall include, but not be limited to, the following in case of failure of the
communications facility or related appurtenances; (1) Permit Holder’s emergency contact phone number(s); (2)
emergency comntact procedure, including for Emergency Dispatch 9-1-1 and Storey County Emergency Direct-
Connect 775.847.0950; (3} documenting and reporting procedures; (4) post structure failure management,
clean-up, reclamation, and material disposal; {5) electrical system shut-down procedure; (6) disclosure and
management of hazardous materials (e.g., asbestos) or other conditions (e.g., radiation), if applicable; (7) post
structure failure damage reporting and treatment of affected neighboring properties; and (8) emergency access,
staging, and egress.

10. Necessity to Local Jurisdiction. In accordance with Section 17.62.010 of the Storey County Code, the
applicable

provisions of the Storey County Master Plan, and applicable regulations under the Telecommunications Act of
1996 in determining that the commercial communications facility enhances the safety and wellbeing of the
community, the Permit Holder shall collaborate with Storey County to develop a mutually acceptable plan by
which county-owned emergency radio communications repeater antennae may be installed and operated on the
monopole structure {as compatible with all other commercial carriers and wireless equipment thereon or
proposed to be placed thereon) and by which necessary ground support equipment may be placed and operated
within the facility parameters. This condition of approval recognizes that Storey County shall be responsible for
all costs for acquiring, installing, maintaining, operating (i.e., utility costs), and repairing the county-owned
antennae, ground support equipment, and other appurtenances, including any associated financial burdened by
the Permit Holder, but Storey County shall not be assessed any fee or other charge for said use of the tower and
facility. County-owned equipment placed upon exterior portions of the facility shall comply with the visual
design requirements under this SUP and/or the VCHPOA.

11. Carrier Capacity. The monopine support structure shall be capable in design to co-locate no less than four
commercial wireless carriers. The Permit Holder is hereby encouraged to co-locate additional carriers as the
facility may accommodate in accordance with the conditions of this SUP.

12. Plans Submittal, The Applicant shall provide Storey County Community Development Department site plans,
drawn to scale, which shall include dimensions of existing and proposed structures, as applicable, setback
dimensions, and driveway dimensions. All other submittals applicable to a valid Building Permit shall also
apply.

13. Setbacks. In accordance with Section 17.40.050 of the Storey County Code, minimum setbacks area as follows:
(a) front yard, 30 feet; (b) rear vard, 40 feet; and (c) side yards, 15 feet. The minimum setback requirement shall
apply to towers, antennae, foundation pads, and buildings. Additionally, the monopine shall be located no
closer than its total height plus 10 percent of its total height, from grade level to uppermost tip, to any
residential structure existing at the time of approval of the SUP,

14. Antenna Limitations. The monopine and facility shall be used exclusively for commercial wireless
communications. The towers shall not be used to support amateur or other non-conimercial radio antennae, or
lights, flags, banners, pennants, etc. Storey County emergency repeaters and antenna shall be exempt from this
requirement.

15. Noise. Power generator(s} (also to include “alternator(s)”) shall be muffled and remain within a sound-insulated
structure, encasement, or sound buffer walls {(such as concrete masonry unit walls) sufficient to attenuate noise
to or below the limitations set forth by Chapter 8.04 of the Storey County Code within 100° of the facility. The
generator shall only operate during power outages and during routine recharge and maintenance intervals.
Maintenance/recharge operation shalt be limited to three thirty-minute intervals per week and shall take place
on weekdays (Monday thru Friday) between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 3;00 p.m. Other mzintenance and
repair, except during emergencies, shall be limited to 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. during said weekdays. All other
noise emitted from the facility, except during times of periodic maintenance and repair, shall not exceed 40
dBA at a point of 100° from the antenna tower, equipment shelter, or any other noise emitting device or facility
within the premises.

16. Area Lighting. There shall be no outdoor lighting, including security and other area lighting, permitted on the
premises except under the following circumstances: outdoor lighting is managed by an automated motion
detector system that maintains all lights “off” unless motion is detected, at which point lights may remain “on”
for no more than four minutes; and all outdoor lights are shielded in accordance with Section 08.02.04 of the
Storey County Code (“Dark Skies”). [llumination of the premises during times of maintenance and repair shall

o u
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 4: June 192, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff
59 Recommendation Summary




17. Beacon Lighting. The tower, antennae, and other appurtenances thereto shall not be constructed or altered to a
height that would necessitate Federal Aviation Association (FAA) beacon lighting or special applied coloration,
Unless required otherwise by the FAA, beacon lighting shall be prohibited. There shall be no direct or indirect
illumination of or on any tower or antenna systemt. The FAA shall be the responsible agency for requiring, or
not requiring, beacon lighting or other signaling devices to be applied to the structures.

18. Facility Caloration and Appearance. The facility shall be developed in accordance with the plans and drawings
submitted as part of SUP Application No. 2012-014. The Permit Holder shall be responsible for maintaining the
facility’s appearance in accordance with the requirements of terms and conditions of this SUP. Additionally, the
Permit Holder shail obtain architectural review and approval from the Virginia City Highlands Property
Owners” Association (VCHPOA) for the design and type of equipment shelters, buildings, fences, and other
appurtenances related to the facility, but not the monopine structure which shall remain in accordance with the
design criteria under this SUP. A Certificate of Approval from the VCHPOA shall be submitted to the
Community Development Department prior to the issuance of a Building Permit. The following elements shall
be incorporated into the design of the facility, uniess regulated otherwise by the VCHPOA, and
telecommunications monopine tower:

a. The monopine tower shall at a minimum exhibit the appearance of a natural coniferous tree similar in
structure, design, branch density, overall branch coverage, and coloration as illustrated in SUP
Application No, 2012-014 and enclosed as Exhibit B of the SUP approval. The monopole structure
may be void of branches and other foliage from grade level to a point no higher than 12°, thus
exhibiting a bare “tree trunk”,

b. Storey County Community Development shall reserve the right to require additional “branch” or
fToliage density, but no more than 3 branches per foot on monopole structure, necessary to effectively
conceal antennae, dishes, and other applied devices in order to create an appearance that is consistent
with the proposed design.

¢. The exterior finish of the monopine, including the monopole structure, branches, and foliage shali be
similar in color and hue to the submitted monopine renditions. If it becomes unclear as to the color
required for the monopine support structure, Kelly Moore “Sudan Brown” or a similar color of any
brand shall be the required color. Unless required otherwise by the VCHPOA, exterior finishes for
the remaining facility structures, buildings, fences, etc., shall be in accordance with the above
requirements.

d. No antennae, dishes, or applied device shall protrude beyond the dense foliage of the monopine
branches. “Needle sleeves” and/or other appropriate camouflage shall be piaced over such devices to
further facilitate blending with the overall monopine.

€. Atleast 75 percent of all ground surfaces visible from outside the facility, including all exposed cuts,
fills, and graded slopes, shall be re-vegetated with native non-invasive plant species and/or surfaced
with aggregate, large rocks, or other material of a color and hue similar to the immediate surrounding
environment;

f.  No advertising shall be permitted anywhere on the facility, with exception of signage in accordance
with the applicable requirements under these conditions;

g. The Permit Hoider shall be responsible for maintaining and repairing the monopine and facility, as
necessary, to remain in compliance with these design requirements and/or those imposed by the
VCHPOA. Failure to maintain and repair the monopine and facility in accordance herewith shall be
deemed violations of the requirements of this SUP. All vandalism or graffiti to the facility shall be
remedied by the Permit Holder within seven calendar days of acknowledgement.

19. Vegetation Removal. Trees, shrubs, and other vegetation and ground surfaces shall be preserved to the extent
feasible.

20. Electrical Distribution and Controls. The location, routing, and alignment of exterior electrical and
communication controls, associated wiring, and power lines {except those now existing) shall be approved by
the Building Department, when applicable. '

End of Conditions.

DETERMINATION OF NEXT PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING:
Motion: Next Planning Commission meeting to be held at 6:00 p.m. on May 3, 2012, at the Storey County Courthouse,
Virginia City, Nevada. Action: Approve, Moved by: Lydia Hammack, Seconded by: John Harrington.
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous roll call vote (summary: Yes = 5).
Pager G nf 10

n |
Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014 Appendix 4: June 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff
53 Recommendation Summary




CLAIMS: NONE
CORRESPONDENCE: NONE
PUBLIC COMMENT:

Gary Schmidt said that he is running for the State Assembly in District 39. District 39 now
encompasses Storey County, Dayton, Mound House and Douglas County. Mr. Schmidt gave a brief
campaign talk and then commented on the meeting and how good it was to see everyone able to
express their opinions.

Lance Gilman commented that he was happy to be at the meeting and felt that the Planning
Commission had done a good job.

Eileen Harrington said she liked to watch her husband at work.

Cynthia Kennedy said that she was impressed with the article in the paper about Planning
Commissioner Bret Tyler and his artwork.

STAFF:

Senior Planner Osborne informed the Planning Commissioners that the zoning ordinance updates are
just about ready to go to the District Attorney for his review. The zoning maps are now with the
Douglas County GIS and should be ready for review in about four months.

PLANNING COMMISSIONER COMMENT

Planning Commission Prater and Planning Commissioner Hammack said that they appreciated the
decision of the board tonight.
ADJOURNMENT: Chairman Doug Walling adjourned the meeting at 8:00 P.M,

The Plamming Commission minutes as stated above are a summary of the proceeding and are not a verbatim
record. The meeting held on the above date was recorded on the Storey County portable recording system.

Respectfully Submitted,

Donna Giboney, Sitting Secretary Doug Walling, Chairman

Page 10 of 10

ul

[m

Appendixes - 2012-014-A-1-2014

Appendix 4 june 19, 2012 SC Commissioner's Office & Planning Staff

54 Recommendation Summary




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 16, 2014 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2014-016. By Jim Minar on behalf of Supergraphics
located at 1 South C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada at a business commonly known as the Bucket
of Blood Saloon (APN: 001-085-11). The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the placement of a mural
on the exterior portion of the building.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Storey County Planning Commission
and Staff, the Findings under Section 6.1 of the Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board,
and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner] hereby move to approve with conditions
Special Use Permit Number 2014-016 for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion of the building at APN:
001-085-11.

3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff snmmary: The Applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the placement of a mural on the exterior
portion of the building,.

3. Supporting materials: Staff report, exhibits and appendices.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed/by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied [] Continued Agenda Item No.




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Storey County Courthouse

Phone (775) 847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949
planning@storeycounty.org

=,

To: Storey County County Commissioners

From: Storey County Planning Department

Meeting Date: September 16, 2014 at 10am

Meeting Location:  Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Staff Contact: Dessie Redmond, Planner

File: 2014016

Applicant: Jim Minar with Supergraphics

Property Owner: Marshalf McBride

Property Location: | South C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-085-11) ata
business commonly known as the Bucket of Blood Saloon.

Figures: Figure I-Vicinity Map; Figure 2-Zoning Map; Figures 3 & 4-Site Photos; Figures

' 5-Mural Mock Up; Figure 6-Abutting Land Uses

Appendix: Appendix 1-Information Submitted by the Applicant

Guiding Documents: Storey County Code Sections 17.84 Signs and Billboards, 17.03.150 Special Use
Permit {conditional use), 17.10 Definitions and the Storey County Master Plan

Request: A Special Use Permit for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion of the
building

r O
Introduction

Staff Report - 2014014




1. BACKGROUND &
ANALYSIS

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject property is located at 1
Scouth C Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada (Assessor Parcel
Number (APN) 001-085-11). The
property is approximately .16 acres
and is owned by Marshall McBride.

one-half miles to the south, and Reno
is approximately 26 miles to the
northwest (Figure 1 - Vicinity Map).The
subject property is zoned Commercial-
Residential (CR) (Figure 2 - Zoning
Map). The Bucket of Blood Saloon is
located on the subject property. Their
is also a small attached portion of the
building (Figures 3 & 4 - Site Photos)
that hosts an Automatic Teller Machine
(ATM).

1.2 Proposed Mural

The Applicant proposes to install a
mural on the south side of the small
attached portion of the subject building
(Figure 5 - Mural Mock Up).

The proposed mural is a collage of
historic photographs that celebrates

the area’s diversity and honors the past
{Appendix 1 - Information Submitted by
the Applicant).

The size of the mural is approximately
80 inches by 102 inches (56.5 square
feet). The graphic is printed on high
pressure, half-inch thick laminate.

The graphic has a matte finish and is
mounted with two french cleats on the

Fiéﬁr%: 2 - Zoning Map

o O
Staff Report - 2014-016 Background & Analysis




back side, at the top and bottom, and secured to the building. The edges are finished with a matt, black
aluminum. There is no reflective material as part of this mural.

1.3 Application for a SUP

Storey County Code (SCC) chapter 17.10 Definitions, defines a mural as non-commercial images such
as paintings or enlarged photographs applied directly onto walls and ceilings. They are usually but

not always large in size. Murals typically exhibit few or no words and are not intended to advertise or
otherwise bring attention to any afttraction. Non-commercial images oftentimes are intended to enhance
an area’s beauty, highlight the community’s social or historical character, or otherwise depict a message
or theme that is commen to the immediate community in which they are displayed.

Staff determined the proposed mural fits this definition.

In the SCC Chapter 17.84 Signs and Billboards, Section 17.84.080 General Requirements (H), it states,
a Special Use Permit (SUP) is required for the application or placement of a mural. Murals proposed
within the Comstock Historic District must also comply with NRS 384, this chapter, and chapter 17.48
Historic Overlay District.

1.4 Purpose and Intent of the Commercial-Residential Zone

The CR zone is intended to serve as a community focal point and provided for a center of mixed uses
including single-family and multi-family residences which are integrated with commercial businesses,
culture and entertainment amenities, and uses related to tourism. It is also intended to become a
transportation center in the form of a destination for vehicular, public transit, and rail traffic supporting
all allowable uses. In general, the zone provides for centers and uses of regional importance and
provides an integrated and attractive environment for visitors and residents. It is intended to be an area
of high intensity uses in which a full range of public facilities (including water, sewer, schools, law
enforcement, fire protection, etc.) will generally be focused in accordance with the county master plan
and connected to the immediate swrrounding residential uses.

1.5 Abutting Properties Existing Uses

The subject property is mostly surrounded by commercial uses such as restaurants and parking lots
which are similar uses to the subject property. The abutting land to the east is a multi-family residence
(Figure 6 - Uses on Abutting Parcels). However, this abutting land use is far in distance and is not
impacted because of grade separation.

1.6 Abutting Properties Zoning
The abutting properties are ail zoned CR (Figure 2 - Zoning Map).

slank

o
o
)
ey
el

2y le

m 8|
Staff Report - 2014-016 Background & Analysis




Figure 4 - Site Photo

O

tw,
Staff Report - 2014-016

Background & Analysis




N i [

Figure 5 - Mural Mock Up

iR

.

Pl

2 a 2

Figure 6 - Abutting Land Uses

o a
Staff Report - 2014-016 Background & Analysis




2. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH STOREY COUNTY'’S
GUIDING DOCUMENTS

2.1 Table 1: Land Use Compatibility

The following table shows land uses, Storey County Master Plan (Master Plan) designations and zoning
for the land surrounding the proposed residence. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal
and SCC Title 17 Zoning or the Master Plan. The proposed mural is also consistent with the surrounding
area.

Land Land Use Master Plan Zoning
. . . C ical, residential, and tourism-
Applicant’s Land Commercial Business orimerical, resicefitial, and tourism CR
based land uses
, . Commerical, residential, and tourism-
Land to the north Commercial Business CRrR
based land uses
Land to the south Parking lot Coramerical, residential, and tourism- CR
based land uses
. ) Commerical, residential, and tourism-
Land to the west Commercial Business CR
based land uses
ical idential, and tourism-
Land to the northeast Comunercial Business Commerical, residential, and tourism CR
based land uses
o , . Commerical, residential, and tourism-
Land to the east Multi-Family Residence Fmer i n f CR
based land uses

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE

3.1 Storey County Code 17.84.080 (H)

SCC requires a special use permit for the application or placement of a mural. The Applicant has
submitted an application for the proposed mural and therefore, complies with this standard.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY MASTER
PLAN

On page 19 of the Master Plan it states:
The economic base of a county is those activities which provide basic employment and income. Storey
County’s economic base shifted after World War II from mining to tourism.

1t is Staff’s opinion the proposed mural appears to promote tourism and economic activity in a section
of town known for mature economic opportunity. Therefore, the proposed project supports the goals,
objectives and recommendations of the Master Plan.

o 0
Staff Report - 2014-016 General Compliance with 5C’s Guiding Documents & Compliance with the SCC & the MP

6




5. PUBLIC COMMENT
Staff has not received any public comment for this file as of posting date.

6. FINDINGS

6.1 Motion for Approval

The Findings are evident with regard to the requested SUP when the recommended Conditions of

Approval in Section 7 - Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied. The approval, approval with
conditions, or denial of a SUP must be based on Findings that indicate that the proposed use is appropriate
in the location for which it is approved. The Findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited

in an approval; the body may include additional Findings in their decision. The Planning Commission
must cite Findings in the motion for approval, approval with conditions, or denial. At a minimum, the
approval must be based on the following Findings:

6.1.1 The proposed SUP complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted, or under
consideration pursuant to official notice by the county; and

6.1.2 The proposed SUP will be compatible with existing adjacent land uses and will not cause
substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses or other properties in the vicinity. The proposed

mural will enhance the immediate surrounding area with regard to tourism, promoting commerce and

highlighting history of the community in which it is located; and

6.1.3 The Conditions of Approval of the proposed SUP require compliance with the applicable codes; _

and

6.1.4 The proposed SUP will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting

properties; and

6.1.5 The proposed SUP is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.84 Signs and Billboards; and

6.1.6 The Conditions of Approval require compliance with the regulations of the Comstock Historic

District Comumission.

6.2 Motion for Denial

Should a motion be made to deny the SUP request, the following findings with explanation of why should

be included in that motion.

6.2.1 There are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,
topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance that would

deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical

zone classification; or

6.2.2 The granting of the proposed SUP is not necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant (property owner); or

|

m,

Staff Report - 2014-016

Public Comment & Findings




6.2.3 The granting of the proposed SUP will, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property; or

6.2.4 The proposed SUP is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey
County regulations; or

6.2.5 The proposed SUP is not in substantial compliance with and does not support the goals,
objectives and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

7. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department.

1.

Compliance. The (Special Use Permit) SUP must comply with County Codes, and submitted
reports, as approved.

Hold Harmless. The SUP permit hoider agrees to hold Storey County, its Officers, and
Representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability,
and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this SUP.

CHDC. The Applicant shall obtain a Certificate of Appropriateness from the CHDC and submit the
Certificate to the Planning Department prior to the placement of the proposed mural.

Taxes Paid. The Applicant must show the Planning Department evidence that all property taxes on
the land are paid to-date.

Null and Void. If the SUP is not exercised within 24 months of the date of approval, unless
additional time is granted by the Board with action by the Planning Commission, based upon
consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then without further action, the SUP will
be null and void and no mural may be installed on the property except on the granting of a new SUP.

Maintenance. The mural must be maintained so that it remains free of graffiti and cracking,
separation, splitting, ripping, chipping, and fading of exposed surfaces including, but not limited to,

faces, lettering, and all structural supports.

Safety. The mural must be maintained so that it remains safe, fully upright and level.

8. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it deems
warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution, and such
resolution must recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which it bases its decision. The

=,

Staff Report - 2014-016

8

Tl

Recommended Conditions of Approval & Power of the Board & PC




decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the SUP is advisory only to the Board of
County Commissioners and that governing body must consider the report and recommendation and must
make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

9. AUGUST 7: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

On September 4, 2014, in accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under 6.1 of this
Staff Report and in compliance with all conditions of approval (1-7), the Storey County Planning
Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval with conditions for Special Use Permit 2014-
016 (yes =5, nay = 0, absent = 2).

10. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two options from which to choose. The motion for approval with the Conditions of
Approval is recommended by the Planning Commission and Staff, and in accordance with the Findings
under Section 6.1 of this Staff Report. Those Findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for
denial may be made and that moticn should cite one or more of the Findings shown in section 6.2. Other
Findings determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

10.1 Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recominendation by the Planning Commission and Staff, the Findings

under Section 6.1 of this Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board, and

in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner| hereby move to approval with
conditions Special Use Permit Number 2014-016 for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion
of the building at APN: 001-085-11.

10.2 Alternative Motion

In accordance with the Findings under Section 6.2 of this Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, | [Commissioner] hereby move to deny Special Use Permit Number 2014-
016 for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion of the building APN: ¢01-085-11.

Prepared by: Dessie Redmond
Storey County Planner

o) n|
Staff Report - 2014-016 August 7: PC Meeting & Proposed Motions




APPENDIX 1: INFORMATION SUBMITTED
BY APPLICANT

=, ul
Appendixes - 2014-016 Appendix 1: Information Submitted by Applicant

10




LIOCIR O SR

Images Courtesy Of: Library of Congress, Geography and Map Division - Library of Congress, Prints and Photographs Division -
Wells Fargo Corporate Archives

s
s = [

Fargo office on C Street in Virgima City, The Sevage Works Mine near Virginia City, 1888, After the The Bucket of Blood Saloon on C Street in Virginia City,
1888, Wells Fargo offices acted as canters of avery of the Comatock Lode in 1885, Virginis City was 1940, The historie saloon’s structure dates back 10 1878, wi
commerce, providing banking and exoress services built on the easiern slopes of Meunt Davidson, perched the building was rebuilt after the Great Fire of 1875,

o miners, merchents, and families, above the intricate turmels and shafis undarioat.

The Wel!

e

Vialls, Farge & Co's Express
BT

|
3!

i
%

A miner at work under Virginia City, 1867 f“Mining en the Comstack,” Anillustration of Virginia City by Grafton T.  Wells Fargo express shipping label.
The Neveds rmining boom of the 18605 by T L. Dawes, 1378, The Comsiock Lode Brown, 2861 Al its peak, Yirginia Citvhad @ From 1852 Lo 1518, Wells targo used
prompted the development of new mining discovery produced hundreds of population of over 25,000 residents and was the fastest means available to detiver
technelogy to suppert the chalienging thousands of doliars In silver and geld, called the “richest vity in America” customers’ business.

Tiew environment. and remalns o
metal discoverios in histary.

e grecztest precious

Together we'll go far

Questions? Comments?
We would lika to hear from ysu!
Please contact communitymurals@wellsfargeo.com.

& 2014 Wells Farge Bank, N.A. All rights reserved.

I, u}
Appendixes - 2014-016 Appendix 1: Information of Project Submitted by Applicant

11




s, u
Appendixes - 2014-015 Appendix 1: Information of Praject Submitted by Applicant

12




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: September 16, 2014 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Special Use Permit 2014-016. By Jim Minar on behalf of Supergraphics
located at 1 South C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada at a business commonly known as the Bucket
of Blood Saloon (APN: 001-085-11). The applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the placement of a mural
on the exierior portion of the building,.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by the Storey County Planning Commission
and Staft, the Findings under Section 6.1 of the Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board,
and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [Commissioner] hereby move to approve with conditions
Special Use Permit Number 2014-016 for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion of the building at APN:
001-085-11.

3. Prepared by: Dessie Redmond, Planner
Department: Planning Department Telephone: 847-1144

4. Staff summary: The Applicant requests a Special Use Permit for the placement of a mural on the exterior
portion of the building.

5. Supporting materials: Staff report, exhibits and appendices.

6. Fiscal impact: None on local government.
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed/by:
Department Head Department Name:

__ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved
[1 Denied

==rees

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued Agenda Item No.




26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440

STOREY COUNTY

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
Storey County Courthouse

Phone (775) 847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949
ptanning@storeycounty.org

m,

To: Storey County County Commissioners

From: Storey County Planning Department

Meeting Date: September 16, 2014 at 10am

Meeting Location:  Storey County Courthouse - 26 South B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Staff Contact: Dessie Redmond, Planner

File: 2014-016

Applicant: Jim Minar with Supergraphics

Property Owner: Marshall McBride

Property Location: 1 South C Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (APN: 001-085-11) at a
business commonly known as the Bucket of Blood Saloon.

Figures: Figure 1-Vicinity Map; Figure 2-Zoning Map; Figures 3 & 4-Site Photos; Figures
5-Mural Mock Up; Figure 6-Abutting Land Uses

Appendix: Appendix 1-Tnformation Submitted by the Applicant

Guiding Documents: Storey County Code Sections 17.84 Signs and Billboards, 17.03.150 Special Use
Permit (conditional use), 17.10 Definitions and the Storey County Master Plan

Request: A Special Use Permit for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion of the
building

o 0
Introduction

Staff Report - 2014-016




1. BACKGROUND &
ANALYSIS

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject property is located at 1
South C Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada (Assessor Parcel
Number (APN) 001-085-11). The
property is approximately .16 acres
and is owned by Marshall McBride.
Gold Hill is approximately one and
one-half miles to the south, and Reno
is approximately 26 miles to the
northwest (Figure 1 - Vicinity Map).The
subject property is zoned Commercial-
Residential (CR) (Figure 2 - Zoning
Map). The Bucket of Blood Saloon is
located on the subject property. Their
is also a small attached portion of the
building (Figures 3 & 4 - Site Photos)
that hosts an Automatic Teller Machine
(ATM).

1.2 Proposed Mural

The Applicant proposes to install a
mural on the south side of the small
attached portion of the subject buiiding
{Figure 5 - Mural Mock Up).

The proposed mural is a collage of
historic photographs that celebrates

the area’s diversity and honors the past
(Appendix 1 - Information Submitted by
the Applicant).

The size of the mural is approximately
80 inches by 102 inches (56.5 square
feet). The graphic is printed on high
pressure, half-inch thick laminate.

The graphic has a matte finish and is
mounted with two french cleats on the

o
Staff Report - 2014-016

0

Background & Andalysis




back side, at the top and bottom, and secured to the building. The edges are finished with a matt, black
aluminum. There is no reflective material as part of this mural.

1.3 Application for a SUP

Storey County Code (SCC) chapter 17.10 Definitions, defines a mural as non-commercial images such
as paintings or enlarged photographs applied directly onto walls and ceilings. They are usually but

not always large in size. Murals typically exhibit few or no words and are not intended to advertise or
otherwise bring attention to any attraction. Non-commercial images oftentimes are intended to enhance
an area’s beauty, highlight the community’s social or historical character, or otherwise depict a message
or theme that is common to the immediate community in which they are displayed.

Staff determined the proposed mural fits this definition.

In the SCC Chapter 17.84 Signs and Billboards, Section 17.84.080 General Requirements (H), it states,
a Special Use Permit (SUP) is required for the application or placement of a mural. Murals proposed
within the Comstock Historic District must also comply with NRS 384, this chapter, and chapter 17.48
Historic Overlay District.

1.4 Purpose and Intent of the Commercial-Residential Zone

The CR zone is intended to serve as a community focal point and provided for a center of mixed uses
including single-family and multi-family residences which are integrated with commercial businesses,
culture and entertainment amenities, and uses related to tourism. It is also intended to become a
transportation center in the form of a destination for vehicular, public transit, and rail traffic supporting
all allowable uses. In general, the zone provides for centers and uses of regional importance and
provides an integrated and attractive environment for visitors and residents. It is intended to be an area
of high intensity uses in which a full range of public facilities (including water, sewer, schools, law
enforcement, fire protection, etc.) will generally be focused in accordance with the county master plan
and connected to the immediate surrounding residential uses.

1.5 Abutting Properties Existing Uses

The subject property is mostly surrounded by commercial uses such as restaurants and parking lots
which are similar uses to the subject property. The abutting land to the east is a multi-family residence
(Figure 6 - Uses on Abutting Parcels). However, this abutting land use is far in distance and is not
impacted because of grade separation.

1.6 Abutting Properties Zoning
The abutting properties are all zoned CR (Figure 2 - Zoning Map).

intentionally left blank

[m = |
Staff Report - 2014-016 Background & Analysis




Figure 4 - Site Ph

ol 5
S
0

o

7

Staff Report - 2014-016

Background & Analysis




R

L LA S 4 )A

i R

Fgure 5 - Mural Mock Up

| Figure - Abutting Land Uses

=, uj
Staff Report - 2014016 Background & Anaiysis




¥

2. GENERAL COMPLIANCE WITH STOREY COUNTY'S
GUIDING DOCUMENTS

2.1 Table 1: Land Use Compatibility

The following table shows land uses, Storey County Master Plan (Master Plan) designations and zoning
for the land surrounding the proposed residence. There are no evident conflicts between the proposal
and SCC Title 17 Zoning or the Master Plan. The proposed mural is also consistent with the surrounding
area.

Land Use

Land Master Plan Zonin_gﬂ

. . . Commerical, residential, and tourism-

Applicant's Land Commercial Business CR

based land uses

Commerical, residential, and tourism-

based land uses

. Commerical, residential, and tourism-

Land to the south Parking lot CR
based land uses

Commerical, residential, and tourism-

Land to the north Commercial Business CR

Land to the west Commercial Business CR
based land uses
. \ Commerical, residential, and tourism-
Land to the northeast Commercial Business CR
based land uses
. , . Commerical, residential, and tourism-
Land to the east Multi-Family Residence CR

based land uses

3. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY CODE

3.1 Storey County Code 17.84.080 (H)

SCC requires a special use permit for the application or placement of a mural. The Applicant has
submitted an application for the proposed mural and therefore, complies with this standard.

4. COMPLIANCE WITH THE STOREY COUNTY MASTER
PLAN

On page 19 of the Master Plan it states:
The economic base of a county is those activities which provide basic employment and income. Storey
County’s economic base shifted after World War {I from mining to tourism.

It is Staff’s opinion the proposed mural appears to promote tourism and economic activity in a section
of town known for mature economic opportunity. Therefore, the proposed project supports the goals,
objectives and recommendations of the Master Plan.

Staff Report - 2014-016

6

{1
General Compliance with SC's Guiding Documents & Compliance with the SCC & the MP




5. PUBLIC COMMENT

Staff has not received any public comment for this file as of posting date.

6. FINDINGS

6.1 Motion for Approval

The Findings are evident with regard to the requested SUP when the recommended Conditions of
Approval in Section 7 - Recommended Conditions of Approval are applied. The approval, approval with
conditions, or denial of a SUP must be based on Findings that indicate that the proposed use is appropriate
in the location for which it is approved. The Findings listed in this subsection are the minimum to be cited
in an approval; the body may include additional Findings in their decision. The Planning Commission
must cite Findings in the motion for approval, approval with conditions, or denial. At a minimum, the
approval must be based on the following Findings:

6.1.1 The proposed SUP complies with the general purpose, goals, objectives, and standards of the
county master plan, this title, and any other plan, program, map, or ordinance adopted, or under
consideration pursuant to official notice by the county; and

6.1.2 The proposed SUP will be compatible with existing adjacent land uses and will not cause
substantial negative impact on adjacent land uses or other properties in the vicinity. The proposed
mural will enhance the immediate surrounding area with regard to tourism, promoting commerce and
highlighting history of the community in which it is located; and

6.1.3 The Conditions of Approval of the proposed SUP require compliance with the applicable codes;
and

6.1.4 The proposed SUP will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety hazards on the abutting
properties; and

6.1.5 The proposed SUP is in compliance with Storey County Code 17.84 Signs and Billboards; and

6.1.6 The Conditions of Approval require compliance with the regulations of the Comstock Historic
District Commission.

6.2 Motion for Denial
Should a motion be made to deny the SUP request, the following findings with explanation of why should

be mcluded in that motion.

6.2.1 There are no special circumstances applicable to the subject property, including shape, size,
topography or location of surroundings, the strict application of the zoning ordinance that would
deprive the subject property of privileges enjoyed by other properties in the vicinity or under identical
zone classification; or

6.2.2 The granting of the proposed SUP is not necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of
substantial property rights of the applicant (property owner); or

O O
Staff Report - 2014014 Public Comment & Findings




6.2.3 The granting of the proposed SUP will, under the circumstances of the particular case,
adversely affect to a material degree the health or safety of persons residing or working in the
neighborhood of the subject property and will be materially detrimental to the public welfare or
materially injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the subject property; or

6.2.4 The proposed SUP is not in substantial compliance with all Federal, Nevada State, and Storey
County regulations; or

6.2.5 The proposed SUP is not in substantial compliance with and does not support the goals,
objectives and recommendations of the Storey County Master Plan.

7. RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable County Department,

1. Compliance. The (Special Use Permit) SUP must comply with County Codes, and submitted
reports, as approved.

2. Hold Harmless. The SUP permit holder agrees to hold Storey County, its Officers, and
Representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any damage or liability,
and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as a result of this SUP.

3. CHDC. The Applicant shall obtain a Certificate of Appropriateness from the CHDC and submit the
Certificate to the Planning Department prior to the placement of the proposed mural.

4. Taxes Paid. The Applicant must show the Planning Department evidence that all property taxes on
the land are paid to-date,

5. Null and Void. If the SUP is not exercised within 24 months of the date of approval, unless
additional time is granted by the Board with action by the Planning Commission, based upon
consideration of the specific circumstances of the project, then without further action, the SUP will
be null and void and no mural may be installed on the property except on the granting of a new SUP.

6. Maintenance. The mural must be maintained so that it remains free of graffiti and cracking,
separation, splitting, ripping, chipping, and fading of exposed surfaces including, but not limited to,

faces, lettering, and all structural supports.

7. Safety. The mural must be maintained so that it remains safe, fully upright and fevel.

8. POWER OF THE BOARD & PLANNING COMMISSION

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Planning Commission must take such action thereon as it deems
warranted under the circumstances and announce and record its action by formal resolution, and such
resolution must recite the findings of the Planning Commission upon which it bases its decision. The

o |
Staff Report - 2014-016 Recommended Conditions of Approval & Power of the Board & PC

8




decision of the Planning Commission in the matter of granting the SUP is advisory only to the Board of
County Commissioners and that governing body must consider the report and recommendation and must
make such a decision thereon as it deems warranted.

9. AUGUST 7: PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING

On September 4, 2014, in accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under 6.1 of this
Staff Report and in compliance with all conditions of approval (1-7), the Storey County Planning
Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval with conditions for Special Use Permit 2014~
016 (yes = 5, nay = 0, absent = 2).

10. PROPOSED MOTIONS

This section contains two options from which to choose. The motion for approval with the Conditions of
Approval is recommended by the Planning Commission and Staff, and in accordance with the Findings
under Section 6.1 of this Staff Report. Those Findings should be made part of that motion. A motion for
denial may be made and that motion should cite one or more of the Findings shown in section 6.2. Other
Findings determined appropriate by the Board should be made part of either motion.

10.1 Recommended Motion

In accordance with the recommendation by the Planning Commission and Staff, the Findings

under Section 6.1 of this Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board, and

in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, | [Commissioner| hereby move to approval with
conditions Special Use Permit Number 2014-016 for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion
of the building at APN: 001-085-11.

10.2 Alternative Motion

In accordance with the Findings under Section 6.2 of this Staff Report and/or other Findings deemed
appropriate by the Board, I [Commissioner] hereby move to deny Special Use Permit Number 2014-
016 for the placement of a mural on the exterior portion of the building APN: 001-085-11.

Prepared by: Dessie Redmond
Storey County Planner

o ]
Staff Repori - 2014-014 August 7: PC Meeling & Proposed Motions




APPENDIX 1: INFORMATION SUBMITTED
BY APPLICANT

1 .|
Appendixes - 2074-016 Appendix 1: Information Submitted by Applicant

10




Virginia City Mural Key J

The Wells Fargo Community Mural Pragram is dedicated to creating unique, custom-designed, historical artwork that respects the community’s legary,
celebrates its diversity, and honors the past upon which the community was founded.

Images Courtesy OF: Library of Congress, Geography and Map Division - Library of Congress, Prints and Photographs Division -
Wells Fargo Corporate Archives

NSt

The Wells Fargo office on C Street in Virginia City, The Savage Works Mine near Virginia City, 1868, After the The Bucket of Blood Saloon on C Street in Virginia City,

1866, Wells Pargo offices acted as centers of discovery of the Comstock L.ode in 1859, Virginia City was 1940, The historic saloon’s structure dates back 1o 1876, when
commerce, praviding banking and express services built on the eastern slopes of Mount Davidson, perched the building was rebuilt after the Great Fire of 1875.
to miners, merchants, and familjes. above the intricate tunnels and shafts underfaot.

1 A miner at work under Virginia City, 1867, Engraving of “Mining on the Comstock,” An illustration of Virginia City by Grafton T.  Welis Fargo axpress shipping label.

| The Nevada mining boom of the 1860s by T. L. Dawes, 1876. The Comstock Lode Rrown, 1861. At its peak, Virginia Ciry had 2 From 1852 to 1918, Wells Fargo used
prompted the development of new mining discaovery preduced hundreds of population of over 25,000 residents and was the fastest means available to deliver
technology Lo support the challenging thousands of detlars in silver and gold, called the “richest city in America” customers’ business.
new envirpnment, and remains one of the greatest precious

metal discoveries in history.

Together we’ll go far

Questions? Comments?
We would like to hear fram you!
Please contact ¢communitymurals@wellsfargo.com.

© 2014 Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Afl rights reserved.

m 0
Appendixes - 2014-014 Appendix 1: Information of Project Submitted by Applicant
11




L
Appendixes - 2014-0i 6

12

.|

Appendix 1: Information of Project Submitted by Applicant




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

\»fy“’&

Meeting date: G- ¢ | Y- Estimate of time required: 0 -5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -~ Approval

2. Recommended motion; Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: Q/

x__ Departmeny/iz

ager Other agency review:

Department Name: Community Development

County Ma

9. Board action:
[] Approved [ Approved with Modifications

|
[ Denied [] Continued

Agenda ltem No.




Storey County Community Bebelopment
Buginess o )

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 8470066 « Fax (775) 847-0035 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office September 8, 2014
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the September 16, 2014, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary (o operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

A. AGGREGATE RESOURCE DRILLING, LLC - Contractor / 4080 Commercial Ave ~ Springfield, OR
(rock driller)

B. BW CABINETS & DOORS, INC. — Contractor / 52 Miles Road ~ Carson City (cabinet sales/installer)
C. PAUL BROOKS GENERAL CONTRACTOR - Contractor / 199 East Winnie Lane ~ Carson City, NV
{Contractor)

D. TFG CONSULTING, LLC — General / 1273 Lariat Court ~ Minden (Consultant)

E. WINDAK, INC. - Contractor / 1254 26" Street ~ Hickory, NC (servicing equipment in County)

F. DAVE’S HANDYMAN SERVICES - General / 1647 Clover Leaf Drive ~ Sparks (Handyman)

G. ARDAGH METAL PACKAGING USA, INC. - General / 900 Waltham Way (can mfg) TRI

H. A-Z WELDING & FABRICATION, LLC — General / 1215 Alexandria {(welding fab) TRI

I. ROSSCO ENT., dba AP STAINLESS MFG - General / 1215 Alexandria (manufacturing) TRI
Inspection Required

ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




Correspondence




—

L

WASTE MARNAGEMENT

August 29, 2014

Mr. Pat Whitten

Storey County Manager
PO Box 176

Virginia City NV 89440

Dear Pat:

Enclosed is a copy of the Bureau of Labor Statistics consumer price index
for garbage and trash collection.

We have contacted the Bureau of Labor Statistics and obtained the
percentage change in the Consumer Price Index Garbage and Trash
Collection for the period of July 1, 2013 to July 1, 2014. Per the Bureau of
Labor Statistics, the index increased 2.41% during this period. In
accordance with Section 7.7.2 of the Agreement, the increase to collection
rates, which the Company will put into effect as of October 1, 2014 will be
2.41%.

If you have any questions concerning the above, please contact me at
775-326-2322,

Sincerely,

/M AT

GREG MARTINELLI
Waste Management

CC: Dale Barry
John L’Angelle
Maria Davis
Dan Peterson
Daisy Chand




STOREY CO

WA EXHIBIT

LAY AN

Hesidenlial

UNTY
A

Effective 10/1/2014

1 can Plus ouble yard $64.83
184 Gal, Qart - No cubic yard s22.1 $56.53
168 Gal, Cart plus cublc yard $24.60 $74.07
1 84 Gal Gar pius cublc yard 2221 $66.63
1 84 Gal Senlor Cant - no cubic yard $20 56 $02.88
Addillonal Can $4.16 $1248
Additional 96 Gal Carl £8.02 $24.06
Spechsl yard Sendce 511,42 $34.26

Commarcial

TYard  $hbas

558217

$232.86 $346.29 $465.73
2 Yard $161.70 532342 £485.11 584682 £808.51 $970 24
3 Yard £591 69 £383 36 857503 $766 74 §058 42 §3.150.10
4 Yard 5227.62 . $455.23 65297 $910.48 $1,13810 §1.374.92
6 Yard 8377.40 $754.78 F1.132.17 $1.500.57 3188688 $2.260.72

1 Yard - Sunday (Base Rate} £148.32

4 Yard 8peclal - One Umo (Pase Rata) 585,06
3 Yard Specil - One ime (Base Rate) $130.52
1 - 96 Gal Toter $32.62
t - 32 Gal Can - Sunday Sendce - per wack $29.65
1 - 32 Gal Can - Sunday Senvce - per monlh £128.13

Commueclat Con Sorvie

$42.54

1 -32 Gal Can 35478 56683
2 - 32 Gal Can $18.30 $42.53 $66.03 §91.22 $116.52 $130.81
3 - 32 Gl Can $30.42 $E87TT £103.37 $139.8¢ §178.28 521269
+} - 32 Gal Can $42.28 $n.m $1998 318840 $236.97 28566
& - 32 Gal Can $54.64 $11524 $176.26 $23697 $207.89 $358 44
Ili- 32 GalGan $68.77 $130.48 21269 £285.56 4350 44 #3132

Folt Off Services

SipLrr

SH3.78
Fopdat {0t 7 days) ‘$agbg
Oty Fog §9255

s335.09

546283

62841

STB1.TE

‘sads

NSF Chame

\Aclivalion/Peaciivalion/zll senices $4854
1.5% or §3.00

Late Fas minimen

Cart Replacemenl Fae [dua to cusiomar damage) §68.88

Transfer Station Feas

Service; X
Minimum Charge

1-32 Gal Can $1.83 $1.85
1-50 Gal Can $2.68 $2.65
Fassangor Tes $4.83 $4.80
Tnck Tiras £7.45 $745
TrashvGathage §6.22 $8.20
Damolilon $14.0% £14.00
By §1072 $1070
Frecn Removal $28.83 $268.30




Storey County CPI 7/2014:] 426.562 Base Diesel: $3.90
CP17/2013| 416.505 CPI Change 2.41%

Point Change:| 10.057 New Diesel Base Rate: $3.99
% Change 2.41%

Consumer Price index - Al Urban Consumers
Series Id: CUURO000SEHG02

Not Seasonally Adjusted

Area: U.S. city average

ltam: Garbage and trash collection

Base Period: DECEMBER 1983=100

Download:
nlm.m.x_n
Year | “Jan” TUUFEB Y Mar ¢ Apr 7 May | Jun T Jul UUUUUANg [ sep ot UUNev | Dec _>===aw HALFL
2003 2862 | 2873 | 2884 : 2903 | 291 | 2912 202 | 2934 2938 ¢ 2948 | 297 | 2974 i 2919 | :
2004 | 2994 | 3008 ! 301.2 | 30L1 : 3017 3024 303.5 1 3042 : 3052 1 3059 . 3067 i 3074 [ 3033
2005 3074 ; 308.8 | 309.6 | 3102 | 3117 | 3125 314.3 3154 1 3173 | 3191 | 3206 ! 3206 314 | :
2006 323 ¢ 3246 | 3253 3268 ;| 3273 | 3288 329.6 3319 3343 | 3359 3369 ! 3372 330.1 |

2007 | 340.087 | 340.898 | 342.033 | 343286  343.198 :343.836 | 34508l | 347.168 : 347.940 | 348.684 | 351.136 ; 353.430 | 345.566

;2008 356.901 | 358.059 : 358,55 | 359.586 361.533 Mumw.wmw 366,043 368.96 | 369.651 (wwH.Hmm.Ew 371.648 | 371.093 364.695

2009 371.828 ; 372.503 { 373.241 | 375.392 | 375.599 :376.582 377.494 377.879 | 378.285 379.56 | 379.208 | 379.248 | 376.402 ;

i
i

. 2010 380.036 { 382.49 | 383.362 | 383.615 | 383.405 . 383.749 383.832 385.01 385.92 | 385.909 | 387.216 { 387.884 ; 384.369
M.lwlou.u. 386.727 | 391.854 : 391.855 | 392.754 ! 395.477 |395.329 395.723 396.605 | 397.028 : 357.106 358,91 | 398.72 | 395.001

2012 [ 398.88 | 400.381 | 401.692 | 400.913 | 401067 |402.793 | 406.243 | 406.823 : 407.594 | 409.495 | 410.155 : 410.416 | 404.704

2013 1411126 | 411,805 | 412.305 | 413.675 | 414,511 | 414.802 | 416,505 | 417.76 | 418.357 | 419.687 | 421427 | 422.237 | 416.183
L2014 | 32244 (422483 | 423413 | 425393 | 425.242 | 425.93 | 426.562 m i ;.




